
 

Page 1 of 250 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, JULY 15, 2019 
7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of July 1, 2019. 

Administration of Oath to Public Safety Officer 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2019 
Bridge Maintenance Project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 8, 2019) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Oral comments. 

3. Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for 
the 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project. 

Old Business 

4. Pass Ordinance #2947, amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located at 2600 Grove Street from the R-3, Multiple Residence District, and placing the same in the 
C-2, Commercial District, upon its third & final consideration. 

5. Pass Ordinance #2949, amending certain sections of the Code of Ordinances relative to establishing 
regulations for events on public property, upon its second consideration. 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

6. Receive and file the resignation of Deb Giarusso as a member of the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 

7. Approve the following special event related requests: 
a) Street closures, Live to 9, July 19 & 26, 2019 (August 2 & 9, 2019 if inclement weather). 
b) Street closure, Hiawatha Road, August 3, 2019. 
c) Street closure, Bluebell Road, August 6, 2019. 
d) Street closures, ARTapalooza, September 7, 2019. 

1



 

Page 2 of 250 

8. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Cypress Lounge, 209 A State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
b) Hy-Vee Market Grille, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 
c) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E liquor - change in ownership. 
d) Cedar Basin Jazz Festival & Live to 9, 200 Block of State Street and 100 Block of East 2nd Street, 
Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - permanent transfer. 
e) Dollar General, 1922 Valley Park Drive, Class C Beer & Class B Wine - new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

9. Resolution approving the recommendation of the City Administrator by appointing the Director of 
Public Works for the City of Cedar Falls. 

10. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Understanding with the 
Teamsters Union, Local No. 238 relative to earning compensatory time. 

11. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Extension of an Agreement for Custodial 
Services with Fresh Start Cleaning, f/k/a T & C Cleaning, Inc., relative to custodial services for city 
buildings for a period of September 1, 2019 through August 31, 2020, and adding custodial services 
for the new Public Safety Facility. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of a dump truck. 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of Agreement with the Municipal 
Electric Utility of the City of Cedar Falls (CFU) relative to use of a dump truck. 

14. Resolution approving three Claims for Non-Residential Relocation Assistance Reimbursement, in 
conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project. 

15. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of K. Cunningham 
Construction Company, Inc., in the amount of $135,515.36, for the South Main Street Parking Lot 
Project. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for Completion of Improvements with 
James V. Sands relative to the final plat of Sands Addition. 

17. Resolution approving the opening of the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program (a/k/a Section 8) 
Waiting List August 6, 2019 through January 31, 2020, as recommended by the Housing 
Commission. 

18. Resolution approving a Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site plan for façade 
improvements at 100 East 2nd Street, Suite 103. 

19. Resolution approving the Cherrywood Acres Minor Plat. 

20. Resolution approving the preliminary plat of Chrisbro Subdivision. 

21. Resolution approving the final plat of Sands Addition. 

22. Resolution approving the preliminary plat of The Terraces at West Glen. 

23. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a HOME Investment Partnership Program 
Consortium Cooperation Agreement with the City of Waterloo for FY2020-2022. 

24. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with Iowa 
Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) relative to the Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Programs. 

2



 

Page 3 of 250 

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1A with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for 2019 Engineering Services relative to the Parkade Brick Replacement Project. 

26. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting August 5, 2019 as the date of public hearing on, the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2019 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project, Zone 2.  

27. Resolution setting August 5, 2019 as the date of public hearing on the proposed vacation of a 15-
foot wide pedestrian trail access easement within Tract E Western Home Communities Seventh 
Addition, Lot 1 Western Home Communities Eighth Addition, Parcel G Western Home Communities 
Lot 17 Minor Plat and Lot 2 Western Home Communities Fourth Addition. 

28. Resolution setting August 5, 2019 as the date of public hearing on a proposed ordinance granting a 
partial property tax exemption to ACOH, LLC for construction of an industrial use manufacturing and 
office facility at 6601 Development Drive. 

29. Resolution setting August 5, 2019 as the date of public hearing on a proposed ordinance granting a 
partial property tax exemption to Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. for construction of an industrial use 
warehouse and production facility at 2900 Capital Way. 

30. Resolution setting August 5, 2019 as the date of public hearing on a proposed ordinance granting a 
partial property tax exemption to FN Investors, LLC for construction of an industrial use lab and office 
facility at 3019 Venture Way. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

31. Allow Bills and Payroll of July 15, 2019. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

  

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JULY 1, 2019 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland. Absent: 
Green. 

 
52386 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Blanford that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of June 17, 2019 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52387 - Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of June 21, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposal to undertake 
a public improvement project for the Cyber Lane-2018 Street Construction 
Project and to authorize acquisition of private property for said project. It was 
then moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that the proof of publication of 
notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52388 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed public improvement project. Upon being advised that there were no 
written communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. 
Community Development Director Sheetz provided a brief overview of the 
proposed project. Following a question by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and 
comment by Atul Patel, 307 Winding Ridge Road, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52389 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,595, 

approving a public improvement for the Cyber Lane-2018 Street Construction 
Project and authorizing acquisition of private property for said project, be 
adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers Darrah and Miller, and Mayor 
Brown, and responses by Community Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland. 
Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,595 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52390 - Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of June 21, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the South Main Street 
Parking Lot Project. It was then moved by deBuhr and seconded by Wieland that 
the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52391 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Public Works 
Director Schrage provided a brief explanation of the proposed project. There 

4

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

being no one else present wishing to speak about the proposed plans, etc., the 
Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52392 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,596, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the South Main Street Parking Lot Project, be adopted. Following 
questions by Councilmembers Miller and Darrah, and responses by Mayor Brown 
and Public Works Director Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #21,596 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52393 - Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of June 21, 

2019, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposed Agreement 
for Private Development and conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to 
Tjaden Properties, L.L.C. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller 
that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52394 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed Agreement. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic 
Development Coordinator Graham provided a brief explanation of the proposed 
Agreement. Following comments by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, and Brett 
Tjaden, 4127 Maryhill Drive, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed 
to the next order of business. 

 
52395 -  It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,597, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development 
and a Minimum Assessment Agreement with Tjaden Properties, L.L.C., and 
approving and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to 
certain real estate to Tjaden Properties, L.L.C., be adopted. Following a question 
by Councilmember deBuhr and response by Economic Development Coordinator 
Graham, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,597 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52396 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2946, amending 

Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances to be 
consistent with parking regulations being established, in conjunction with the 
implementation of recommendations from the Downtown Parking Study, be 
passed upon its third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, 
Darrah, Wieland. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance 
#2946 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52397 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that Ordinance #2947, 

amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located at 2600 Grove Street from the R-3, Multiple Residence District, and 

5

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

placing the same in the C-2, Commercial District, be passed upon its second 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland. 
Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52398 -     It was moved by Blanford and seconded by Wieland that Ordinance #2948, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to prohibiting parking on portions of Panther Lane, be passed upon its 
second consideration.  

 
      Following a comment by Councilmember deBuhr, it was moved by deBuhr and 

seconded by Wieland that the rules requiring Ordinance #2948 to be considered 
at three separate meetings, be suspended. The Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Darrah, Wieland. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
It was then moved by deBuhr and seconded by Darrah that Ordinance #2948, be 
passed upon its third and final consideration. The Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance #2948 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52399 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions:  
a) Teri Lynn Jorgensen, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2022.  
b) David Glenn-Burns, Metropolitan Bus Board, term ending 06/30/2022. 
 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of June 17, 2019 relative to 
the following items:  
a) Sustainability.  
b) Cash Management Report.  
c) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to a 
certified list for the position of Public Safety Officer. 
 
Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of May 2019. 
 
Approve the following special event related requests:  
a) Street closure, Abraham Drive, July 4, 2019.  
b) Accel Triathlon, July 27, 2019. 
 
Approve the following applications for liquor licenses:  
a) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - renewal.  
b) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary 

expansion of outdoor service area. (July 12-14, 2019) 
 

6

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
52400 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #21,598, approving and authorizing execution of a Two Party Claim 
Service Agreement with EMC Risk Services, LLC relative to claims adjusting and 
administration services for the City. 
 
Resolution #21,599, approving and authorizing execution of one Owner 
Purchase Agreement, and approving and accepting one Owner's Temporary 
Easement for Construction, in conjunction with the West 1st Street 
Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,600, approving and accepting one Permanent Drainage 
Easement and one Temporary Construction Easement, in conjunction with the 
Walnut Street Box Culvert Replacement - University Branch of Dry Run Creek 
Project. 
 
Resolution #21,601, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to 
Support Economic Development Program of Cedar Falls Community Main Street 
relative to an FY20 Economic Development Grant. 
 
Resolution #21,602, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to 
Support Economic Development Program of Cedar Falls Community Main Street 
relative to FY20 Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) Funds. 
 
Resolution #21,603, approving and authorizing execution of an FY20 Façade 
Improvement Fund Agreement with Cedar Falls Community Main Street. 
 
Resolution #21,604, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement in 
Support of the College Hill Partnership relative to an FY20 Economic 
Development Grant. 
 
Resolution #21,605, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to 
Support Economic Development Program of the College Hill Partnership relative 
to FY20 Self-Supported Municipal Improvement District (SSMID) Funds. 
 
Resolution #21,606, approving and authorizing execution of an FY20 Façade 
Improvement Fund Agreement with College Hill Partnership. 
 
Resolution #21,607, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to 
Support "Fulfilling the Vision" Campaign for Economic Vitality of Grow Cedar 
Valley relative to an FY20 Economic Development Grant. 
 
Resolution #21,608, approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special 
Promissory Note for property located at 2322 Clay Street relative to the Rental to 
Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. 
 
Resolution #21,609, approving submission of an application through the Iowa 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management Division (HSMED) to the 

7

ITEM  1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for funding from the Hazard 
Mitigation Grant Program, and authorizing the local match for the Northern Cedar 
Falls Flood Buyout Program. 
 
Resolution #21,610, receiving and filing, and setting July 15, 2019 as the date of 
public hearing on, the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project. 
 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,598 through #21,610 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52401 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Ordinance #2949, 

amending certain sections of the Code of Ordinances relative to establishing 
regulations for events on public property, be passed upon its first consideration. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. 

 
52402 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the bills and payroll of July 

1, 2019 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland. Nay: None. Motion 
carried.  

 
52403 - Public Safety Services Director Olson provided a reminder about the fireworks 

ordinance in Cedar Falls. 
 
 Community Development Director Sheetz announced that the City has met state 

and federal requirements and is in the final stages of completing the 2019-2024 
NPDES permit for the water reclamation facility. 

 
52404 - Public Safety Services Director Olson responded to concerns expressed by Russ 

Reeves, 430 Balboa Avenue, and questions by Mayor Brown and 
Councilmember Kruse regarding the level of noise caused by engine braking on 
Greenhill Road and Highway 58.  

 
 Councilmember Blanford responded to comments by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay 

Street, regarding unanimous Council votes.  
 
52405 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the meeting be adjourned at 

7:43 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
  _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

8

ITEM  1.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: July 11, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project 
   Project No. BR-000-3183 
   Public Hearing 
 
This project involves the repair of various items on eight (8) bridges within the City of Cedar 
Falls. Work will include concrete repair, mill and HMA overlay of approach pavement, 
replacement of expansion joints, and the repairing of bridge decks, bridge medians, and 
handrails. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $150,825.00. This project will be 
funded with Street Construction Fund.  
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your review at 
the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Community Development Department. 
 
att 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 

9

ITEM  2.



Date: June 26, 2019

ITEM NO. ITEM CODE ITEM UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL

General Construction Items

1 2010-108-I-0 SUBBASE, GRANULAR 6 IN. SY 321.7 15.00$                         4,825.50$                    

2 7010-108-A-0 PAVEMENT, PCC, 8 IN. SY 106.7 75.00$                         8,002.50$                    

3 7010-108-G-0 CONCRETE MEDIAN, 6 IN. SY 108.3 55.00$                         5,956.50$                    

4 7021-108-B-0 HMA OVERLAY, 3 IN. SY 253.3 50.00$                         12,665.00$                  

5 7040-108-G-0 PAVEMENT REMOVAL SY 321.7 20.00$                         6,434.00$                    

6 8010-108-A-0 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 15,000.00$                  15,000.00$                  

7 8010-108-B-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC SIGNAL LS 1 5,000.00$                    5,000.00$                    

8 8020-108-B-0 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORN STA 32.44 35.00$                         1,135.40$                    

9 8020-108-K-0 PAVEMENT MARKINGS REMOVED STA 32.24 30.00$                         967.20$                       

10 2121-7425020 GRANULAR SHLD, TYPE B TON 75 30.00$                         2,250.00$                    

11 2301-0690220 BRIDGE APPROACH, SECONDARY ROADS SY 106.7 100.00$                       10,670.00$                  

12 2401-6750001 REMOVALS, AS PER PLAN (STRUCTURE NO. 1) LS 1 1,300.00$                    1,300.00$                    

13 2401-6750001 REMOVALS, AS PER PLAN (STRUCTURE NO. 12) LS 1 2,000.00$                    2,000.00$                    

14 2401-6750001 REMOVALS, AS PER PLAN (STRUCTURE NO. 17) LS 1 600.00$                       600.00$                       

15 2401-6750001 REMOVALS, AS PER PLAN (STRUCTURE NO. 28) LS 1 1,500.00$                    1,500.00$                    

16 2401-6750001 REMOVALS, AS PER PLAN (STRUCTURE NO. 39) LS 1 2,000.00$                    2,000.00$                    

17 2401-6750001 REMOVALS, AS PER PLAN (STRUCTURE NO. 49) LS 1 500.00$                       500.00$                       

18 2413-0698074 DECK REPAIR, CLASS A SY 38 500.00$                       19,000.00$                  

19  2413-1200100 NEOPRENE GLAND INSTALLATION AND TESTING LF 34.5 100.00$                       3,450.00$                    

20 2414-6444100 STEEL PIPE PEDESTRIAN HAND RAILING LF 14.4 200.00$                       2,880.00$                    

21 2426-6772016 CONCRETE REPAIR SF 3 100.00$                       300.00$                       

22 2533-4980005 MOBILIZATION LS 1 10,500.00$                  10,500.00$                  

23 2599-9999009 INSTALL CF EXPANSION JOINTS LF 514.1 50.00$                         25,705.00$                  

24 2599-9999010 FILL VOIDS AT CONDUIT LS 1 500.00$                       500.00$                       

25 2599-9999010 ALUMINUM HAND RAIL WELD REPAIR LS 1 500.00$                       500.00$                       

Subtotal 143,642.00$                

Contingencies 5% 7,183.00$                    

$150,825.00Total Estimated Project Costs

ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

2019 Bridge Maintenance Project
Project No. BR-000-3183

 

Foth Infrastructure and Environment, LLC

8191 Birchwood Court, Suite L

Johnston, Iowa 50131

Phone: (515) 254-1393

Fax:     (515) 254-1642

Page 1 Date Prepared: 6/26/2019
Est-2019-0626 - 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project.xls

10

ITEM  2.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Iris Lehmann, Planner II, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2947 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 26-118,  

DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I GENERALLY  

OF ARTICLE III DISTRICT AND DISTRICT  

REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-SIX (26) 

ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND RE-ENACTING 

SAID SECTION 26-118 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS 

AMENDED, SO AS TO APPLY AND INCLUDE THE  

CHANGE IN THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF  

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY THIS 

ORDINANCE (Case #RZ19-004) 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

finds that the rezoning is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan of the City of Cedar 

Falls and therefore has recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that 

2600 Grove Street as described as follows shall be removed from R-3, Multiple Residence 

District and added to the C-2, Commercial District, 

 

FAIRVALLEY ADDITION LOT 30 

 

And 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to the best 

interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 

Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 

 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment; now, therefore, 

 

11

ITEM  4.



 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 

 

FAIRVALLEY ADDITION LOT 30 

 

Be and the same is hereby removed from the R-3, Multiple Residence District and added to the 

C-2, Commercial District. 

 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is 

hereby amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the C-2, 

Commercial District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 

 

 Section 3. That said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of 

Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby repealed and hereby re-

enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order that the same shall apply to and 

include the change hereby made in the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 
INTRODUCED:     June 17, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   June 17, 2019   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   July 1, 2019   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 

____________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

12

ITEM  4.



1 
 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2949 

       AN ORDINANCE (1) AMENDING SECTION 3-42, EXEMPTIONS FROM PERMIT 

REQUIREMENT, OF ARTICLE II, SIGNS, OF CHAPTER 3, ADVERTISING, OF THE CODE 

OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY ENACTING A NEW 

UNTITLED SUBSECTION (6), OF SECTION 3-42, EXEMPTIONS FROM PERMIT 

REQUIREMENT; (2) REPEALING SECTION 17-197, PERMITS, OF ARTICLE V, PARK 

REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION, OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA; (3) REPEALING SECTION 17-207, 

RESERVATION OF PARK AREAS AND FACILITIES, AND SECTION 17-208, POSSESSION 

OF BEER OR OTHER INTOXICATING LIQUOR, AND SECTION 17-210, SPECIAL EVENTS 

IN GATEWAY PARK GREEN SPACE, ALL OF ARTICLE V, PARK REGULATIONS, OF 

CHAPTER 17, PARKS AND RECREATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF NEW SECTION 17-207, 

RESERVATION OF PARK AREAS AND FACILITIES, NEW SECTION 17-208, POSSESSION 

OF BEER OR OTHER INTOXICATING LIQUOR, AND NEW SECTION 17-210, PUBLIC 

EVENTS ON CITY PROPERTY; (4) REPEALING SECTION 19-2, STREET MEETINGS; 

PARADES, OF ARTICLE I, IN GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 19, STREETS AND SIDEWALKS, OF 

THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND ENACTING IN 

LIEU THEREOF NEW SECTION 19-2, RIGHT-OF-WAY, PUBLIC PARK, PUBLIC AREA 

MEETINGS; PARADES; AND (5) CONFORMING TITLES TO SUBSECTIONS, SECTIONS, 

DIVISIONS AND ARTICLES ACCORDINGLY. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Section 3-42, Exemptions from Permit Requirement, of Article II, Signs, of 

Chapter 3, Advertising, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is hereby 

amended by enacting new untitled subsection (6), of Section 3-42, Exemptions from Permit 

Requirement, of Article II, Signs, of Chapter 3, Advertising, as follows: 

(6) Temporary signs constructed or erected in connection with a properly permitted public 

event, displayed for up to seven days before and one day after such public event. 

        

                     Section 2.  Section 17-197, Permits, of Article V, Park Regulations, of Chapter 17, Parks 

and Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed 

in its entirety. 

13

ITEM  5.



2 
 

       Section 3.  Section 17-207, Reservation of Park Areas and Facilities, and Section 17-208, 

Possession of Beer or Other Intoxicating Liquor, and Section 17-210, Special Events in 

Gateway Park Green Space, all of Article V, Park Regulations, of Chapter 17, Parks and 

Recreation, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, are hereby repealed in 

their entirety and new Section 17-207, Reservation of Park Areas and Facilities, new Section 

17-208, Possession of Beer or Other Intoxicating Liquor, and new Section 17-210, Public 

Events on City Property, all of Article V, Park and Public Event Regulations, of Chapter 17, 

Parks and Recreation, are hereby enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

ARTICLE V.  PARK AND PUBLIC EVENT REGULATIONS 

Sec. 17-207.   Reservation of park areas and facilities. 

(a)  No person may be granted an exclusive non-public use of park areas or facilities unless a 
permit for such exclusive non-public use is first obtained from the director of community 
development or designee. The factors listed in section 17-210 for issuance of a public 
event permit shall apply to a permit required under this section.  Only the following park 
areas and facilities may be so reserved:  

(1)  A golf course.  

(2)  A clubhouse.  

(3)  A specific picnic shelter.  

(4)  Special game facilities, including, but not limited to, sports fields and courts, aquatic 
center, pools, and outdoor exercise facilities. 

(b)  Liability of permit holder. The holder of a permit required by this section as well as any 
sponsoring group or organization shall be liable for any loss, damage or injury sustained by 
any person or entity, including the city, arising out of or resulting from the fault of the permit 
holder, his or her employees, servants or agents, or other persons participating in or 
attending the non-public event. The holder as well as any sponsoring group or organization, 
by acceptance of a permit, assumes full responsibility for and agrees to indemnify the city 
against and save it harmless from any liability arising out of or resulting from the fault of the 
holder, his or her employees, servants or agents, or other persons participating in or 
attending the non-public event. 

(Code 2017, § 20-222) 

Sec. 17-208.   Possession of beer or other intoxicating liquor. 

(a)  It shall be unlawful for any person to bring in or use or have in their possession a keg or 
similar container for the purpose of dispensing beer or any other intoxicating liquor not 
otherwise prohibited by Iowa Code § 123.46, within any park, including any access area or 
wildlife habitat area under the jurisdiction of the city parks and recreation commission, 
unless:  

(1)  Such use or possession is authorized by a liquor control license or beer permit 
approved by the city council, and issued by the state alcoholic beverages division 
under Iowa Code ch. 123, and such use is confined to a shelter or other place within a 
park which constitutes a "licensed premises" within the meaning of state law and which 
is designated for group use; and  

14

ITEM  5.



3 
 

(2)  Any other necessary permits and licenses are first obtained.  

(b)  Any person desiring to use a shelter or building, where beer or an intoxicating liquor is to be 
dispensed from a keg or similar container as authorized in this section must make a prior 
shelter or building reservation, obtain all necessary permits and licenses, and make 
advance payment of a reservation fee and submit a $100.00 minimum damage deposit. 
The city has the right to retain any or all of the required deposit to cover damage to city 
park property. The holder of a shelter or building reservation shall be bound by and be 
responsible for enforcing all park rules and regulations and all applicable ordinances 
regarding the use of a keg, or similar container, or other rules and regulations set out in this 
article.  

(Code 2017, § 20-223; Ord. No. 2301, § 1, 5-22-2000; Ord. No. 2422, § 1, 3-10-2003) 

Sec. 17-210.   Public events on City property. 

(a)  Persons who wish to use city owned, occupied or controlled areas or facilities for public 
events must first obtain a permit as described in this section from the director of finance 
and business operations or designee.           

(b)  The director may adopt and enforce rules and regulations to protect and preserve the 
rights, privileges and property of the city or of its residents, and to preserve and improve 
the peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of its residents. The director 
may post signs setting forth rules and regulations and directional signs.  

(c)  The director, upon receiving a completed permit application, shall provide a copy of the 
application to appropriate city personnel who shall provide comments as to the following 
factors:  

(1)  The applicant has complied with all of the requirements of this Code and any rules or 
regulations promulgated thereunder;  

(2)  The proposed event will not substantially or unnecessarily interfere with traffic in the 
area;  

(3)  The proposed event will not substantially or unnecessarily interfere with any publicly 
managed infrastructure project;  

(4)  The concentration of persons or things at the event will not prevent proper fire and 
police protection or ambulance service;  

(5)  That the proposed event or use of the property will not unreasonably interfere with or 
detract from the general public enjoyment of the property;  

(6)  That the proposed event and use will not unreasonably interfere with or detract from 
the promotion of public health, welfare, safety and recreation;  

(7)  That the property has not been reserved for other use at the time requested in the 
application;  

(8)  That the proposed event will not entail unusual, extraordinary or burdensome expense 
to the city;  

(9)  The applicant and group have complied with any required permits or licenses required 
for the activity on the property.  

(d)  The application for a permit required in this section shall include, in the discretion of the 
director, information reasonably calculated to allow the director to determine the 

15

ITEM  5.



4 
 

appropriateness of a permit, considering the factors set forth in subsection c of this section.  
The director or designee shall determine whether a permit shall be issued.          

(e)  The factors listed in subsection c of this section shall also apply to a permit application 
under section 17-207 of this article. 

(f)   The permit required in this section is in addition to and not in lieu of any other license or 
permit required in this Code. 

(g)  The director shall issue or deny a permit within thirty days of submission of the permit 
application.  

(h)  In the event of denial of the permit application, the applicant shall have 10 days to appeal 
such denial to the administration committee of the city council.  The administration 
committee shall hold a hearing on the appeal in person or upon written submission, within 
21 days of the filing of the appeal with the city clerk.  The applicant shall be notified in 
writing of the date, time and place of the hearing.  The administration committee shall afford 
the applicant the opportunity to present information in support of the application.  Within 10 
days of the hearing, the administration committee shall issue its written decision, which 
may affirm or reverse the decision of the director, or affirm the application subject to certain 
conditions.  The decision of the administration committee shall be final.  

(i)  Revocation of permit. The permit may be revoked without notice if the director, the chief of 
police, or fire chief have cause to believe anyone participating in the public event has 
committed any one or more of the following acts or if the following conditions occur: 

         i.  violated any local, state or federal laws; 

         ii. violated the terms of any permit issued; 

         iii. violated the rules or regulations of the area or facility; or 

          iv  that the public order or the health or safety of the public would be at risk if the use 
continued.  

(j)  The applicant or sponsoring group/organization and all individual participants shall be 
required to have been approved for any local, state or federal licenses or permits that are 
required for the activities intended to be conducted pursuant to the permit.  

(k)  Any and all appropriate city departments are authorized to inspect the public event and 
may issue citations for any violation of this Code or any regulations pertaining to the 
operation of the public event.  

(l)  The director, after consultation with other appropriate departments, shall have the authority 
to promulgate such forms, rules and regulations that the director determines are necessary 
or desirable for the implementation of this section. The forms, rules and regulations shall be 
available for inspection by the public.  

(m)  Liability of permit holder. The holder of a permit required by this article as well as any 
sponsoring group or organization shall be liable for any loss, damage or injury sustained by 
any person or the city arising out of or resulting from the fault of the permit holder, his or 
her employees, servants or agents, or other persons participating in or attending the public 
event. The holder as well as any sponsoring group or organization, by acceptance of a 
permit, assumes full responsibility for and agrees to indemnify the city against and save it 
harmless from any liability arising out of or resulting from the fault of the holder as well as 
any sponsoring group or organization, and their employees, servants or agents, or other 
persons participating in or attending the public event. 

16

ITEM  5.



5 
 

(n)   The director may impose insurance requirements on the issuance of a permit under this 
section in order to minimize the liability of the city for injury or damage connected to or 
arising out of the public event.  

(Code 2017, § 20-225; Ord. No. 2763, § 1, 4-23-2012) 

       Section 4.  Section 19-2, Street Meetings; Parades, of Article I, In General, of Chapter 19, 
Streets and Sidewalks, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 
repealed in its entirety and new Section 19-2, Right-Of-Way, Public Park, Public Area Meetings; 
Parades, of Article I, In General, of Chapter 19, Streets and Sidewalks, is hereby enacted in lieu 
thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 19-2.   Right-of-way, public park, public area meetings; parades. 

(a)  It shall be unlawful for any person to hold public meetings of any character or description 
upon any public right-of-way of the city, or in any public park or area under the control of 
the city, without a permit being first secured as set forth in this section, or for any person to 
congregate about or upon any public right-of-way of the city so as to obstruct public travel 
or city services, or for any person to parade or march upon any street or public right-of-way 
of the city without a permit being first secured as set forth in this section.  

(b)  Public meetings may be held on public right-of-ways of the city and in public parks or other 
public areas, and parades or marches may be held in the city by a person first obtaining 
from the city a written permit as described in section 17-210.This section is not intended to 
apply to funeral processions, students engaged in educational activities under the direct 
supervision of proper school authorities, or governmental agencies acting within the scope 
of their functions.  

(c)  Any person violating any provision of this section, or who holds, conducts, manages, 
directs or has charge of a public meeting, parade or march otherwise than in accordance 
with the terms of the written permit issued as provided in this section, shall be guilty of a 
municipal infraction, punishable as provided in section 1-9 of this Code.  

(Code 2017, § 23-3) 

INTRODUCED:     July 1, 2019   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   July 1, 2019   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

____________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

17

ITEM  5.



July 1, 2019 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
CEDAR FALLS,  IA 50613 
 

It has been an honor to serve as a commissioner on the City of Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning 

Commission.  I am unable to serve as a commissioner effective July 15, 2019.  

My husband is going on active duty as a student at the Army War College in Carlisle, PA for one 

year starting in late July.  We decided that it is in the best interest of our family that I also 

relocate with him.  For this reason, I need to resign from the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

Thank you for the opportunity to serve with the city staff and members of the commission. 

 

S INCERELY,  

DEB GIARUSSO 

18

ITEM  6.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  July 9, 2019 

Re:  Special Event Related Requests 

Police Operations has received the following special event related requests and 
recommends approval:  

a) Street closures, Live to 9 (relocating to the 200 block of State Street and 100 block 
of East 2nd Street), July 19 & 26, 2019 (August 2 & 9, 2019 if inclement weather). 

b) Street closure, Hiawatha Road (block party), August 3, 2019. 

c) Street closure, Bluebell Road (South Main and Greenhill Corridor Neighborhood 
Association and Fareway event), August 6, 2019. 

d) Street closures, ARTapalooza, September 7, 2019. 

19

ITEM  7.



20

ITEM  7.



21

ITEM  7.



22

ITEM  7.



23

ITEM  7.



24

ITEM  7.



25

ITEM  7.



26

ITEM  7.



27

ITEM  7.



28

ITEM  7.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  July 10, 2019 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Cypress Lounge, 209 A State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

b) Hy-Vee Market Grille, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 

c) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E liquor - change in ownership. 

d) Cedar Basin Jazz Festival & Live to 9, 200 Block of State Street and 100 Block of 
East 2nd Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - permanent transfer. 

e) Dollar General, 1922 Valley Park Drive, Class C Beer & Class B Wine - new. 

29

ITEM  8.



 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE CITY 

ADMINISTRATOR BY APPOINTING THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR FOR THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Administrator has the authority under section 2-810 of the City 
Code of Ordinances to recommend the appointment of the Director of Public Works; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this appointment shall then be recommended to the Mayor and City Council 
for approval; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Director of Public Works shall supervise the new Public Works 
Department as recently established by City ordinances and will manage the Engineering, 
Operations & Maintenance, and Water Reclamation Divisions; and  
 

WHEREAS, following the review of applications and interviewing applicants for the 
position, City Administrator, Ron Gaines, recommends the appointment of Chase Schrage as 
the Director of Public Works;  
 

THEREFORE, now be it Resolved that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
adopts this Resolution approving the appointment of Chase Schrage as the Director of Public 
Works for the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, effective July 1, 2019.  
 
 ADOPTED this 15th of July 2019. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      James P. Brown, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

30

ITEM  9.



1 

   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor and City Council     

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  July 8, 2019 

Re: Police MOU for Training Comp Limit 

The Teamsters Police Union has a provision in the union contract allowing for training 
officers to earn one-hour of compensatory time for each 8 hours of training. In October of 
2018 the Union and City agreed on a higher comp limit accumulation as a result of 
numerous officers being trained at the same time. This benefit allowed for officers to 
accumulate up to 48 hours of comp time above the current 96 hour limit. We encourage 
training officers to not take time off during their training period for training consistency 
reasons and training comp time cannot be paid in cash per the contract. The October 
MOU expired on June 30th.  

Attached is a new MOU extending this agreement for one year. We have several officers 
in training and this MOU provides for less scheduling conflicts during the training period. I 
recommend approval of the MOU.  

31

ITEM  10.



 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

Between 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

And 

TEAMSTERS UNION, Local No. 238 

 

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (hereinafter the “City”) and Teamsters Union, Local No. 238 

(hereinafter the “Union”), enter into this Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter the 

“Agreement”).  The City and Union agree to modify the parties’ collective bargaining agreement 

regarding compensatory time.  Pursuant to section 10.7 of the parties’ collective bargaining 

agreement, unit members may accrue a maximum of ninety-six (96) hours of compensatory time. 

Due to the hiring needs of the Police Department and the extra time commitment required for 

field training officers to train new officers, the parties agree to temporarily modify compensatory 

time accruals as follows: 

 

 In addition to the ninety-six (96) hour bank currently permitted by the contract, field 

training officers will also have a separate bank that will only accrue compensatory time 

earned on those days when field training duties are performed. 

 Field training officers may accrue up to forty-eight (48) hours of compensatory time in 

this separate bank. 

 Compensatory time earned through field training will begin to accrue in the separate bank 

as of September 1, 2018. 

 The field training bank will exist from September 1, 2018 until June 30, 2020. 

 On June 30, 2020, the compensatory time accrued in the field training officer bank will 

be, at the employee’s discretion, either transferred to their regular compensatory time 

bank or paid out.  The employee’s regular compensatory time bank shall at no time 

exceed ninety-six (96) hours.  Any additional hours shall be paid out to the employee on 

June 30, 2020. 

 After June 30, 2020, field training officers will be governed by the current contract 

provision allowing only for a single compensatory time bank with a maximum of ninety-

six (96) hours that can be accrued. 

 

 

For the City:      For the Union: 

 

 

________________________________  ________________________________ 

                        

        

________________________________  ________________________________  

Date       Date 
 
01609959-1\10283-127 

32

ITEM  10.



33

ITEM  11.



34

ITEM  11.



35

ITEM  11.



36

ITEM  11.



37

ITEM  11.



38

ITEM  11.



39

ITEM  11.



40

ITEM  11.



41

ITEM  11.



42

ITEM  11.



43

ITEM  11.



44

ITEM  11.



45

ITEM  11.



46

ITEM  11.



47

ITEM  11.



48

ITEM  11.



49

ITEM  11.



50

ITEM  11.



51

ITEM  11.



52

ITEM  11.



53

ITEM  11.



54

ITEM  11.



55

ITEM  11.



56

ITEM  11.



57

ITEM  11.



58

ITEM  12.



59

ITEM  13.



60

ITEM  13.



61

ITEM  13.



62

ITEM  13.



63

ITEM  13.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
Administration Division  Planning & Community Services Division 

Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Terra Ray, Engineer Tech II 

 DATE: July 10, 2019 

 SUBJECT: W. 1
st
 Street Reconstruction Project  

  Project # RC-000-3118 
  State Project # STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction to W. 1

st
 Street from Hudson Road to the Center/Franklin Street intersection. The 

project is in the final design phase, acquisitions of the necessary right of way needs are 
underway to meet the DOT and City’s funding years for construction. The road construction will 
take place in 2019-2020. This project includes a total reconstruction of the roadway from a four 
lane to a five lane facility. The project identifies the need for total acquisitions from three (3) 
properties and partial acquisitions from 68 properties. 
 
Attached are the Claims for Relocation Reimbursement for Parcel 30, 73 and 76. Staff 
recommends that the City Council state their support in approving the Claim for Relocation 
Reimbursements. 
 
 
 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 
 Chase Schrage, Principal Engineer 
 David Sturch, Planner III 
  

64

ITEM  14.



65

ITEM  14.



66

ITEM  14.



67

ITEM  14.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable  Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, EI, PhD 
 
 DATE: July 10, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: South Main Street Parking Lot Project 
  Project No. PL-159-3202 
  Bid Opening 
 
On Tuesday, July 9, 2019 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the South 
Main Street Parking Lot Project. A total of three (3) bids were received, with K. 
Cunningham Construction Company, Inc. the low bidder: 
 

 
Base Bid 

K. Cunningham Construction Co., Inc. $135,515.36 

Vieth Construction Corp. $136,873.70 

Lodge Construction Inc. $157,077.70 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $104,937.00. K. Cunningham Construction 
Company., Inc. of Cedar Falls, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of 
$135,515.36. Attached is a bid tab for your reference. 
 
Due to the time of year and contractor’s schedules the bids received were significantly 
higher than anticipated. As a result of the bids, we recommend acceptance of the lowest 
bid from K. Cunningham Construction Company., Inc. in the amount of $135,515.36. On 
August 5th, 2019, the Contract, Bonds and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for 
City Council approval. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
  
  

68

ITEM  15.



SOUTH MAIN STREET PARKING LOT ENGINEERING DIVISION
CITY PROJECT NO. PL - 159 - 3202 DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Bid Tab CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

Bid Opening: 2:00 p.m., Tuesday, July 9, 2019

ITEM UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL

NO. PRICE COST PRICE COST PRICE COST PRICE COST

1 TOPSOIL, ONSITE CY 191.0 25.00$         4,775.00$          12.00$         2,292.00$          12.00$         2,292.00$          20.00$         3,820.00$          

2 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, RPOADWAY, WASTE CY 645.0 12.00$         7,740.00$          16.00$         10,320.00$        16.00$         10,320.00$        22.00$         14,190.00$        

3 SUBGRADE PREPERATION SY 1177.0 6.00$           7,062.00$          2.50$           2,942.50$          2.50$           2,942.50$          4.00$           4,708.00$          

4 SUBGRADE, MODIFIED SY 1177.0 7.00$           8,239.00$          9.00$           10,593.00$        9.00$           10,593.00$        11.00$         12,947.00$        

5 GRANULAR SHOULDER STA 8.8 100.00$       880.00$             375.00$       3,300.00$          375.00$       3,300.00$          700.00$       6,160.00$          

6 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MINOR EA 1.0 1,000.00$    1,000.00$          550.00$       550.00$             550.00$       550.00$             1,200.00$    1,200.00$          

7 PAVEMENT, PCC, 6" SY 378.6 55.00$         20,823.00$        44.50$         16,847.70$        48.00$         18,172.80$        45.00$         17,037.00$        

8 PCC PAVEMENT WIDENING, 6" SY 505.5 55.00$         27,802.50$        57.25$         28,939.88$        61.00$         30,835.50$        58.00$         29,319.00$        

9 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT, HMA, 6" SY 145.9 45.00$         6,565.50$          92.25$         13,459.28$        96.00$         14,006.40$        115.00$       16,778.50$        

10 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY SY 90.0 10.00$         900.00$             10.00$         900.00$             10.00$         900.00$             22.00$         1,980.00$          

11 DRIVEWAY, PAVED, PCC, 7" SY 59.0 55.00$         3,245.00$          73.50$         4,336.50$          78.00$         4,602.00$          74.00$         4,366.00$          

12 SIGNAGE LS 1.0 1,500.00$    1,500.00$          250.00$       250.00$             275.00$       275.00$             300.00$       300.00$             

13 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORNE STA 41.7 50.00$         2,085.00$          35.00$         1,459.50$          40.00$         1,668.00$          36.00$         1,501.20$          

14 WET, RETROREFLECTIVE REMOVABLE TAPE MARKINGS STA 41.7 50.00$         2,085.00$          200.00$       8,340.00$          215.00$       8,965.50$          200.00$       8,340.00$          

15 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LENGENDS EA 1.0 100.00$       100.00$             120.00$       120.00$             130.00$       130.00$             125.00$       125.00$             

16 PAVEMENT MARKINGS REMOVED STA 39.6 50.00$         1,980.00$          120.00$       4,752.00$          130.00$       5,148.00$          120.00$       4,752.00$          

17 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1.0 3,500.00$    3,500.00$          7,500.00$    7,500.00$          2,700.00$    2,700.00$          7,000.00$    7,000.00$          

18 HYDRAULIC SEEDING, SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING AC 0.2 7,500.00$    1,125.00$          15,000.00$  2,250.00$          8,500.00$    1,275.00$          8,000.00$    1,200.00$          

19 RIP RAP, CLASS E TON 10.8 50.00$         540.00$             85.00$         918.00$             85.00$         918.00$             80.00$         864.00$             

20 SILT FENCE OR SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK LF 35.0 7.00$           245.00$             15.00$         525.00$             5.00$           175.00$             7.00$           245.00$             

21 SILT FENCE OR SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK, REMOVAL DEVICE LF 35.0 7.00$           245.00$             12.00$         420.00$             3.00$           105.00$             7.00$           245.00$             

22 MOBILIZATION LS 1.0 2,500.00$    2,500.00$          14,500.00$  14,500.00$        17,000.00$  17,000.00$        20,000.00$  20,000.00$        

$104,937.00 $135,515.36 $136,873.70 $157,077.70

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$104,937.00 $135,515.36 $136,873.70 $157,077.70

TOTAL WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT

TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY

K. Cunningham Const. Co., Inc Vieth Construction Corporation Lodge Construction Inc.

TOTAL STREET RECONSTRUCTION

TOTAL SANITARY WORK

Engineering Estimate

69

ITEM  15.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: July 11, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: Sands Addition 
  Contract for Completion of Improvements 
  Project No. SU – 173 – 3138 
 
The developer of the above-mentioned project, Jim Sands Construction, LLC, has 
requested Final Plat approval in order to proceed with the sale of lots in the 
development. VJ Engineering, the developer’s engineer, has submitted the estimate of 
remaining costs for completion of improvements. The developer has submitted a 
“Contract for Completion of Improvements” and established a performance bond in the 
amount of $20,664.00 to ensure completion of the project. A copy of the Final Plat is 
attached for your reference. 
  
The Engineering Division has reviewed the cost estimate for the remaining work and 
concur that the amount of the escrow account is adequate to complete the project.  The 
“Contract for Completion of Improvements” is based on the standard forms developed 
by our City Attorney. The developer has also provided a Maintenance Bond in the full 
amount of the public improvements that will be on file until final acceptance of the 
project by City Council. We recommend approval of the “Contract for Completion of 
Improvements”. 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development   
  

70

ITEM  16.



71

ITEM  16.



72

ITEM  16.



73

ITEM  16.



74

ITEM  16.



75

ITEM  16.



76

ITEM  16.



77

ITEM  16.



78

ITEM  16.



79

ITEM  16.



80

ITEM  16.



81

ITEM  16.



82

ITEM  16.



83

ITEM  16.



84

ITEM  16.



85

ITEM  16.



86

ITEM  16.



87

ITEM  16.



                  Department of Community Development  
                   
                    City of Cedar Falls 
                      220 Clay Street 
                      Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
                      Phone:  319-273-8600 
                      Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

 
To:    Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
From:   Lisa Ahern, Planner 1 
Date:  July 10, 2019 
Subject:   Waiting List for Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 
              
 
INTRODUCTION 
The Waiting List for the Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCV) was closed on September 1, 2018.  
At that time, there were 386 applications on file.   City Council passed a resolution to keep the list 
closed through July 31, 2019 in order to issue more vouchers and focus on serving existing 
participants.  
 
ANALYSIS 
The Housing Commission met on July 9, 2019 to review the status of the Waiting List. Closing the list 
achieved the desired outcome. It allowed more time for staff to process applications and issue new 
vouchers for those on the Waiting List.  151 applications have been processed from the Waiting List 
since it was closed.  As of June 30, 2019, there were 235 applicants remaining on the list.    Of these 
applicants, 27 are in the Preference 1 Group, 155 are in the Preference 2 Group and 53 are in the 
Preference 3 Group.  
 

  
By July 31, 2019 there will be no applicants remaining in the Preference 1 group. At this time, staff 
recommends re-opening the Waiting List for a period of six months, starting on August 6, 2019, and 
closing it again on January 31, 2020.  
 
Limiting the amount of time the Waiting List is open allows staff resources to be more efficiently 
directed to serving client needs. During the period when the list is open considerable staff time is 
spent helping people through the application process. When the list is closed, staff can focus more 
time issuing housing vouchers and helping people find suitable housing. Since the spring and summer 
months tends to be a busier time for people moving and seeking new housing, it makes sense for the 
waiting list to be closed during this time and during the fall and winter opening the list to new 
applicants.  
 

PREFERENCE DESCRIPTION APPLICATIONS 

Preference 1 
Elderly Households.  
Disabled Households. 
Families who Live/Work in Cedar Falls 

27 

Preference 2 All other Families 155 

Preference 3 Single individuals (non-elderly / non-disabled) 53 

88

ITEM  17.



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

 
 
If re-opened, applications will be received in person on Tuesdays between 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m.  
Persons with disabilities may have an application mailed to them if they request a Reasonable 
Accommodation.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Housing Commission recommends that the Waiting List for the HCV program open on August 6, 
2019 and close on January 31, 2020.   

89

ITEM  17.



RESOLUTION NO.     
 

RESOLUTION TO OPEN THE HOUSING CHOICE VOUCHER PROGRAM  
WAITING LIST ON AUGUST 6, 2019 

 
WHEREAS, the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) program (also known as Section 8) is a 

program of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  It is the government's 

major program for assisting very low-income families, the elderly, and the disabled to afford decent, 

safe, and sanitary housing in the private market, and  

 

WHEREAS, individuals apply for the program and are placed on a waiting list, and  

 

WHEREAS, applicants are contacted when their name comes to the top of the list and a final 

eligibility determination is made at that time for program admission, and   

  

WHEREAS, the Waiting List was closed September 1, 2018 and no more applications have 

been accepted since this time, and  

 

WHEREAS, by July 31, 2019 the Waiting List will have no more Preference 1 applicants 

remaining on the waiting list, and     

 

WHEREAS, the City seeks to serve Preference 1 applicants first which include persons who 

are elderly or disabled, and families who live and work in Cedar Falls.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA THAT: 

The Waiting List for the Housing Choice Voucher Program will reopen on August 6, 2019 and 

will remain open until January 31, 2020.  

 

ADOPTED this 15th day of July, 2019. 

 
     
             
      James P. Brown, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

90

ITEM  17.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, AICP, Planner II 

 DATE: July 11, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Sign review of property in the Central Business District Overlay 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
New signage on storefront 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Riverside Brothers, Inc. DBA Hurling Hatchet  

LOCATION: 
 

100 E 2nd Street, Suite 103 

 
PROPOSAL  
A new tenant and the property owner of 100 E 2nd 
Street are requesting a site plan review for a new wall 
sign and projecting sign at 100 E 2nd Street, Suite 103 
in the Central Business District Overlay Zoning District. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The petitioner proposes to install one new wall sign and 
one new projecting sign on the facade of 100 E 2nd 
Street for a new business, Hurling Hatchet, locating in 
Suite 103. The property is located directly east of the 
200 block of Main Street on the north side of E 2nd 
Street, see image to the right.  
 
This item requires review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council due to 
the fact that this property is located within the Central Business District (Section 26-189). The 
downtown district requires a building site plan review (i.e. design review) for any “substantial 
improvement” to an exterior façade, including new signs and awnings. A substantial 
improvement to properties in the CBD Overlay is defined in Section 26-189 (f) and reads as 
follows: 
 

"Substantial improvement" includes any new building construction within the overlay 
district or any renovation of an existing structure that involves any modification of the 
exterior appearance of the structure by virtue of adding or removing exterior windows or 
doors or altering the color or exterior materials of existing walls. All facade improvements, 

91

ITEM  18.



changes, alterations, modifications or replacement of existing facade materials will be 
considered a substantial improvement. Included in this definition are any new, modified or 
replacement awning structures or similar material extensions over the public sidewalk 
area. A substantial improvement also includes any increase or decrease in existing 
building height and/or alteration of the existing roof pitch or appearance.” 
  

Typically signage is not part of the review process unless the review is mandated by the 
Ordinance. In this case, when a new projecting sign is installed that overhangs the public right-
of-way the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council must review and approve the 
request. Not all signs are reviewed in this manner. If a sign or projecting sign is simply replaced, 
review of this level is not triggered and a permit can be issued with only staff level review. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The applicant is proposing to install a 4’ x 8’ flush mount 
wall sign and a 30’’ square blade sign to advertise the new 
tenant, Hurling Hatchet. Wall signs within the Central 
Business District cannot exceed ten percent of the total 
storefront area and all projecting signs shall not exceed 40 
square feet per sign face (Section 26-189 (j). The districts 
signage size requirements have been met. Both proposed 
signs will be placed on the south elevation facing E 2nd 
Street. Two goose neck lights will be used to illuminate the 
wall sign. The projecting sign will not be lighted. The wall 
sign will be located above the store’s entrance and the 
projecting sign will be placed next to the entrance 11 feet 
above the sidewalk and will project 2.5 feet into the right-of-
way, see images to the right.  All projecting signs within the Central Business 
District are required to be at least 10 feet above the sidewalk and cannot project 
further than half the width of the sidewalk that the storefront is located on or five feet, whichever 
is less (Section 26-189 (j)(2)). The sidewalk at this location is approximately 10 feet wide. The 
proposed placement of the signs meet city code. If approved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, this item will be placed on the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting. If the 
City Council approves this request, a sign permit will be issued for the new signs.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
No comments. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
7/10/2019 

Mardy Holst, Chair, introduced the item. Karen Howard presented the staff 
report. Commission agreed that the signage meets the signage regulations in 
the Downtown Overlay and voted 7-0 (Saul, Leeper absent) to recommend 
approval.  

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the submitted facade plan 
for 100 E 2nd Street, Suite 103. 
 
Attachments:    

Details of proposed signage 

92

ITEM  18.



93

ITEM  18.



94

ITEM  18.



95

ITEM  18.



96

ITEM  18.



97

ITEM  18.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor and Council  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 
  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: July 10, 2019 

SUBJECT:      Cherrywood Acres Minor Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Request to approve the Cherrywood Acres Minor Plat Case # MP19-001 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Anthony Runyan 

LOCATION:   
 

4114 High Street 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The property owner at 4114 High Street proposes a lot split to create a lot for a new residential 
dwelling at the southwest corner of High Street and Union Road. A minor plat is needed to split 
the original single lot into two lots.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Cherrywood Acres was created with large 
rural lots in 1960 when this 56 lot subdivision 
resided in the county. In 1971, the western 
and northern portions of Cedar Falls were 
annexed into the City which included 
Cherrywood Acres. The house at 4114 High 
Street was built in 1962. The property is 120 
feet wide (north/south) and 160 feet deep 
(east/west). The house is situated on the west 
half of the lot, facing north with a driveway 
onto High Street. There is approximately 100 
feet of yard area off the east side of the house. 
 
ANALYSIS 
4114 High Street is located in the R-1 Residence Zoning District. A single housing unit in R-1 
zoning is required to have a lot width of 75 feet and area of 9,000 square feet. The original lot is 
23,400 square feet in area. The Minor Plat proposes to create two lots: Parcel F (4114 High 

 

98

ITEM  19.



Street) will have an east/west width of 
107 feet and a north/south depth of 
120 feet with an area of 12,955 
square feet. Parcel G will have an 
east/west width of 92 feet and a 
north/south depth of 120 feet with an 
area of 10,441 square feet. 
 
The drawing to the right graphically 
depicts the lot split and building 
locations. The building setbacks in the 
R-1 district require a 30-foot front yard 
and a 30-foot rear yard area. The side 
yard areas are 10% of the width of the 
lot. A 25-foot building line was 
established on the plat to serve as a side yard setback along High Street. Since this is a newly 
created lot, the current R-1 standards must comply with a 30-foot front yard area as well as the 
remaining setback areas. The existing dwelling at 4114 High Street and the proposed dwelling 
on Parcel G satisfied the R-1 district setback standards. 
 
By applying the setbacks on this lot, the potential building area for a new dwelling and attached 
garage is approximately 1,968 square feet. The building envelope is 60’ north/south and 32.8’ 
east/west. This building area is similar in size to other dwellings in the neighborhood. The area 
of both lots will be half the size of the other lots in the neighborhood. The two parcels will still 
exceed the minimum R-1 lot area standards of 9,000 square feet. Both lots meet all zoning 
ordinance requirements if subdivided. 
 
At your last meeting, the Commission requested information regarding the potential for 
additional lot splits in Cherrywood Acres. After reviewing the original Cherrywood Acres plat, 
there appears to be only one additional lot that has the characteristics to meet the setback 
requirements for a lot split. However, extension of a street and other infrastructure would be 
necessary, which may prove cost prohibitive. This was a high level analysis based on the 
assumption that existing homes and garages would not be torn down to accomplish a lot split. It 
should also be noted that the City will not allow lots splits that would require new driveway curb 
cuts on to Union Road. By applying the R-1 setback standards, any new lot along with the 
existing dwelling must satisfy the 30-foot front yard and rear yard setback requirements. Also, 
the lots must be at least 100 feet in depth with a minimum lot area of 9,000 square feet. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including 
Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) 
personnel, has reviewed the 
proposed plat. The following items 
listed below are the technical 
comments for the development of 
this plat and proposed home. The 
solid lines on the plat represent the 
existing utility service locations and 
the dashed lines represent the 
proposed utility service lines. 

 

 

W
a
te

r 

G
a

s
 

S
a
n

it
a
ry

 

New Hydrant 

99

ITEM  19.



1. The existing underground electric line from the southeast corner of the lot to the existing 
house must be relocated and buried within the 10-foot utility easement along the south lot 
line. 

2. The existing 12” water main lies along the west side of Cherrywood Drive. The plat shows a 
new water main extension off the existing main extending to a hydrant located east of the 
existing driveway at 4114 High Street. According to the CFU and Fire Department policy for 
new development, the water main must be extended to the middle of the lot along High 
Street for the hydrant, as shown on the previous page. This will provide water service to both 
the existing dwelling at 4114 High Street and the proposed dwelling. Final fire hydrant and 
valve placement locations will be part of the construction review. 

3. Sanitary sewer service will be connected to the existing sewer on High Street. 
4. Gas service will be connected to the existing gas line on High Street. 
5. The Cherrywood Acres subdivision was developed with a rural roadway cross-section with 

no curb and gutter. There are ditches alongside the roadway that carry the stormwater 
through pipes under the driveways and in field tiles. The proposed driveway will have a 
culvert for the stormwater in the ditch. If the owner discovers a buried field tile during the 
construction of the home, that tile must be relocated and rerouted around the building’s 
foundation. 

6. The proposed driveway off of High Street must be at least 75 feet from the west edge of 
Union Road. 

7. There will be no access onto Union Road. 
 
The existing lot slopes from the 
southwest to the northeast. The 
ground elevation at the southwest 
corner of the proposed lot is 969’. 
This grade drops to 965’ near the 
northeast corner of the lot. All runoff 
will be directed to the ditch at the 
corner of Union Road and High 
Street. The finish grade around the 
proposed home must follow these 
drainage patterns. The grading of 
the property must be done so that it 
does not affect the adjacent lot or 
adjacent roadway. The existing 
ditch along High Street and Union 
Road must not be disturbed. 

 
The property is located outside the floodplain overlay district. 
 
A notice of this minor plat was mailed to the property owners/residents in the Cherrywood Acres 
subdivision on July 10, 2019.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
6/12/2019 

The first item of business was the Cherrywood Acres Minor Subdivision Plat. Chair 
Holst introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background information. He 
explained that the plat is located at the northwest corner of Union Road and 12th 
Street in the R-1 zoning district. He discussed lot and setback requirements, as well 
as utility needs, including water, electric, gas, sanitary sewer and drainage 

 

100

ITEM  19.



maintenance. This proposal satisfies R-1 lot standards and meets the required 
zoning ordinances. He explained that the item is just being presented at this time for 
discussion and comments.  
 
Tony Runyan (petitioner), 4114 High Street, stated that he would like to build a new 
home as his family is growing. He discussed to need compromises with issues with 
an issue with a fire hydrant. 
 
The following comments came from the property owners in the neighborhood.  

 Susie Sigworth at 1028 Cherrywood Drive. She noted her concern with two 
homes abutting her property as well as the loss of her view. She also stated that 
people outside of the 200’ proximity to Mr. Runyan’s property were not notified 
and she is concerned that many people in the area don’t know what is being 
planned.  

 Mark Sigworth at 1028 Cherrywood Drive. He discussed the proportional 
spacing in the area and potential congestion in the neighborhood. He doesn’t 
believe it aligns with the rest of the neighborhood. He also believes the field of 
view will be significantly reduced and doesn’t believe this plan aligns with the 
beautification plan for the City. He discussed potential water runoff issues.  

 Bruce Adkins at 4201 Newland Drive. He understands why Mr. Runyan would 
like to build a new home, but feels that the Deed Restrictions for the 
neighborhood may not allow for the proposed project. He also questioned 
whether there is a plan to create four lanes in that area of Union Road, as it 
would be too close to a house. 

 Abby Wood at 4213 Newland Drive. She stated that she and her husband share 
the same concerns about curb appeal and the precedent that would be set if the 
project is allowed. 

 Sam Runyan at 4110 W. 1st Street. He stated that the lot is unique to the area.  

 Mark Sigworth stated that the lot is not unique to the original lots from 1960.  

 Lisa Vry at 1017 Columbine Drive. Has a concern with stormwater drainage. 

 Delbert Carpenter at 1005 Cherrywood Drive. He stated he would really hate to 
see the family leave the neighborhood. He is a great neighbor and he 
understands why they would like to build a new house.  

 John Runchey at 920 Columbine Drive. He noted that it is a unique 
neighborhood and suggests considering tearing the house down that is 
currently there and rebuild in that location. He doesn’t want to see the 
neighborhood subdivided. 

 
The comment period ended and the commission provided some comments and 
questions. Ms. Prideaux asked about the Deed Restriction document and what kind 
of impact it would have on the decision. Mr. Sturch clarified that it is a private 
covenant between the neighbors and they would have to investigate and make a 
determination from their representation on whether it can be split.  
 
Mr. Holst asked about the setback requirements of this property in comparison to 
Mr. Sigworth’s property. It was clarified that they have the same requirements. Mr. 
Larson voiced concerns that there would not be much room to build. He doesn’t 
believe the proposal fits in that area, and would create more of an opportunity to 
create more lot splits. 
 
Mr. Leeper voiced concerns with how tight the lot will be, particularly if there is 
expansion to Union Road. He doesn’t believe there will be much changing the 
precedent as it is not possible in many locations. 
 

101

ITEM  19.



Ms. Saul asked why the City is asking for another hydrant and water main. Mr. 
Sturch explained that it is a service policy from CFU. Ms. Howard stated that at the 
next meeting questions could be addressed about precedence. Ms. Prideaux asked 
if water runoff could be discussed at the next meeting as well.  
 
Mr. Larson stated he is a big fan of separating old double lots and infill, however he 
doesn’t see how this particular lot will work.   
 
The Commission will discuss the item at the next Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting. 
 

Discussion/Vote 
6/26/2019 

Chair Holst introduced the Cherrywood Acres Minor Plat and Mr. Sturch provided 
background information. He noted that the property is in the R-1 Zoning District and 
provided lot and setback requirements, utility needs (water, electric, gas & sanitary 
sewer), and grading information. He discussed the potential for future lot splits and 
noted that there appears to be only one instance where it might be possible to split 
the lot and meet all other zoning requirements and in that case they would have to 
pave a new street segment. He also noted that new driveways would not be allowed 
along Union Road, which is an arterial street, so there would not be opportunities to 
split lots where the only frontage for a new lot would be Union Road.  He 
summarized other State and City codes and guidelines used in the decision making 
process. Ms. Howard addressed the question of why certain areas have to meet 
specific design standards and in this subdivision there are no design standards. She 
noted that the Pinnacle Prairie development was mentioned. That area is zoned 
MU, where conditions must be met to comply with the master plan, but in the R-1 
District, there are not specific design standards that apply. Mr. Sturch noted that 
notifications were sent out to property owners in a broad area of the surrounding 
subdivision. Staff recommends approval. 
 
Chair Holst asked if any of the Commission members have been approached and 
need to disclose any conversations. Mr. Wingert stated that he was not at the last 
meeting and had a conversation with Mr. Runyan about what he wanted to do for 
the plan on the house. 
 
Tony Runyan, 4114 High Street, (applicant) stated that he is trying to build a home 
for his family and that he meets all ordinances and codes and has met all the 
technical comments. 
 
There were several neighbors that addressed the Commission and a summary of 
their comments are as follows: 
 

 Chad Schoneman, 4307 Cherrywood, stated that he believes that character 
of this proposed subdivision does not fit with the existing Cherrywood Acres 
subdivision. He asked about the private covenant agreement and stated that 
it is still active and wanted to know if staff would consider requesting the 
Commission or Council require a Statement of Character be added to Lot 
11. 
 
Mr. Sturch explained that the Deed of Dedication does outline the 
developer’s wishes of how they want to set up a subdivision, but it is up to 
each individual subdivision/developer to decide how they would like it set up. 
Ms. Howard added that the City does not enforce private covenants as they 
are a private matter, as they are not related to City requirements. 

 

102

ITEM  19.



 Susie Sigworth, 1028 Cherrywood Drive, is concerned that a new house that 
would block their view to the north. She stated that there are lots large 
enough to split and does not want to see that happen, and feels that if one 
person is allowed to split their lot it will become an issue. 
 

 Mark Sigworth, 1028 Cherrywood Drive, asked about the water drainage 
around the proposed house and along Union Road. The grade along Union 
Road would force the water to the northeast corner of the lot. He also stated 
that he doesn’t believe the house will fit with the character of the area. 
 

 Del Carpenter, 1005 Cherrywood Drive, stated his support for Mr. Runyan 
and his project. He feels that the neighborhood is known for being 
welcoming and encouraging and would like to keep him in the neighborhood. 
 

 Kirk Anderson, 919 Cherrywood Drive, asked that assurance is provided that 
whatever tile that is disturbed will be replaced or fixed by the City. 
 

 Carol Hansaker, 1120 Cherrywood Drive, doesn’t believe it fits in with the 
neighborhood. She feels that the placement of the home will be too close to 
Union Road and the noise from the traffic can be a concern for the resident 
living there. 
 

 Mr. Runyan came forward again and stated that he has had neighbors 
contact him in support of the project but they are concerned with the 
backlash from neighbors. He also doesn’t feel that his home would be 
considered “tiny” and believes it will bring property values up. 

 
Mr. Leeper asked whether it was staff’s opinion that the character of the 
development clause doesn’t really apply here. Mr. Sturch explained that the 
character is tied into the idea of the intent of the development, so if there are 
additional factors that the Commission would like to add into the Deed of Dedication 
those are things the Commission may add as long as they meet the R-1 Zoning 
standards and are consistent with the plat requirements. Ms. Howard advised that 
the Commission is free to discuss the character of the development but they need 
to state clearly why a specific condition should be imposed on these particular lots 
versus other lots and if they vote to deny the project, they need to articulate their 
reasons why it doesn’t meet the standards and what it is about the character that 
warrants a vote for denial. 
 
Mr. Wingert asked about a comment made about the Commission’s opportunity to 
change covenants and wanted clarification as to whether they can change such an 
agreement. Ms. Howard stated that the private covenants are a private agreement 
between the developer and the current homeowners and the Commission cannot 
change them. He also asked if the covenants automatically reinstate at the time of 
expiration. Ms. Howard noted that the homeowners should consult their private 
attorneys as this is a private matter. 
 
Mr. Holst noted his struggle with the decision due to the character and lot sizes. Ms. 
Adkins agreed with Mr. Holst’s statement. 
 
Ms. Saul looked at the properties and noted that in terms of line of sight and view, 
she saw other properties in the neighborhood that have detached double garages 
that impede views, so didn’t see how this would be different.  
 

103

ITEM  19.



Mr. Larson stated that any water issues can be addressed and maintained and 
doesn’t feel there is a problem. While he did have concern with the width of the 
building, there doesn’t appear to be anything that would impede the development 
that would allow the Commission to intervene. He also noted that he drove by and 
saw how dense the trees are in the area and didn’t feel it would be a sore thumb. 
 
Mr. Wingert stated that the owner has personal property rights and felt that the way 
he was treated by the other neighbors was uncalled for. 
 
Mr. Holst noted that while he does understand the things that may seem to be 
undesirable, he also does not feel that there is a lot of opportunity to subdivide 
further lots in the area. 
 
The discussion ended and the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended 
approval of the Cherrywood Acres Minor plat based on staff recommendations.  

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the Cherrywood Acres 
Minor Plat with the following conditions: 
 

1. Extend the water main across the north lot line for the placement of the hydrant east 
of the existing driveway. 

2. The existing home must be connected to the water main. 
3. Any comments or direction specified by the City Council. 
4. Conform to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements. 

 

104

ITEM  19.



105

ITEM  19.



106

ITEM  19.



107

ITEM  19.



108

ITEM  19.



109

ITEM  19.



110

ITEM  19.



Department of Community Development 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
 
Recently, within the last week and outside a 200’ proximity to 4114 High St.,  the 
residents of Cherrywood Acres subdivision have been made aware of a minor 
plat submission on the SE corner of High St. and Union Rd.   
We are a close community where families share the sentiments of open spaces 
and neighborly harmony. 
 
I, along with many of the residents, feel strongly this minor plat does not align 
with our Community.  We feel so because: 

o Home spacing too close 
• It at takes away from the character and feel of the Community as 

whole.  
• It changes the welcome feel of open spaces when entering the 

community.   
o It is disruptive to the field of view for nearest residents. 
o Does not align with Cedar Falls Beautification initiative. 
o It is a double standard vs home improvements, modifications to or new 

residential out buildings and recently added business districts. 
o And we also believe it establishes a precedent that it is acceptable to 

carve away green space for personal profit.   
 

In the following pages I will attempt to lay out these concerns in the best 
manner I can  with the tools available to me.  All dimensions are for reference 
only, created using Back Hawk County Real Estate mapping measurement tool, 
approximate and have no scale, but are of reasonable layout and tolerances of 
roughly +/- 1’ and +/- 2° to sufficiently communicate the concerns. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Susie (Mark) Sigwarth 

1 

111

ITEM  19.



Home Spacing. 
 
Overall, the homes are spaced evenly with proportional yard sizes. 
Putting a home in such a small space does not align with the theme of the 
Community. 
 
Those entering on High St. will have the first impression of a congested 
neighborhood. 

2 

112

ITEM  19.



Home spacing has a pleasant open feel.  Neighbors are close enough its inviting 
to walk over and say, “Hi”, yet far enough it doesn’t seem congested or lacking 
privacy. 
 
Distances are based on what I feel is a straight line walking path.  What gets 
encountered first. 

3 

N 

113

ITEM  19.



4 

N 

Home spacing has a pleasant open feel.  Neighbors are close enough its inviting 
to walk over and say, “Hi”, yet far enough it doesn’t seem congested or lacking 
privacy. 
 
Distances are based on what I feel is a straight line walking path.  What gets 
encountered first. 

114

ITEM  19.



5 

N 

Home spacing has a pleasant open feel.  Neighbors are close enough its inviting 
to walk over and say, “Hi”, yet far enough it doesn’t seem congested or lacking 
privacy. 
 
Distances are based on what I feel is a straight line walking path.  What gets 
encountered first. 

115

ITEM  19.



With only a 19.7’ distance, these two homes are congested.  Looks  uninviting 
when entering on High St.  The first impression of the community is tightly 
packed and not much privacy.   
 
* This does not align with the rest of the neighborhood. 

6 

N 

116

ITEM  19.



Field of View. 
 
Sight origin NE corner of Sigwarth home. Other origins i.e. home center will net 
same result.  Accuracy is selection dependent of mapping tool. (see sheet 1) 
 
Current field of view for the Sigwarths.  Approximately 126°.  
 
Considering the trees in this area it is slightly restricted, but they have NE field 
of view which includes the intersection of High St. and Union and across Union 
into the Pheasant Ridge golf course landscape. 

7 

N 

117

ITEM  19.



Starting from the SE setback origin of minor plat proposal, it is approximately 
a 34° reduction in field of view.  Minor plat dimensions taken from and 
derived from minor plat proposal. 
 
The view of High street entrance is eliminated along with large amount of the 
Pheasant Ridge green space. 

8 

N 

118

ITEM  19.



The ~34° does not take into account the small wedge piece (yellow) created 
from the existing home and SE origin and plat setback. 
 
Resultant new field of view is ~92° 
 
Or rather a ~27 % reduction.  This is a very significant amount. 
 
* Since when did neighbors become disregarded? 

9 

N 

119

ITEM  19.



Beautification initiative. 
 
Setbacks from Union Rd. 
 
I believe this distance has a significant effect on community feel within the 
city.  Union Rd having the higher rate of traffic vs. Cherrywood Dr. 
 

10 

N 

12th Street 
120

ITEM  19.



Outbuilding omitted. 
 
It is the flow of homes  that is important  Homes are what give the 
neighborhood its “feel”. 

11 

N 

12th Street 

121

ITEM  19.



12 

Outbuilding omitted. 
 
It is the flow of homes  that is important  Homes are what give the 
neighborhood its “feel”. 

N 

122

ITEM  19.



With only a 50’ setback, additional home will have an awkward feel and 
distract from the overall lines while passing by on Union Rd. 
 
People who are attentive to communities will notice and mentally react with, 
“That’s a weird place for a house.” 
 
*  This does not align with the beautification of cedar falls initiative, like 
the removal of power poles does. 

13 

N 

123

ITEM  19.



14 

Looking south on Union Rd. from 12th along West side of Union.   
Clean lines, consistent home distance from Union Rd. 
 
Sheds and outbuildings not taken into account. 

124

ITEM  19.



15 

Looking north on Union Rd. from CFU public works along West side of Union.   
Clean lines, consistent home distance from Union Rd. 
 
Sheds and outbuildings not taken into account. 

125

ITEM  19.



16 

Looking south on Union Rd. from CFU public works along West side of Union.   
Clean lines, consistent home distance from Union Rd. 
 
Sheds and outbuildings not taken into account. 

126

ITEM  19.



17 

Looking north on Union Rd. from CFU public works along West side of 
Union.   
Clean lines, consistent home distance from Union Rd. 
 
Sheds and outbuildings not taken into account. 
 
Photo shop in a stick home to convey intent, line appeal is interrupted. 
 
* This does not align with Cedar Falls beautification initiative. 

127

ITEM  19.



18 

As an established community, the layout and proportions, its curb appeal, scenery 
and lot sizes have been honored creating a very desirable place to live.  The layout 
of this community is fundamental to the property values and residents quality of 
life. 
 
As the Prairie Parkway district was being established along Greenhill Rd. a fellow 
community member was in attendance of a city hall meeting where the plans 
were being highly scrutinized.  The scrutiny included size and shape of street 
lamps to the types of buildings’ siding used and what colors.  All to create a traffic 
(curb) appeal, prevent congestion,  and create theme harmony in the district. 
 
This minor plat takes away from all those things,.  It reduces curb appeal by 
disrupting home lines.  It takes away from the harmony of the neighborhood buy 
creating two homes with visually tiny yards and crowding them very close in 
proximity to one another.  It is disruptive to neighbors standard of living by taking 
away from their field of vision. 
 
• Why is it acceptable to erode an established community by holding it to a 

lower standard of community harmony?   
• Shouldn’t the same standard of harmony, proportions and curb appeal apply? 

 
From the technical comments of the June 12, 2019 Agenda, “5. The existing lot 
slopes from the Southwest to the Northeast.  The grading of the property must be 
done so that it does not affect the adjacent lot or adjacent roadway.” 
 
• Is adjacent specific to parcel F of lot 11 or inclusive of both parcel F and lot 12? 
• What documentation is to be required that proper grading has been 

performed and meets requirements? 
• What is the definition of “affect’? 

• Pooling water? 
• Stream formation? 
• Basement water? 

• Who gets to have the final decision on whether or not an affect occurred? 
 

128

ITEM  19.



19 

Through social media Mr. Runyan has been commented, “The city and my 
engineer have looked into it (minor plat drawing) and approved our proposal.”  
While this is true, does it make right?   
 
• Is carving away every morsel of land for profit the direction people should be 

taking? 
• Is it now or becoming acceptable to disregard our neighbors?  
• Have we lost sight of what it means to be a good neighbor? 

 
It could be debated that by rejecting this minor plat the residents are also acting 
in an un-neighborly manner.  But is this really so, when there are so many lots 
for sale in all areas of Cedar Falls to develop with homes?   
 
Why destroy something good? 
 
Why generate friction between neighbors? 
 

 
Shouldn’t we in fact be trying to preserve such a harmonious and wonderful 

community ? 
 
 
 
 

129

ITEM  19.



On Jun 24, 2019, at 11:21 AM, frje Echeverria wrote: 

from frje and Pam Echeverria 
4213 Cherrywood Dr. 
 
As residents of of Cherrywood Acres for 32 years we urge the Cedar Falls Planning and 
Zoning Commission and the Cedar Falls City Council to deny the Tony Runyon request 
to divide his Cherrywood Acres lot for the building of a second house on that lot.  
 
We would like to amplify and add to the points raised at the June 12th public meeting on 
the Runyon request.  
1.  The Cherrywood neighborhood has a special character of lot and residence size. 
The Runyon proposal would undermine the consistency of spaciousness of ample size 
of houses and lots ranging from 23 to 24 thousand square feet.  At  10,500 square feet, 
the proposed lot would be less than one half the size of existing lots in the 
neighborhood.   
2.  We are concerned that, if granted, this diminution of lot size and increase of housing 
density will invite subsequent partings out of lots and subsequent construction of 
smaller homes in the future. 
3.  Already run off and flood management at the location are issues. 
4.  Proximity of the proposed dwelling to Union Road raises the concern of eventual 
demolishing of the home if and when Union Road is widened. This would add 
significantly to the to the City's expenses for reconstruction of Union Road.    
5.  If a home were to be constructed on the proposed smaller lot, would the proximity of 
the dwelling to Union Road compromise visibility for vehicles leaving and entering the 
neighborhood at High Street neighborhood entrance? 
6.  We worry that Mr. Runyon, as a realtor and builder, may already be planning or will 
come to plan further purchases in Cherrywood Acres with the intention of downsizing 
lots and increasing dwelling density. Or even, that he will move toward rental of the 
dwelling he now proposes, as well as those he may plan to purchase or build in the 
neighborhood.  
 
Cherrywood Acres is and has been primarily a neighborhood of homeowners. 
 

130

ITEM  19.



6-24-19 
Mr. Runyun, The attached letter was given to us 
yesterday.We DONT agree with any of what this letter 
says and we have no problem with your proposed plans. 
We feel you should know that one of the people passing 
out the letter lives at 1120 Columbine Dr. FYI: Last fall 
these people moved an air conditioned "tiny house" (not 
allowed by city code) into their backyard and are workinq 
to make it permanent. Their son lives in it now. These 
same people are breaking the city vehicle operation laws 
on a daily basis by driving a white golf cart on public 
streets all through the neighborhood all hours of the day 
and night. If these people are so concerned with the 
"unique look and feel of Cherrywood" how is it ok to have 
an unsightly out of code tiny house stacked next to a 
lawn shed . Good luck with your endeavors. 

------------·- 

-- 
:) 

131

ITEM  19.



,, . 
f 
' I 
I 
' 

I 
H 

I 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
' 

I 
I 
f 

! 

-� ...... - • .... 

. - .::, . ·. - �- 

,A.s many of you know, Cherrywood resident, Tony Runyan has 
asked the city to split his lot at 4114 High St. so he can build an 
additional house on his property. A handful of neighbors were 
mailed a notice a few weeks ago and again this past Saturday. A 
few more were notified through personal Facebook messages. 
We want to make sure that all of the residents of Cherrywood are 
aware of this proposed plat change even -if · they didn't "receive 
notification from the city. An initial meeting was already held with 
Planning and Zoning un June 12th and approximately 20 
Cherrywood residents attended and shared our concerns. You 
can view that meeting online at 

https:ljwww.cedarfalls.com/852/Public-Meeting-Agendas-With-Video - 
click on 6/12/19. 

The concerns raised by residents of Cherrywood included: 

• This proposed change would change the "look and feel" of 
Cherrywood. A new 2-story house won't "fit" in Cherrywood 
or look right as the houses line up down Union road. 

e This would set a precedence for the splitting of more lots in 
Cherrywood (ex: more realtors/buyers buying property in our 
neighborhood with plans to split lots for revenue.) 

• Drainage issues at High and Union where we already have 
extremely fu!! ditches \:Vhen it rains. 

e The likelihood of adding lanes to Union Rd in the future 
would lead to the city buying back the house to make room 
for those possible changes. 

.. � ........ � 
; ... ,. - .. 

132

ITEM  19.



�. 

At the meeting on the 12th, Mr. Runyan shared that he wants to 
build a larger home for his family; however, it appears that the 
space he will have to build on will allow for a floorplan as small or 
smaller than his current house. Mr. Runyan is a realtor and a 
builder and our concern is that he will build at this site and then 
leave the neighborhood, leaving Cherrywood with changes that 
shouldn't have happened in the first place. '.fi;sr� ·.'"' �-· ::Lt=:,!' 

>·'.::··_·. ,·.·:·;·_.-·, :·.· · · ·; .. · .. .,:-- .- ... .- ·;.".�,-- ···,:·;,,.1<",'::::r::"G: We want to keep the ., a , ;:. , ·.., ·- • , . . c, 1/- - "' ._.. ... ..__ .1.. � � � - L -.:u,.::: 

uniqueness that makes Cherrywood the neighborhood that it is. 
This week is our last chance to make our concerns known to 
Planning and Zoning. in addition to coming to the meeting, if you 
could email or call council members (listed below) this week that 
would also be very helpful. Thank you so much. 

Mayor Jim Brown rrm.brnwn@cedarfalls.com 319-268-5118 

Mark Miller n1al,n1{QJc-u.net 319-266-5653 

__ 
I 

.: _'_ --�-·Susan deBuhr susan.clebuhr@cedarfalls.com 319-277-897 4 

I Daryl Kruse 1'<ruse0;1Councr!@aol.com 319-277.:.1100 
I 
I I Tom Blanford Tcn1.8l2rn'orc:cwcedarfaHs.com 319-269-815.i 
I 

I Frank Darrah wfd@c7u.net 319-290-0381 

Rob Green rqreencf@:_mail.com 319-804-8847 

David Weiland daveshgr@ ft net. 319-266-4300 

if you have any questions about this letter or proposed changes, feei free to 
call: 319-404-1480. 

- ---- ·------- ------ --- 133

ITEM  19.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 
  Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: July 10, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Chrisbro Subdivision Preliminary Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve the Chrisbro Subdivision Preliminary Plat. Case #PP19-008 
 

PETITIONER: Chrisbro III Inc. 
 

LOCATION: 
 

The property is located on 12.18 acres of land at the northwest corner of 
Nordic Drive and Commerce Drive 
 

 

PROPOSAL 
The petitioner owns the 12.18 acre parcel at the northwest corner of Nordic Drive and 
Commerce Drive. The proposed subdivision will divide the existing lot into four commercial lots.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The Lockard Pines subdivision was created in the summer of 2003. This subdivision is located 
at the northwest corner of Highway 58 and W. Ridgeway Avenue. Over the years, commercial 
development has expanded in this area, which includes the Super 8 Motel, Kwik Star, Farm 
Credit Services and Comfort Suites. One of the remaining lots in this subdivision was purchased 
by the petitioner in the spring of 2011. A site plan for a new Hilton hotel was reviewed by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council in 2011. In the fall of 2017, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council reviewed and approved a site plan for a conference center 
addition to the existing Hilton Garden Inn and a site plan for a second hotel on the property. 
 
The petitioner intends to split the existing 12.18 acre parcel into four (4) commercial lots and two 
(2) tracts for stormwater management. Lot 1 is reserved for the existing Hilton Garden Inn and 
Conference Center, Lot 2 is for the second hotel and Lots 3 & 4 will be developed for a 
commercial use. Site plan review for Lots 3 & 4 will be brought before the Planning and Zoning 
Commission at a later date. The proposed Chrisbro Subdivision is essentially a re-plat of Lot 3 
of the Lockard Pines Addition. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The petitioner, Chrisbro Inc. proposes to plat 12.18 acres of land at the northwest corner of 
Nordic Drive and Commerce Drive. The plat includes four commercial lots and two tracts for 

134

ITEM  20.



stormwater management. The property is located in the HWY-1 commercial zoning district. Any 
development on these lots requires site plan review by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and City Council. The site plan review process was completed for the two hotel projects on Lots 
1 and 2. The future development for Lots 3 and 4 will be brought before the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council at a later time. 
 
Tracts A and B are reserved for stormwater detention for all the lots. Chrisbro will own these 
tracts and will be responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of these basins. There are no 
public improvements needed for these lots and all utility connections are private from the 
property line to the building. The Hilton Garden Inn is currently served with a 24-foot wide 
driveway from Nordic Drive and Commerce Drive. Access to both hotels and the future 
commercial businesses on Lots 3 and 4 will utilize these driveways. 
 
The HWY-1 zoning district requires a 20-foot setback along Nordic Drive and Commerce Drive 
and along the north and west side of the plat. The current hotel on Lot 1 and the proposed hotel 
on Lot 2 satisfy these setback requirements. There are no setbacks required along the interior 
driveways and access ways into the site. The setback along the north and west side of the plat 
include some steep slopes that were created during the grading of the site. The property owner 
has maintained these sloped areas in turf grass and mows it on a regular basis. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, gas 
and communication services are available to the site. The developer will be responsible for 
extending the utility services to the proposed development. All utilities are in place for the Hilton 
Garden Inn. The electric and fiber optics extend off the north side of the building and travel 
along the north property line to Nordic Drive. The water service extends off the north side of the 
hotel and travels around the new convention center addition to the driveway and out to Nordic 
Drive. The sanitary sewer extends off the south side of the hotel and travels southward to 
Commerce Drive. The storm water is collected in the existing parking lots and flow into the inlets 
around the parking lot and driveways and empty into the detention basins identified as Tract A 
and B. The proposed hotel on Lot 2 will extend their utilities to the south into the existing lines 
along Commerce Drive. The stormwater for the second hotel will be collected in the proposed 
parking lot and transferred via sewer to the detention basin on Tract A. Additional utility 
connections for Lots 3 and 4 will be reviewed at a later date when those site plans are submitted 
to the City.   
 
The property is located outside of the designated 100-year floodplain.   
 
The platting documents including the Deed of Dedication, City Council resolution forms and a 
plat fee have been submitted. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
6/26/2019 

The Planning and Zoning Commission considered the Chrisbro Subdivision 
Preliminary Plat. Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided 
background information. He explained that the property is located at the northwest 
corner of Nordic Drive and Commerce Drive. This plat will accommodate the 
existing and future commercial development of this 12 acre parcel. Staff 
recommends approval of the plat with conformance to all City staff 
recommendations and requirements as well as any comments or direction from the 
Commission. 

135

ITEM  20.



  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the Chrisbro Subdivision 
Preliminary Plat.  

136

ITEM  20.



137

ITEM  20.



138

ITEM  20.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 
  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: July 11, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Sands Addition Final Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: Request to approve the Sands Addition Final Plat 

 
PETITIONER: Jim Sands - owner; VJ Engineering 

 
LOCATION: 
 

The property is located on 10.78 acres of land situated near the northeast 
corner of Greenhill Road and Highway 58 
 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The petitioner has been working on a 21 lot residential subdivision on 10.78 acres of land off the 
Greenhill Road. This subdivision includes a new public new street, James Drive that extends 
northerly off of Greenhill Road to a cul-de-sac. The Sands Addition preliminary plat was 
reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and approved by the City Council in the 
spring of 2017.   
 
BACKGROUND 
This 10.78 acre property was purchased by Jim Sands in the summer of 2016. He is proposing 
a new residential subdivision along Greenhill Road. This property is situated along the east side 
of the Cedar Prairie Recreational Trail. There is an existing tree line on the property that 
separates the trail from the proposed residential lots. Also, this property is in close proximity to 
the Highway 58 and Greenhill Road intersection. This intersection is under study by the city of 
Cedar Falls and the Iowa DOT for a future interchange. Funding is not allocated at this time, but 
the developer and future property owners must be aware of this pending project for a new 
interchange at this intersection sometime in the future.    
 
ZONING 
The property is zoned R-1, single family residential, which permits one and two family dwellings. 
The developer plans to construct single family dwellings in this subdivision. The lot requirements 
in the R-1 district include a minimum lot area of 9,000 ft² with a minimum lot width of 75 feet. 
Minimum required building setbacks are 30 feet for front and side yards abutting a street, 30-
foot rear yard setback and side yard building setbacks of not less than 10% of the lot width.  

139

ITEM  21.



ANALYSIS 
It is proposed to create 21 residential lots on the 10.78 acre property. The majority of the lots 
have widths of 80 feet with standard lot areas of 14,000 ft² to 23,000 ft².  The plat shows a 
30-foot front yard setback and a 50-foot setback around the cul-de-sac. The rear yard setbacks 
will be 30 feet and the side yard setback will equal 10% of the lot width. These building setbacks 
conform to the R-1, residential zoning district standards. 
 
There is one cul-de-sac street included in the proposed plat. A new street, James Drive, will 
extend northeasterly off of Greenhill Road approximately 900 feet. This will be a 31-foot wide 
street in a 60-foot public right of way. The cul-de-sac will have a 50 foot radius which is large 
enough for city vehicles and fire trucks to make the turnaround. All lots will have access onto 
James Drive. With the exception of the proposed street, there will be no direct access onto 
Greenhill Road. 
 
Cul-de-sacs shall not exceed 600 feet in length except in unusual circumstances. This property 
is bounded by the existing development along S. Main Street and the recreational trail and 
University property on the west. The only access will be provided from Greenhill Road and the 
number of lots/dwelling units is limited. The first 90 feet James Drive is located in the Greenhill 
Road right of way. There are no lots in this section of James Drive. The remaining 810 feet 
provides access to the proposed 21 residential lots. The street is wide enough and the 
turnaround at the north end of James Drive will support this 900 foot long cul-de-sac. At the time 
of the preliminary plat, the City Engineer evaluated this cul-de-sac and approved its length 
based on the aforementioned conditions.  
 
The Deed of Dedication in association with the plat submittal is straightforward. The Deed 
language is fairly limited and it outlines the requirements for the developer and restricts the 
development of each lot in accordance with the R-1 residential standards found in the Zoning 
Ordinance. The development of this subdivision is limited to single family dwellings. There is a 
provision in the Deed of Dedication for the installation of a 4-foot wide public sidewalk across 
the entire frontage of any lot at the time when a new house is under construction. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, gas 
and communication services are available to the site. The developer will be responsible for 
extending the utility services to the proposed development. The easements identified on the plat 
satisfy CFU requirements. 
 
A storm water detention plan has been reviewed and approved. The storm water generated 
from this subdivision will be transferred to an area wide detention basin located at the northwest 
corner of the subdivision. The property is approximately 10.78 acres in area. 9.34 acres will 
drain to the northwest corner of the site into the detention basin while the remaining 1.44 acres 
will drain to the southwest as its current situation. Off-site water will also route through this 
subdivision to the detention pond. This pond is designed to account for the 100-year event and 
release the stormwater at a 2 year pre-development rate. From here the water will be released 
under the adjacent recreational trail and into Dry Run Creek. Therefore, the entire site will have 
a net discharge rate in compliance with the Cedar Falls stormwater detention requirements. 
Drainage easements are provided along the north and west edge of the site to channel the 
water into the proposed detention basin. A maintenance and repair agreement has been 
submitted to the City Engineering office for acceptance with the final plat by the City Council. 
 

140

ITEM  21.



The sanitary sewer will be extended to the limits of the plat near the east lot line of Lot 13 and 
Lot 18. This sanitary sewer is intended to be extended to the east to provide sewer service to 
the properties along S. Main Street. The adjacent property owners will be responsible to connect 
into the sanitary sewer at a future date when their existing septic systems needs upgrading or 
replacement. 
 
The City’s Subdivision Ordinance outlines the requirements pertaining to Subdivision Plats. A 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat represents a “conceptual development plan” which the City must 
review and evaluate to insure compliance with all City regulations. Issues related to zoning 
regulations, utility easement provision, street locations and alignments and other factors are all 
subject to review and approval by City staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission and the 
City Council. Following Preliminary Plat approval by the City Council, the developer is free to 
begin installing the necessary public improvements (i.e. streets, sewers, waterlines, etc.) as 
indicated on the plat. 
 
A Final Subdivision Plat formalizes the Preliminary Plat and authorizes the developer to begin 
selling lots and to begin building on the newly created lots. Normally a Final Subdivision Plat 
cannot be approved until all of the required public improvements have been installed and 
completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. A Final Plat can be “expedited” prior to full 
completion and acceptance of public improvements provided that the developer posts a cash 
bond or escrow agreement with the City Engineering Division which serves as a financial 
guarantee that all the improvements will be installed in a timely fashion. 
 
The public infrastructure has been installed and there are some outstanding items to complete 
as part of this subdivision. Final grading, seeding and removing the earthen berms from the 
preliminary grading must be completed before final acceptance of the subdivision by the City 
Council. The developer will provide a performance bond to complete the remaining 
improvements. 
 
The property is located outside of the designated 100-year floodplain.   
 
The platting documents, City Council resolution forms and a plat fee of $300.00 have been 
submitted. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/ Vote 
7/10/2019 

Chair Holst introduced this item and asked staff to present the Sands Addition 
Final Plat. Mr. Sturch provided some background information. This plat includes 
the development of approximately 10 acres of land along the east side of the 
Cedar Prairie Recreational Trail. This property is located in an R-1 district with 
access onto Greenhill Road. The plan is to develop 21 residential lots for single 
family homes on a new cul-de-sac street. He summarized the storm water 
detention requirements and the extension of the sanitary sewer to the plat and 
near the eastern edge of the development. 
 
Staff requested a 20-foot utility easement along the eastern edge of the plat for 
grading purposes in the event that a sanitary sewer is extended to the east. The 
developer’s engineer, Mr. Wendell Lupkis stated that this easement was not 
identified on the preliminary plat. After the preliminary plat was approved, the 
developer installed the necessary public infrastructure including two sanitary sewer 
extensions to the easterly border of the plat. These two sewer extensions can be 
extended to the neighboring properties located east of the plat to connect into the 

141

ITEM  21.



sanitary sewer at a later date. If the easement was on the preliminary plat, other 
design considerations and lot adjustments would have been made at that time 
before the infrastructure was installed. The developer, Mr. Sands requested that 
the 20’ easement not be included on the plat in order to allow the future property 
owners to install landscaping and fencing up to the property line and not have to 
worry about removing those improvements in the event that a sanitary sewer is 
installed on the adjacent property.  
 
The Commission discussed this matter in great detail. Mr. Larsen and Mr. Wingert 
believes that there is plenty of room on the adjacent properties to accommodate 
the grading, trenching and installation of a future sanitary sewer without 
interrupting the lots in the Sands Addition. They stated that the easement was not 
on the preliminary plat and wanted to know why staff changed their minds to 
require the easement. Mr. Sturch indicated that the sewer will be located outside 
the plat and the easement will allow and grading or trenching work to be 
accomplished. Mrs. Prideaux asked about the future development along S. Main 
Street and how far would the sewer extend to the north. Mr. Lupkis indicated that 
the elevation drops north of the Sands Addition and the sewer would come from 
another direction. Staff suggested that this matter be deferred to the next P&Z 
meeting in order to discuss this with the engineering department. The developer 
requested a vote at this time since this approval is time sensitive. 
 
The discussion ended and the Commission made a motion to recommend 
approval of the Sands Addition without the 20-foot easement along the eastern 
edge of the plat. The motion was approved with a 5-2 vote.  

 
  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Additional consideration of the 20-foot sanitary sewer was reviewed and a determination was 
made that a future sewer can be extended off the existing sewer in the Sands Addition without 
the need to grade or trench the lots in the Sands Addition. Therefore, the Community 
Development Department recommends approval of the Sands Addition Final Plat that does not 
include a 20-foot utility easement along the easterly border of the plat. 
 

142

ITEM  21.



D
ry

R
u
n

C
re

ek
(S

)

Industrial
Park

University of
Northern Iowa

Paw
Park

Greenhill
Park

Wild Rye Way

Bluegrass Ct

D
a

lla
s
 D

r

P
ra

ir
ie

P
k
w

y

M
elendy Ln

Parsley Dr

S
La

w
n

R
d

Bergstrom Blvd

Westgate Ave

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

Kael Trl

Cordoba Ave

Alvarado Ave
S

te
w

a
rt

L
n

C
e

lt
ic

 C
t

P
a
n

th
e

r 
L
n

E
s
ta

te
 D

r

Heritage Rd

Stanwood Dr

B
o
u

ld
e
r 

D
r

T
h
y
m

e
R

d

Q
u
e
sa

da
Ct

Erik Rd

Ashw
or

th
D
r

Rosemary Dr

T
u
c
s
o

n
 D

r

Algonquin Dr

Lilac LnColorado Rd

Bluebell Rd

Amelia Dr

O
re

lla
n
a

A
v
e

Austin W
ay

Pizarr o

C
t

K
y
lie

Ct

Bonita Blvd

C
o
n

v
a
ir

Ln

C
a

re
y
 D

r

G
la

c
ie

r 
D

r

M
au

cker Rd

Nordic Ridge Dr

S
a
g

e
R

d

Ja
m

e
sD

r

Iris Dr

Spruce Hills Dr

Loren Dr

Q
u
e
s

a
d
a

Ave

Fountains Way

D
ev

lin Cir

C
a

ra
w

a
y

Ln

S
tu

rg
is

D
r

Oregon Rd

S

Cour t
D

r

Nordic
D
r

Balboa Ave

Hyacinth Dr

Jennings D r

W Greenhill Rd

P
ra

irie
P

kwy

Orchard Dr

E Greenhill Rd

S
M

a
in

S
t

R-1

R-1

RP

R-2

A-1

MU
A-1

M-1

A-1

RP

A-1
R-1

R-3

R-1
R-2

RP

P

R-2
A-1

MU

®¬27

®¬58

®¬58

Sands Addition Final Plat

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

H
u

d
s
o

n
R

d

C
e

d
a
rH

e i g
h

ts
D

r

WRidg

eway Ave

University Ave

W
aterloo

R
d

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Vik
ing

Rd

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

C

ente
r

S
t

S
 M

a
in

 S
t

M
a

in
 S

t

W 1st St

W 12th St

W Viking Rd

U
n

io
n
 R

d

E 1st St

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

N

U
nion

R
d

E Lone Tree Rd

L
e

v
e

rs
e

e
R

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

Cedar Falls City Council
July 15, 2019

143

ITEM  21.



144

ITEM  21.



1 

 

DEED OF DEDICATION AND DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, RESTRICTIONS AND EASEMENTS 
 

SANDS ADDITION TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:  
 
 James V. Sands (hereinafter the “Developer”), of Black Hawk County, Iowa, does hereby certify 
that he is the owner in fee simple of the lands laid out into lots and streets as shown by the annexed 
plat of “SANDS ADDITION TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA,” which lands more particularly are 
described by metes and bounds in the Surveyor’s Certificate accompanying said plat, prepared by 
Wendell J. Lupkes, P.L.S., a licensed professional land surveyor, and does hereby further declare that the 
said subdividing and platting as it appears on said plat is with his free will and consent and in accordance 
with his desire and he does hereby duly and legally dedicate, grant, and donate the streets as shown and 
designated on said plat, to the use of the public forever. 
 
 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED IN SUBDIVISION 
 
 The Developer, in consideration of approval of this Subdivision by the Cedar Falls Planning and 
Zoning Commission and the City Council of the city of Cedar Falls, Iowa, does hereby agree for itself and 
its successors and assigns as follows:    

1. That concrete sidewalks four inches thick will be installed during or immediately after 
construction of a building on any particular lot.  Such sidewalks will be installed on any unsold 
lots in any event within five years after the date the plat is filed in the office of the Recorder of 
Black Hawk County, Iowa, and the sidewalks constructed shall be across the full width of the lot 
and on corner lots and also across the parking and full length of the lot. The balance of the 
sidewalks will be 5-foot wide, and are to be installed by individual lot owners during or after 
construction of a building as set forth above.  In the event that the sidewalks are not so 
installed, the City may perform the work and levy the cost thereof under paragraph 11.  In the 
event the City is required to construct the sidewalks or trails as permitted in paragraph 10, a lien 
or liens may only be imposed against the lot which requires city construction and no other lot. 

2. Sanitary sewer, together with all necessary manholes and sewer service lines to all lots shall be 
provided. 

3. Underground utilities, as required by the Subdivision Ordinance of the city of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
shall be installed. 

4. Water shall be provided and stubbed in to each lot as required by the Cedar Falls Municipal 
Utilities. 

5. Municipal fire hydrants shall be provided as required by the Cedar Falls Public Safety 
Department. 

6. Storm sewer shall be provided as required by the City Engineer of the city of Cedar Falls. 

7. Handicap ramps shall be provided as required by law. 

145

ITEM  21.



2 

 

8. All buildings erected on any lot in said subdivision shall be constructed in accordance with the 
building, plumbing and electrical codes of the City of Cedar Falls. 

9. The Developer shall construct and install all required public improvements within the 
subdivision plat, which public improvements shall conform to approved construction plans 
which meet the specifications of the city of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Such required public 
improvements shall meet the following requirements: 

 (a) Shall be constructed and installed in a good and workmanlike manner; 

 (b) Shall be free of defects in workmanship or materials; 

 (c) Shall be free of any conditions that could result in structural or other failure of said 
improvements; 

 (d) Shall be constructed and installed in accordance with the design standards and technical 
standards established for such public improvements by the city of Cedar Falls, and by 
Cedar Falls Utilities; and 

 (e) Shall be constructed and installed in strict compliance with the minimum acceptable 
specifications for the construction of public improvements set forth in the Cedar Falls 
Code of Ordinances, including without limitation, Chapter 24, Subdivisions, and as such 
specifications shall be recommended for approval by the City Engineer from time to 
time, and approved by the city council. 

 The Developer’s construction plans are now on file in the office of the City Engineer. 

10. The work and improvements called for herein shall be in accordance with City specifications 
under the supervision of the City Engineer, and shall be completed within one year of the date 
of approval of the final Plat.  Further, the Owner and its successors and assigns shall comply with 
site plan review and approval by the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission and the Cedar 
Falls City Council. 

11. In the event the improvements called for herein shall not be performed in accordance with the 
City Ordinances and the above Agreement, the City may perform said work, levy the costs 
thereof as assessments, and the undersigned agree that said assessments so levied shall be a 
lien on all of the lots in the subdivision with the same force and effect as though all legal 
provisions relating to the levy of such special assessments have been observed and further 
authorize the City Clerk to certify such assessments to the County Auditor as assessments to be 
paid in installments as provided by law. 

 

EASEMENTS 

 The Developer further does hereby reserve for the mutual benefit and convenience of grantor 
and his assigns, the city of Cedar Falls, Iowa, all grantees named in any and all deeds heretofore or 
hereinafter executed for each and all of the lots in said  “SANDS ADDITION TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA,” all proprietors of public utility companies and their assigns, and any private corporation, firm or 
person furnishing utilities for the transmission and/or distribution of water, gas, sewer, electricity, 
communication service or cable television, perpetual non-exclusive easements for the construction, 

146

ITEM  21.



3 

 

laying, building, and maintenance of said services, including underground facilities and related surface 
mounted equipment such as meter boxes, junctions and cabinets, for said services, over, under, across, 
and upon as applicable those utility, sewer and drainage easements as more particularly reflected on 
the Final Plat of “SANDS ADDITION TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA,” prepared by Wendell J. 
Lupkes, P.L.S., licensed land surveyor in the State of Iowa. 
 
 The proprietors, agents and employees of all such public utility and service companies, 
corporations or agencies shall have the right of reasonable access to their services and proposed 
installations for the purpose of the proper construction and maintenance of their lines and equipment, 
together with the privilege of installing, maintaining and operating permanent underground feeders or 
service facilities and to enter upon said premises to do any of the work contemplated in the installation 
and maintenance of said public utilities, provided the user of the easement restores the property as 
nearly as possible to the condition the property was in prior to any repair, maintenance, or use of the 
easement, all at no cost to grantors.  No structure will be placed or use undertaken within the easement 
premises in any manner so as to obstruct the proper and authorized use of the easement premises.  

 

RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS 

 The Developer further does hereby make and declare all of the real estate situated in “SANDS 
ADDITION TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA,” subject to the following restrictive covenants, to-wit: 

1. All lots in the subdivision shall be used for residential purposes only, and no lot shall be re-
subdivided into building lots.  No structure shall be erected or located on any lot other than one 
single-family dwelling not exceeding two stories in height with a private attached garage.  
Notwithstanding any other provision herein to the contrary, however, the developer may place 
on any lot a bi-attached dwelling or a horizontal property regime in a manner that is consistent 
with applicable zoning regulations.  All building and construction, including the requirements of 
structure and living units shall be governed by the applicable zoning regulations of the City of 
Cedar Falls. 

2. On all lots, one outbuilding, of similar design with the house, no larger than 40% of rear yard 
area will be allowed. Rear yard shall include the area from the rear corners of the residence to 
the adjacent lot lines and rearward to the back lot line. 

3. No building shall be erected on any lot nearer than the 30’ front building line, side yard setback, 
or 30’ rear yard setback as shown or noted on the plat. 

4. No trailer, basement, tent, shack, garage, barn or other out-building erected in the subdivision 
shall be used at any time as a residence, either temporarily or permanently, and no residence of 
a temporary character shall be permitted on any lot. 

5. All one-story single family houses shall have a minimum ground floor area of 1,500 square feet, 
all one and on-half and split foyer houses shall have a minimum ground floor area of 1,400 
square feet and two-story houses shall have a minimum ground floor area of 1,000 square feet, 
said ground floor areas to be exclusive of porches and garages. A "story" shall be required to 
have a floor level which is above ground level at all points. Any floor level which is not above 
ground level at all points shall be considered a basement level, and shall not be a “story.” 

147

ITEM  21.



4 

 

6. All residential structures shall be constructed with private attached two-stall garages (or larger). 

7. All approaches located on city right of way and all driveways shall be constructed of Portland 
cement concrete, and shall be constructed at the same time as any residential structure is 
constructed on any lot. 

8. The owner of each lot, vacant or improved, shall keep his/her lot or lots mowed and free of 
weeds and debris. 

9. No obnoxious or offensive trade or activity shall be carried on upon any lot nor shall anything be 
done thereon which may be or become an annoyance or nuisance to the neighborhood. Burn 
barrels are specifically prohibited. 

10. No residence shall be used as a place of business and no business signs shall be erected in or at 
the entrance of the subdivision. 

11. No dwelling on any lot in the subdivision shall be occupied until the exterior is completed and 
finished and the interior substantially completed and finished and an occupancy permit issued 
by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. All construction shall be completed within one year from the 
start of dwelling construction. 

12. No old or used buildings shall be moved upon any of the lots in the subdivision for any purpose 
and all buildings on any lot in the subdivision shall be kept in a reasonable state of repair and 
upkeep. 

13. With the exception of household pets, no animals, poultry, rabbits, or livestock of any kind shall 
be kept or raised nor shall any kennel accommodating more than two household pets be 
maintained on any lot in the subdivision. 

14. No trailers of any kind or nature, buses, semi-tractors, recreational vehicles, campers, boats, or 
trucks (except for those trucks commonly described as “pickup trucks”) shall be stored on any 
lot unless they are fully enclosed in a permanent garage, or parked on a concrete driveway or 
concrete slab adjacent to a driveway or outbuilding servicing any lot.  All disabled or non-
functioning motor vehicles must be fully enclosed in a permanent garage. 

15. All outdoor swimming pools of any nature shall be constructed "in ground" or if "above ground", 
must be fully professionally enclosed. In either case, the pool shall be fenced and any such 
fencing must be consistent with the requirements of the city of Cedar Falls, Iowa. This restriction 
shall not be construed so as to prohibit removable children's wading pools. All non-portable 
jacuzzis, hot tubs, whirlpool spas or other items of such nature shall be recessed or built in with 
the heating and filtering equipment and elements completely enclosed from public view by 
appropriate material. 

16. All plans and specifications for houses, garages, and fencing to be built on any lot in the 
subdivision are to be submitted to and approved by the Developer or his authorized agent or 
agents. No television or radio tower shall be erected without the prior written approval of the 
developer or his authorized agent or agents. 

17. No wood basements shall be allowed. No totally manufactured or modular homes or mobile 
homes shall be placed or constructed on any lot unless approved in writing by the Developer or 
his authorized agent or agents. 

148

ITEM  21.



5 

 

18. All electrical transmission lines and service entrances, cable television or other transmission 
lines, and all telephone lines and services shall be installed underground on all lots. 

19. No excess dirt from the excavation of basements on any lot in the subdivision shall be removed 
from the subdivision unless approved by the Developer or his authorized agent or agents. The 
Developer or his authorized agent or agents may stockpile or distribute the excess dirt as 
needed, or may require the excess dirt be disposed of off-site by the lot owner. 

20. The Developer will cause to be constructed a stormwater detention area on Tract "B”, and the 
Developer does hereby convey Tract “B” to the Association for use as a stormwater drainage 
and detention area as required by applicable ordinance of the City of Cedar Falls, subject to a 
right of access in favor of the City of Cedar Falls. The Association is charged with the duty to 
maintain and repair said stormwater drainage and detention area, pursuant to requirements 
adopted by the City of Cedar Falls. No building structures, fence structures, landscaping 
structures, private gardens or any other possible obstruction shall be built in and over such 
stormwater drainage easement as shown on the Sands Addition Final Plat. 

 An Iowa non-profit corporation known as the Sands CF Association (the "Association") is being 
created for the purpose of maintaining Tract "B" for the common benefit of the owners of all 
lots in the Addition.  The Association is charged with the duty to maintain and repair said 
stormwater drainage and detention area, pursuant to requirements adopted by the City of 
Cedar Falls.  The membership of the Association shall at all times remain vested in the owners of 
all lots in the Addition.  A transfer of a lot within the Addition shall automatically require that 
the membership rights and obligations in the Association be transferred to the new owner, 
including any unpaid assessments. The cost of the maintenance of Tract “B” shall be shared 
equally by all of the owners of the lots and shall be assessed to the owners in the manner and in 
the amount determined from time to time by the board of directors of the Association. Any 
owner failing to pay an assessment adopted by the board of directors of the Association shall be 
subject to a civil action for collection instituted by the board of directors of the Association or a 
lien may be filed against the property of such owner and collected in the same manner as a 
mechanic's lien. 

21. The owner and/or occupant of each lot shall jointly and severally be responsible to keep in good 
order and maintain the area between the curb line and the property line abutting their property 
including keeping said area free of holes, pitfalls, stumps of trees, fences, brick, stone, cement, 
stakes, posts or rods to which a metal, plastic or similar receptacle designed to hold newspapers 
is affixed, private irrigation or sprinkler systems, retaining walls, landscaping brick, block, stone, 
timber or other similar material, or any other similar obstructions.  All mailboxes shall be 
clustered or grouped for the units, and shall be placed between the curb line and the property 
line abutting the lots. 

22. Lots 1 and 21 shall not be allowed direct access to Greenhill Road. 

23. Certain lots within the subdivision are adjacent to Highway 58 and will be adjacent to the future 
improved interchange of Highway 58 and Greenhill Road. 

24. The undersigned and all persons and entities hereafter acquiring any right, title, or interest in 
any of the lots in said subdivision shall be taken and held to have agreed and covenanted with 
the owners of all other lots in this subdivision and with the respective successors and assigns of 
all of the rest of such other lots to conform to and observe all of the foregoing covenants, 

149

ITEM  21.



150

ITEM  21.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 
  Matt Tolan, Civil Engineer II  

 DATE: July 11, 2019 

 SUBJECT: The Terraces at West Glen Preliminary Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: Request to approve The Terraces at West Glen Preliminary Plat 

 
PETITIONER: The Terraces at West Glen, LLC, Owner; Fehr Graham, Engineer 

 
LOCATION: 
 

Southeast corner of Union Road and W. 12th Street 

 

PROPOSAL 
The petitioner is requesting approval of 
a preliminary plat that would create six 
residential lots and two outlots on 239 
acres of land. This subdivision is for the 
New Aldaya Lifescapes campus that 
was rezoned to RP, planned residence 
along with a land use map amendment 
to planned development/floodplain by 
the Planning and Zoning Commission 
on February 27, 2019 and approved by 
the City Council on April 15, 2019. 
 
BACKGROUND 
New Aldaya Lifescapes is planning a 55 
and over housing development at the southeast corner of Union Road and W. 12th Street. The 
proposed plat includes this development as well as the entire holdings of the property owner. 
The entire plat encompasses 239 acres of land that extends from the Union Road and W. 12th 
Street intersection southward to W. 27th Street. The intent is to split the northeast 42.35 acres 
for the proposed housing development. The focus of the plat is located in this area with the 
development of the public infrastructure and lots. The remaining 196 acres is identified as an 
outlot for future rezoning and platting development.   
 
Prior to developing this land, a preliminary plat must be submitted to the city for review by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council. A preliminary plat must follow the ordinance 

 

151

ITEM  22.



standards so that adequate provisions are made for public facilities (roads, sidewalks, 
storm/sanitary sewer), stormwater management and services (utilities). The 42.35 acre area 
included in the preliminary plat in consistent with the master plan submitted with the the RP 
zoning district and is consistent with the amended Future Land Use Map designation of 
“planned development/floodplain.” The remaining 197 acres is an outlot that will require 
rezoning and platting at a later date. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The preliminary plat must include the total land holdings of the owner on adjacent land or 
abutting the area intended for immediate development. This provision of the code applies in 
this case where the owner has 239 acres of land and the immediate development of this area 
focuses on the northwest 42 acres for the New Aldaya campus. New Aldaya is under contract 
to purchase the 42 acres from the current property owner. The remaining 197 acres are 
located in an outlot intended for future development at a later date. After the preliminary plat has 
been approved by the City Council, typically a final plat is developed in phases, as long as it is 
in substantial conformance with the preliminary plat. 
 
The remaining portions of this staff report will focus on the immediate development of the 42 
acres of land at the southeast corner of Union Road and W. 12th Street. The property includes 
a waterway feature that is part of the floodplain district. This waterway divides the 42 acres 
into two sections. The area west of the waterway is intended for initial development and the 
area on the east is for future development of the Lifescapes Campus. 
 
The proposed plat 
includes six 
residential lots, six 
tracts, two outlots 
and a floodplain 
running through the 
center of the plat on 
239 acres. The RP 
zoning district allows the platting to conform to the development plan that was presented during 
the rezoning of this property. The plan is to create large lots for multiple dwellings instead of the 
one dwelling per lot format. Each lot provides the minimum 20 foot building setback from the 
internal streets and the 35-foot setback from the external streets of Union Road and W. 12th 
Street. The table above summarizes the area and use for each lot. 
 
Floodplain – The floodplain 
flows through the 
development from 
northwest to southeast. 
This floodplain is a grassed 
waterway through the 
upper portion of the 
University Branch of Dry 
Run Creek that begins at 
W. 12th Street.  
Approximately 109 acres of 
drainage from the north 
and northwest enters this 

Lot Lot Area Proposed Use 

1 6.165 ac 1 & 2 unit and three story multi-unit dwellings (16.6% in 
floodplain) 

2 2.329 ac 1 & 2 unit dwellings 

3 2.350 ac Two story multi-unit dwellings 

4 3.663 ac 1 and 2 unit dwellings 

5 4.281 ac 1 and 2 unit dwellings 

6 1.308 ac 1 and 2 unit dwellings 

 

152

ITEM  22.



waterway. The limits of the floodplain have changed over the years beginning with a wide 
floodplain shown on the 1985 maps to a more reduced floodplain in 2014. These revisions 
reflect better data over time based on clear aerial photos and digital elevation models. The 
previous flood maps had the ground elevations at a 5 foot vertical accuracy rating and the newer 
maps show a 4”-8” vertical accuracy rating. Last May, the petitioner’s engineer submitted a 
LOMA (Letter of Map Amendment) to FEMA with actual ground elevations and profiles of the 
floodplain. Recently, FEMA approved this LOMA with the floodplain to be completely located in 
Tract A and out of Lot 1 and Outlot A. The grassed waterway shows small amounts of wetlands 
contained within the channel due to field tile run off. The proposed plan is to preserve the 
channel and enhance this waterway corridor with native grasses and forbs and have the ability 
to infiltrate runoff with a deep root system to improve the water quality.    
 
Outlots - Outlot A is located between the waterway and Wellington Drive. This is currently listed 
as an outlot until the floodplain is boundary is amended after which it will be re-platted for a new 
buildable lot along the east side of Wellington Drive. Outlot B is the remaining portion of the plat 
intended for future development.   
 
Tracts - Tract A is reserved for the waterway and floodplain from W. 12th Street to the north side 
of the Keagle’s Crossing culvert. Tract B is a storm water detention basin located west of the 
waterway along the south edge of the plat. Tract C is a 17-foot wide strip of land along the south 
side of W. 12th Street. This tract will be dedicated to the City for street right of way purposes in 
the event that W. 12th Street is widened in the future. Tract D include the following streets: 
 

 Tierney Terrace is the first street extending easterly off of Union Road approximately 
360 feet to its intersection with Peters Parkway. This street is approximately 450 feet 
south of the W. 12th Street intersection with Union Road. 

 Sonoma Drive is the second street extension off of Union Road that lines up with the 
existing Sonoma Drive in the Wild Horse Addition. Sonoma Drive ties into Peters 
Parkway. This street is approximately 850 feet south of the W. 12th Street intersection 
with Union Road. 

 Keagle’s Crossing extends south off of Sonoma Drive and curves to the east to connect 
into the western extension of Wellington Drive. 

 Wellington Drive is located on the east side of the waterway. This street begins at W. 
12th Street, approximately 800 feet east of Union Road. The street travels south and 
curves easterly to the eastern edge of the plat. Eventually this section of Wellington 
Drive will connect into the existing section of Wellington Drive in the Lexington Heights 
subdivision. There is a different property owner that separates the two subdivisions and 
eventually the two street sections will connect. It is important to provide connection 
between the neighborhoods to disperse and circulate the traffic.  

 Peters Parkway is another street that parallels the west side of the waterway beginning 
at Tierney Terrace and heading to the south property line. Again, the future extension of 
this street will tie into the development of the adjoining properties. This street is located 
so that it can be extended in a manner that avoids conflicting with the existing home to 
the south. If and when the property owner to the south decides to sell or desires to 
subdivide the property for additional development, this street connection will provide an 
opportunity for additional development lots backing up to the waterway with street 
connections to neighborhoods to the south and north.  

 The section at the north end of Peters Parkway is identified as a private street to 
access the multi-unit dwelling and patio homes. There is a turnaround at the north end. 

153

ITEM  22.



It was decided that a street connection to 12th Street in this location is not 
recommended, since it would be too close to the intersection and thus might create 
traffic movement and circulation problems in the corridor. This is consistent with what 
was approved with the master plan presented with the rezoning.  

 

All streets will be 31-feet wide in a 60-foot public right of way. 
 
Tract E is a second stormwater detention basin located north and east of the waterway along 
the south side of Wellington Drive. Tract F is reserved for the waterway and floodplain from the 
Keagle’s Crossing culvert to the eastern limits of the plat.  
 
A 4-foot wide public sidewalk will be installed along all street frontages and the petitioner will 
participate in the cost to construct a 10-foot wide recreational trail along Union Road. 
 
The Deed of Dedication in association with the plat submittal is straightforward. The Deed 
language outlines the requirements for the developer and restricts the development of each lot 
in accordance with the RP concept plan. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Utilities - City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, 
electric, gas and communication services are available to the site from W. 12th Street and Union 
Road. There is a water connection fee of $55,833.14 for this property based on the street lineal 
footage of W. 12th Street and Union Road. This connection fee is part of the cost of the original 
water main installations on W. 12th Street and on Union Road. The water connection fee is 
collected at the time of final platting. The developer is responsible for the construction of a properly 
sized water system from the 12” water main on Union and 12th and throughout the proposed 
development. Included in the installation are valves and water service stubs for the new lots. Final 
fire hydrant and valve placement locations will be part of the construction plan review.  
 
Stormwater Management – There has been considerable discussion about management of the 
stormwater. Neighboring property owners surrounding this development site have noted the 
existing drainage patterns and concerns with additional run-off issues coming from the drainage 
area surrounding the proposed subdivision. The petitioner’s engineer has designed the 
subdivision to meet and exceed the City’s storm water management ordinance requirements for 
new development in addition to reducing the runoff rate to the downstream properties from the 
current use of row crop production. 
 
The Cedar Falls stormwater management regulations require new developments to collect and 
detain stormwater from the development site along with managing the stormwater from adjacent 
developments. The proposed design exceeds the ordinance standards. The existing run off from 
the row crops is calculated at 10.3 cfs (cubic feet per second) for the 2 year event. The design 
will go above and beyond the city’s standards and reduce the 2 year event to 5.5 cfs. This is a 
slower release rate than what is currently occurring on the site. When applying the 100-year 
discharge between the existing row crop conditions to post development, there will be a 30% 
reduction from on-site and pass-through stormwater discharge. 
 
The proposed the stormwater management plan for the Terraces at West Glen is handled by 
open detention basins, one on the westerly side of the waterway and the other on the easterly 
side of the waterway. The westerly basin (Tract B) will collect the stormwater runoff from the 
streets and lots on the west side of the waterway. The runoff on the east side of the waterway 

154

ITEM  22.



will empty into the stormwater basin (Tract E) that is south of Wellington Drive near the eastern 
edge of the plat. The designated runoff from within the site and from off-site areas will flow to the 
detention facilities with the flow along Tract A and areas to the northeast into the waterway. 
 
In addition to the detention basins, storm sewers will be installed along the roadway and 
throughout the plat. Currently, the Wild Horse subdivision collects in the ditch on the west side 
of Union Road and travels through a pipe under the road to the petitioner’s property. A new 
storm sewer will be installed in the middle of Lot 2 to collect the existing drainage from the west. 
These storm sewers will be installed as a part of this development to accommodate 25 year 
storm. A typical storm sewer design will accommodate a 10 year storm. The street provides 
excess flow in the gutter to the detention basins. Each detention basin has a multi-stage outlet 
to control discharge. The design will treat 1.25” of rainfall for 24 hours for water quality to meet 
the City’s standards. The proposed detention basins will address both water quantity and water 
quality of stormwater runoff. A drainage ditch will be graded along the south edge of the plat (Lot 
4) and is located in a 50’ drainage easement. This ditch will collect the off-site stormwater from 
the west into an overland flow route and will be graded to move the stormwater to the detention 
basin in Tract B. The stormwater flow will be directed away from the adjoining property owner to 
the south. In summary, the proposed design of the stormwater management plan for the 
Terraces at West Glen exceeds the city’s ordinance standards. 
 
Sanitary Sewer - The sanitary sewer is located through the middle of the development site. The 
sanitary sewer will be extended throughout the site during the construction of the roadways. The 
sanitary sewer service serving this area is subject to the Cherrywood Interceptor Sewer District 
tapping fee of $294.63 per acre which was established by the City Council several years ago. 
The sewer fee is collected at the time of final platting. 
 
The City’s Subdivision Ordinance outlines the requirements pertaining to Subdivision Plats. A 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat represents a “conceptual development plan” which the City must 
review and evaluate to insure compliance with all City regulations. Issues related to zoning 
regulations, utility easement provision, street locations and alignments and other factors are all 
subject to review and approval by City staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission and the 
City Council. Following Preliminary Plat approval by the City Council, the developer is free to 
begin installing the necessary public improvements (i.e. streets, sewers, waterlines, etc.) as 
indicated on the plat. 
 
A Final Subdivision Plat formalizes the Preliminary Plat and authorizes the developer to begin 
selling lots and to begin building on the newly created lots. Normally a Final Subdivision Plat 
cannot be approved until all of the required public improvements have been installed and 
completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. A Final Plat can be “expedited” prior to full 
completion and acceptance of public improvements provided that the developer posts a cash 
bond or escrow agreement with the City Engineering Division which serves as a financial 
guarantee that all the improvements will be installed in a timely fashion. 
 
A notice of this preliminary plat was mailed to the surrounding property owners/residents on 
July 11, 2019. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
6/26/2019 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background information. 
The proposed plat includes 240 acres of land bounded by W. 12th Street, Union 
Road and W. 27th Street. The focus of this preliminary plat is a 42 acre section of 

155

ITEM  22.



land at the corner of Union Road and 12th Street. The remaining 197 acres is 
intended for future development. New Aldaya is proposing the development of the 
42 acre parcel for the The Terraces at West Glen. He provided renderings 
displaying the tracts and outlots in the plat, as well as the recreation trail. He also 
displayed renderings of the stormwater detention, current and proposed floodplain 
boundaries, and the plat itself. 
 
Mr. Wingert announced that he will abstain from the discussion and voting on this 
item. Mr. Holst asked if there were anyone in the audience that wished to address 
the Commission on this item. Mr. Thomas Paulsen, 3218 W. 12th Street is the owner 
of the property to the east of the proposed 42 acre section that New Aldaya will 
develop. He asked about the maintenance of the waterway and development of the 
land. Mrs. Melissa Tierney of New Aldaya Lifescapes provided some comments on 
the maintenance, development and ownership of the land in question. Mrs. Carmen 
Mason, 3108 Waterbury Drive would like to know the plans for the stormwater runoff 
and how this will affect her downstream property. Mr. Jon Biederman is the 
applicant’s engineer. He addressed the issues with the waterway and permitting 
requirements and explained the plan for stormwater detention and drainage. The 
comments ended and the discussion turned back to the Commission. 
 
Mr. Holst asked about the scale of the building on the corner of Union Road and 12th 
Street and whether there has been any pushback from the neighbors. Dan Keagle, 
Peters Construction, stated that there was a neighborhood meeting and it was 
addressed. Preliminary modifications have been made to the building to pull back 
the scale and lower the three-story portion to a two-story structure. 
 
Ms. Giarusso is happy to see the discussion about the stormwater runoff and noted 
concerned with what happens if it doesn’t work out the way it is intended. She asked 
what remedies would be available. Mr. Sturch stated that it is designed to maintain 
or improve the issues. 
 
Mr. Leeper asked about the inflow of the water. Mr. Biederman explained proposed 
water flow improvements and answered further questions from the Commission.  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will continue this discussion at the next 
meeting on July 10, 2019. 
 

Discussion/Vote 
7/10/19 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background information. He 
summarized the development plans for New Aldaya and details on the preliminary 
plat. The plat includes six lots for the future development of condominiums and patio 
homes for a 55 plus retirement community. The storm water plan includes detention 
basins to collect, detain, treat and release the storm water from the subdivision. The 
plan exceeds the City’s requirements. Staff recommends approval of the preliminary 
plat. 
 
There were no comments and the Commission recommended approval of the 
Terraces at West Glen Preliminary Plat. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the Terraces at West Glen 
Preliminary Plat. 
 

156

ITEM  22.



157

ITEM  22.



April 22, 2019 
 
Mr. David Sturch 
City of Cedar Falls 
Planning and Community Services 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA  50613 
 
Re:  The Terraces at West Glen Preliminary Plat 
 
Dear Mr. Sturch: 
 
Terraces at West Glen, LLC is pleased to present a preliminary plat for a proposed residential 
subdivision located within Lot 2 of Robinson’s Minor Plat of part of the NW ¼ of Section 15, 
89N, R14W in the City of Cedar Falls, named The Terraces at West Glen.  Specifically, the 
project location is at the southeasterly quadrant of West 12th Street and Union Road and 
consists of 42.349 acres.  This real estate is being acquired from Money Pit, LLC. 
 
To meet City of Cedar Falls platting requirements, the overall adjacent holdings of the 
current owner are included in the preliminary plat (239.692 acres).  The area beyond the 
42.349 acres is identified as an ‘Outlot for Future Development’ and is not a part of the 
development proposed by Terraces at West Glen LLC.  We are showing only the overall 
boundary dimensions and area of this outlot. 
 
The development will be an age 55+ campus as an extension of NewAldaya Lifescapes senior 
living services.  The housing concept will consist of approximately 19 single homes, 22 duplex 
homes and two multi-story units with approximately 42 and 30 units respectively.  At full 
build-out, approximately 135 housing units will be constructed. 
 
Zoning of the 42.349 acres is R-P (planned residential).  This allows a mixture of housing unit 
types and is a perfect fit for the proposed development.  Ownership of the real estate, 
except for street right of way dedicated to the City of Cedar Falls, will be by Terraces at 
West Glen LLC.    
 
Utilities are currently readily available within or around the perimeter of the proposed 
subdivision and will be extended throughout the 42.349 acres.  All utilities will be installed 
within the street right of way or utility easements. 
 
Storm water is a major consideration of not only the proposed subdivision but also 
downstream properties. Our proposed subdivision will meet the City’s storm water 
management ordinance requirements for new development in addition to reducing runoff rate 
to downstream properties from the current use of row crop production.  A corridor for the 
flood plain will remain through the approximate middle of the property.  This flood plain has 
a long history of varying depicted sizes subject to the best available elevation data at the 
time.  Our design incorporates accurate elevation data as well as grading improvements to 
the waterway which allow a narrower flood plain.  Adjacent homes will be elevated well 
above the 500-year elevation.  This corridor will be vegetated with native grasses and 
flowers, offering an enhanced environmental state from the existing condition and an 
attractive visual appearance. 
 

158

ITEM  22.



The development will be phased with schedule subject to the market demand.  The first 
phases of construction will be west of the waterway and will consist of the public 
infrastructure for the westerly area.  Single and duplex homes will be constructed at the 
approximate rate of 10-12 per year.  The first multi-story structure may start construction 
around year 3 or 4.   
 
We are excited to get started with construction and look forward to providing a needed 
housing option to the City of Cedar Falls.  We thank City staff for all the assistance in getting 
us to this point and look forward to continuing our relationship as we work through the 
development process. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Millisa Tierney 
CEO, Terraces at West Glen LLC 

159

ITEM  22.



160

ITEM  22.



161

ITEM  22.



162

ITEM  22.



� 

THE TERRACES AT WEST GLEN
DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

PHASE 1a

PHASE 3

PHASE 2a PHASE 1b

PHASE 5

PHASE 2b

PH
ASE 4a

PH
ASE 4a

PHASE 4b

PHASE 4b

Projected Unit Summary:
Single Units - 25 = 25 Units
Twin Units - 22 = 44 Units
2-Story Multi-Unit - East = 22 Units
3-Story Multi-Unit - NW = 44 Units
Total Dwelling Units = 135 Units

1 2 3 4

5

6

7

8

910

11 12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20 21

22 23 24 25

1

2

3
4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19 20 21

22

NewAldaya Terraces at West Glen
Preliminary Phasing Plan - Updated 05/22/2019

163

ITEM  22.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: July 5, 2019 

 SUBJECT: HOME Investment Partnership Program Consortium Cooperation   
  Agreement 
   
 
In 1998, the City of Cedar Falls and the City of Waterloo entered into its first HOME 
Investment Partnership Program Consortium Cooperation Agreement. This agreement 
has been jointly extended for subsequent three-year terms since 2001.  Our current 
agreement recently expired and we are looking to enter into a new three-year 
agreement.  The HOME Program Agreement basically allows Cedar Falls and Waterloo 
to exist as a “cooperative consortium” to receive additional funding through the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for which we would otherwise 
be ineligible to receive. 
 
In order to continue receiving HUD funding, Cedar Falls and Waterloo must renew the 
Home Consortium Cooperation Agreement for the period of July 1, 2019 to June 30, 
2022.  It would cover three federal program years: 2019, 2020, and 2021. The HOME 
Investment Partnership Program Consortium Cooperation Agreement is a HUD drafted 
contract that outlines applicable federal citations and regulations. 
 
The City of Cedar Falls anticipates receiving approximately $95,000 annually for 
housing-related activities for the term of the new agreement.  By HUD regulations, 10% 
of the total award is allocated to the City of Waterloo as the lead entity for many of the 
administrative purposes of the grant and 15% is allocated to a locally identified non-
profit Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO).  While the consortium 
award is $453,196, HUD has published a split of 72% (Waterloo) and 28% (Cedar 
Falls).  Therefore, after deducting the administrative and CHDO allocations, Cedar Falls’ 
funding is $95,172.00 in program year 2019.  The agreement outlines how to apply the 
percentage split annually, given that HUD funding varies from year to year. 
 
Cedar Falls originally utilized its HOME funds to purchase lots for donation to Habitat for 
Humanity.  Infrastructure site improvements are also eligible expenses to the purchased 

164

ITEM  23.



lots.  To date, 21 infill residential lots have been purchased in Cedar Falls through the 
HOME Program.  Twenty-two homes, which include two townhomes, have been 
constructed on those lots by Habitat for Humanity.  Because infill lots have become 
scarce, the City began utilizing funds toward rehabilitation grants for low to moderate 
income households similar to our CDBG program.  This has been low for a couple of 
years.  However, Staff has several projects this summer anticipated to use HOME 
funding (with technical support from INRCOG) and we have meet with Habitat to 
establish a partnership for future projects. 
 
The HOME Consortium has been an effective partnership with the City of Waterloo and 
has allowed Cedar Falls to tap into otherwise unobtainable HUD funding.   
 
The Department of Community Development recommends the City Council adopt a 
resolution approving and authorizing execution of a continued HOME Investment 
Partnership Program Consortium Cooperation Agreement with the City of Waterloo.  
This furthers City Council Goal 6 of Creating an environmental conducive to economic 
development, with an objective of continuing to seek ways in which to promote 
affordable housing. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 

165

ITEM  23.



  

1 of 8 

 

HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM 

CONSORTIUM COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

FISCAL YEARS 2020, 2021 AND 2022 

    (July 1, 2019 to June 30,2022 ) 

 
Federal Program Years 2019, 2020, 2021 

(October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2022) 

 
 

THIS CONSORTIUM COOPERATION AGREEMENT is entered into by and between 

the City of Cedar Falls, a Municipal Corporation in Black Hawk County, Iowa (sometimes 

hereinafter referred to as the "City") and the City of Waterloo, a Municipal Corporation in Black 

Hawk County, Iowa (hereinafter referred to as the "Lead Entity") for the purpose of continuing a 

HOME Consortium pursuant to the HOME Investment Partnerships Act (hereinafter referred to 

as the "HOME Program"); Title II of the Cranston-Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act, 

as amended (42 U.S.C. 12701 et seq.) (hereinafter referred to as the "Act"). 

 

WHEREAS, Section 216(2) of the Act provides that a consortium of geographically 

contiguous units of general local government is considered a unit of general local government for 

purposes of the Home Investment Partnerships Program if the Secretary of the U.S. Department 

of Housing and Urban Development (hereinafter referred to as "HUD") determines that the 

consortium has sufficient authority and administrative capability to carry out the purposes of the 

Act on behalf of its member jurisdictions and will direct its activities to the alleviation of housing 

problems within States; and, 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 217(b)(3) of the Act, HUD will include, as 

jurisdictions eligible to receive allocations of HOME funds by formula, approved consortia of 

units of general local government; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and the City of Waterloo, Iowa, desire to 

enter into a HOME Program Consortium Agreement for the purpose of expanding the supply of 

decent, safe, sanitary and affordable housing for low and moderate-income residents. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these mutual covenants, the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and the City of Waterloo, Iowa do hereby agree as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.     DEFINITIONS-ABBREVIATIONS 

 

1.1 "City" shall mean - the City of Cedar Falls, an Iowa Municipal Corporation. 

 

1.2 "Lead Entity" shall mean - the City of Waterloo, an Iowa Municipal Corporation. 

 

1.3 "HUD" shall mean - the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

 

1.4 "Act" shall mean - the Cranston-Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act, as amended 

166

ITEM  23.



  

2 of 8 

 

(42 U.S.C. 12701 et seq.). 

 

1.5 "HOME Program" shall mean - the program conducted under the provision of the 

Cranston-Gonzales National Affordable Housing Act, Title II, Subtitle A - HOME 

Investment Partnerships Program (P.L. 101-625) and the Code of Federal Regulations 

(24 CFR Part 92). 

 

1.6 "HOME Funds" shall mean - HOME Program Entitlement Grant Funds awarded by the 

Secretary of HUD to the Consortium in accordance with the allocation formula 

prescribed by HUD. 

 

1.7 "Consortium" or "HOME Consortium" shall mean - a consortium of geographically 

contiguous units of general local government, which HUD treats as a single unit of local 

government under the HOME Program, formed for the purpose of furthering the 

objectives of the HOME Program.  Under this Agreement, the cities of Cedar Falls and 

Waterloo comprise the HOME Consortium. 

 

1.8 "Housing Unit or Units" shall mean - decent, safe, sanitary and affordable housing 

developed or assisted with HOME Funds pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

1.9 "Qualification Period" shall mean - the Federal Fiscal Years for which the HOME 

Consortium is to qualify to receive allocations as a participating jurisdiction in the 

HOME Program. 

 

SECTION 2.     RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 

 

2.1 Pursuant to this Agreement, the City and the Lead Entity agree to cooperate to undertake 

or to assist in undertaking housing assistance activities for the HOME Program. 

 

2.2 The Lead Entity shall act in a representative capacity for all member units of general 

local government, or the Consortium members, for the purposes of the HOME Program. 

 

2.3 The Lead Entity shall assume overall responsibility for ensuring that the Consortium's 

HOME Program is carried out in compliance with the requirements of the HOME 

Program, including requirements concerning a Consolidated Submission of Community 

Planning and Development Programs ("Consolidated Plan") in accordance with HUD 

regulation in 24 CFR Parts 91 and 92.   

 

2.3.1 This Agreement does not contain a provision for veto or other restriction that 

would allow any member unit of local government to obstruct the implementation of the 

Consortium's approved Consolidated Plan. 

 

2.3.2 The 5- Year Consolidated Plan document shall be prepared by Lead Entity in 

collaboration with staff from City.  If a consulting firm is hired to prepare said document, 

Lead Entity and City will come to a mutually acceptable agreement to split the cost of the 

167

ITEM  23.



  

3 of 8 

 

consulting firm.   

 

2.3.3 Lead Entity and City agree that necessary adjustments to the Consolidated Plan 

development process will be made when necessary as required by the United States 

Department of Housing and Urban Development, including, but not limited to, any 

Consolidated Plan process. 

 

2.3.4 The Lead Entity shall initiate the 5-Year Consolidated Plan and Annual Action 

Plans in IDIS for Lead Entity and City, and submit to HUD on IDIS.   Annual reporting 

(CAPER) will be completed by each entity separately in IDIS. 

 

2.4 The Lead Entity and/or City if necessary, shall secure from the State of Iowa a written 

certification that the Consortium will direct its activities to the alleviation of housing 

problems within the State of Iowa. 

 

 

2.5 The Lead Entity shall submit to HUD the required HOME Consortia qualification 

documents including required certifications and a fully executed Consortium Cooperation 

Agreement. 

 

2.6 The Lead Entity and the City shall act affirmatively to further fair housing by: 

 

2.6.1 Employing affirmative marketing procedures in the advertising and marketing 

of Housing Units, and 

 

2.6.2 Conforming to the non-discrimination provisions hereinafter set forth. 

 

2.7 Lead Entity, after approval by City, is hereby authorized to amend this Consortium 

Agreement, on behalf of the Consortium, for the purpose of adding new members to the 

Consortium. 

 

 2.7.1 Should it become necessary to change the language of this Agreement to meet 

HUD approval, without making major changes and without altering the intent of the 

Agreement, such changes may be made administratively with written consent of the 

Consortium staff. 

 

 2.7.2 This Agreement may be amended for purposes other than those described in 2.7 

and 2.7.1 above by written Agreement of the Lead Entity and City. 

 

2.8 Lead Entity and City each shall be solely responsible for such individual financial and/or 

legal responsibilities which may arise from participation as a member of this Consortium. 

 

2.9 Lead Entity and City each shall be solely responsible for the administration of their 

respective HOME Programs including: 

 

168

ITEM  23.



  

4 of 8 

 

 

 

2.9.1 The development of Housing Units within their respective jurisdictions, and the 

use of any public or private funds or loans, or other means of financial 

assistance. 

 

2.9.2 Additionally, any real or personal property acquired pursuant to this Agreement 

shall be acquired and maintained in the name of the individual Consortium 

member performing the acquisition. 

 

2.9.3 Members will abide by their own local codes and standards but acknowledge 

that in federally funded projects, they are subject to the regulations for 

addressing lead-paint hazards. 

 

2.10  Match obligations will be met for City by using carryover match funds reported by Lead 

Entity. 

 

2.11  Program Income generated by Lead Entity or City with HOME funds will be accounted 

for in IDIS reporting and used for eligible activities by each agency separately. 

 

2.12  It is the City’s responsibility to assure compliance with all HOME requirements during 

project implementation and the affordability period.  The Lead Entity has the right to monitor 

projects compliance.  City will submit to Lead Entity the Environmental Review (ER) for each 

HOME project, and Lead Entity will approve the ER, before said project begins by City.   

 

2.13 City and Lead Entity will follow the regulations of the HOME Final Rule of 2013.   

 

  

SECTION 3.     PROVISIONS OF THE AGREEMENT 

 

3.1 Lead Entity and City agree that the Consortium start date shall be July 1, 2019, and that 

they, and any new members added to this Consortium, pursuant to Section 2.7 above, 

shall establish July 1 through June 30 as their respective fiscal year for the following 

Federal programs:  1) the Community Development Block Grant under Title I of the 

Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (PL 93-383),   2) the 

Home Investment Partnership Program under Title II of the Cranston-Gonzalez National 

Affordable Housing Act, as amended, (PL 101-625),  3) the Emergency Shelter Grant 

Program under Subtitle B of Title IV of the Stewart B. McKinney Homeless Assistance 

Act of 1988, as amended (PL 100-628), and  4) the Housing Opportunities for Persons 

With Aids Program under Title II of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing 

Act, as Amended, (PL 101-625), as applicable. 

 

3.2 Though this Agreement may be amended, no Consortium member, including any new 

member added pursuant to Section 2.7 above, may withdraw from this Agreement while 

it remains in effect.  A member desiring to terminate the Agreement and its participation 

169

ITEM  23.



  

5 of 8 

 

in the Waterloo HOME Consortium may do so by giving no less than 6 months prior 

written notice.  The notice must be sent to the Lead Entity at the addresses appearing on 

the signature page and the notice must specify the effective date of the termination.  The 

Agreement will terminate on the effective date specified in the notice.   

 

3.3 For the Lead Entity and City, this Agreement is made and entered into pursuant to: 

 

3.3.1 Iowa Code, Chapter 364 (2015), entitled "Powers and Duties of Cities”. 

 

3.4 The parties to this Agreement shall not, in the performance of this Agreement, 

discriminate or permit discrimination in violation of Federal or other laws or local 

ordinances because of race, color, handicap, familial status, sex, age, political or religious 

opinions, affiliations or national origin.  

 

SECTION 4.     DISTRIBUTION OF HOME FUNDS 

 

4.1 Lead Entity shall be the recipient of each annual allocation of HOME Funds awarded to 

the Consortium by HUD and shall secure such funds in a manner prescribed by HUD. 

 

4.2 For each annual allocation of HOME Funds, funds will be disbursed as follows: 

 

4.2.1 10% of the entire annual HOME allocation will go to Lead Entity for allowable 

administration/planning costs of the HOME Program. 

 

 

4.2.2 The annual HOME allocation will be allocated 72% to Lead Entity and 28% to 

City unless an alternate mutually agreeable allocation formula is approved by 

Lead Entity and City. Formula breakdown is based on HUD FY18 HOME 

Consortium Share Report.  

 

 

4.2.3 15% of each annual HOME allocation after 72/28 split goes to local Community 

Housing Development Organization(s) (CHDO). The CHDO may use each 

allocation in the corresponding jurisdiction. If the CHDO is unable to use the 

City’s allocation in City’s jurisdiction it may be used in the Lead Entity’s 

jurisdiction.  The Lead Entity will oversee the CHDO requirements. Please see 

Appendix A for a sample breakdown of funding. 

 

4.2.4 The allocation formula listed in 4.2.2 will be revised should additional members 

be added to the HOME Consortium.  The revised allocation formula must be 

approved by Lead Entity and City before any additional members may be 

added. 

 

4.2.5 City may not expend HOME Funds for any administrative or planning 

expenses. 

170

ITEM  23.



  

6 of 8 

 

4.2.6 HOME Funds shall be allocated to City through a subsequent subrecipient 

agreement, or agreements, between City and Lead Entity.  

  

                                                             

4.3 Some members existing programs may need to be modified if carried out with HOME 

funds, but the Consortium Activities do not impact CDBG-funded programs.   

 

SECTION 5.     TERM OF THE AGREEMENT/QUALIFICATION PERIOD 

 

5.1 This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period of three years beginning on 

October 1, 2019, and ending September 30, 2022, said period comprising the 

Qualification Period, or until such time the HOME Funds are closed out as specified in 

Section 5.3, below. City fiscal years July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2022.  

  

 By the date specified in HUD’s consortia designation notices, the consortium lead entity 

will notify each participating unit of general local government in writing of its right not 

to participate for the successive three-year qualification periods. 

 

 The consortium will adopt any amendment to the agreement incorporating changes 

necessary to meet the requirements for cooperation agreements set forth in a Consortia 

Qualification Notice applicable for a subsequent three-year consortia qualification period, 

and to submit the amendment to HUD as specified in the Consortia Qualification Notice 

for that period, and that failure to comply will void the automatic renewal of the consortia 

agreement. 

 

5.2 The Federal fiscal years of this Agreement shall include federal fiscal years 2019, 2020, 

and 2021. 

 

5.3 Notwithstanding the above, this Agreement shall remain in effect until the HOME Funds  

from each of the Federal Fiscal Years of the Qualification Period are closed out pursuant 

to 24 CFR 92.507. 

 

 

SECTION 6.     AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES 

 

In further consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto 

expressly agree that for purposes of notice, including legal service of process, during the term of 

this Agreement, and for the period of any applicable statute or limitations thereafter, the 

following named individuals or their successors shall be authorized representatives of the parties: 

 

(1) Quentin Hart, Mayor 

City of Waterloo 

715 Mulberry Street 

 Waterloo, Iowa  50703 

(2) James P. Brown, Mayor 

171

ITEM  23.



  

7 of 8 

 

City of Cedar Falls 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 

 

With copies to: 

 

(3) Rudy D. Jones 

 Community Development Director 

620 Mulberry Street 

Waterloo, Iowa  50703 

 

and 

 

(4) Stephanie Sheetz 

Director of Community Development 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa  50613 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date 

indicated below. 

 

ATTEST:      CITY OF WATERLOO: 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

City Clerk      Quentin Hart, Mayor 

City of Waterloo, Iowa    City of Waterloo, Iowa 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Date       Date 

 

 

ATTEST:      CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

City Clerk      James P. Brown, Mayor 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa    City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Date       Date 

172

ITEM  23.



  

8 of 8 

 

                                        Appendix A 
 

                                                          Sample 

                                    Annual HOME Allocation $453,196.00 

 

 

 

Waterloo Allocation 72%    Cedar Falls Allocation 28% 

                                       

                                   Administration Fee Calculation 

 

$453,196.00                                                                $453,196.00 

X            .72       Allocation %                                          X            .28     Allocation %  

$326,301.00                                                                 $126,895.00 

X            .10      minus 10% Admin to Lead Entity                   X            .10     minus 10% Admin to Lead Entity 

  $32,630.00                                                                   $12,689.00 

 

                                                      $32,630.00 

                                                      $12,689.00 

 Total Admin to Lead Entity =     $45,319.00 

 

 

   CHDO Allocation Calculation 

 

$453,196.00      $453,196.00 

X            .72    Allocation %      X            .28   Allocation % 

$326,301.00                                 $126,895.00  

X            .15    Min. CHDO Allocation                                X            .15   Min. CHDO Allocation  

  $48,945.00                                                                  $19,034.00 

 

  

 $48,945.00   - Must be used in Lead Entity’s jurisdiction 

 $19,034.00   - May be used in City’s jurisdiction. If no project is feasible funds may be  

Total CHDO allocation =         $67,979.00     used in Lead Entity’s jurisdiction. 

 

 

 

    Net Allocations 
 

 

$326,301.00 72% Allocation           $126,895.00 28% Allocation   

- $32,630.00    Admin                                                 - $12,689.00 Admin 

- $48,945.00    CHDO                                                 - $19,034.00 CHDO  

 

$244,726.00       $95,172.00 
  Lead Entity City 

173

ITEM  23.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: July 5, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant & HOME Programs 
  Grant Administration and Technical Services 
  Project Number BL-000-CD 
 
Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
funds.  In Federal Fiscal Year 2019 these programs are $253,085 for CDBG and 
$89,800 for HOME.  The City has been contracting with INRCOG to help with 
administration and technical services related to projects eligible for CDBG funds since 
February 2018.  The City recently completed the required Five Year Consolidated 
Annual Plan for these programs and is ready to implement projects in the adopted 
Federal Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Action Plan.  INRCOG’s support helps the City 
maintain these programs, without adding staff. 
 
The services proposed include CDBG general administration (preparing reports and 
monitoring service agencies), technical support for housing rehabilitation projects, 
Sewer Lining Project support for construction management and Davis-Bacon 
compliance, Sidewalk Replacement Project support for construction management and 
Davis-Bacon compliance and HOME technical support for housing rehabilitation 
projects.  The total cost for administrative services is $28,000.  Housing rehabilitation 
support will be $5,500 per unit. 
 
Staff recommends continuing services with INRCOG in FY20 and expanding services to 
include assistance with HOME programs.  Attached is the proposed agreement with all 
required attachments. 
 
This proposal meets Organizational Goal #3: Deliver public services in a cost effective, 
efficient, professional, and timely manner and Organizational Goal #4: Equitably 
allocate the community’s resources in a manner which cost effectively accomplishes the 
City’s mission. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 

174

ITEM  24.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 
This Agreement is made and entered by and between the Iowa Northland 
Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG), 229 East Park Avenue, 
Waterloo, Iowa 50703, hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT" and City 
of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter referred to as 
"CLIENT.” 
 
IN CONSIDERATION of the covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties 
hereto mutually agree as follows: 
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall perform professional Services (the "Services") 

in connection with CLIENT's facilities in accordance with the Scope 
of Services set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

 
 
II.  CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall, subject to the terms and provisions of this 

Agreement: 
  
 (a) Appoint one or more individuals who shall be authorized to act 

on behalf of CONSULTANT and with whom CLIENT may 
consult at all reasonable times, and whose instructions, 
requests, and decisions will be binding upon CONSULTANT 
as to all matters pertaining to this Agreement and the 
performance of the parties hereunder. 

 

 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 
CDBG Entitlement Funding: Grant Administration and Technical 

Services for Housing and Community Development Projects; HOME 
Program: Technical Services for Housing Projects in Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number  BL-000-CD 
 

Planning &  
Community Services  
Ph: 319-273-8600   
Fax: 319-273-8610 
 
Inspection Services  
Ph: 319-268-5161   
Fax: 319-268-5197 
 
Recreation & 
Community Programs 
110 E. 13

th
 Street 

Ph: 319-273-8636   
Fax: 319-273-8656 
 
Visitors & 
Tourism/Cultural 
Programs 
6510 Hudson Road 
Ph: 319-268-4266    
Fax: 319-277-9707 

175

ITEM  24.



 (b) Use all reasonable efforts to complete the Services within the 
time period mutually agreed upon, except for reasons beyond 
its control, as set forth in Exhibit A. 

 
 (c) Perform the Services in accordance with generally accepted 

professional grant administrative standards in existence at the 
time of performance of the Services. If during the two year 
period following the completion of Services, it is shown that 
there is an error in the Services solely as a result of 
CONSULTANT's failure to meet these standards, 
CONSULTANT shall re-perform such substandard Services 
as may be necessary to remedy such error at no cost to 
CLIENT. Since CONSULTANT has no control over local 
conditions, the cost of labor and materials, or over competitive 
bidding and market conditions, CONSULTANT does not 
guarantee the accuracy of any construction cost estimates as 
compared to contractor's bids or the actual cost to the 
CLIENT. CONSULTANT makes no other warranties either 
express or implied and the parties’ rights, liabilities, 
responsibilities and remedies with respect to the quality of 
Services, including claims alleging negligence, breach of 
warranty and breach of contract, shall be exclusively those set 
forth herein. 

 
 (d) CONSULTANT shall, if requested in writing by CLIENT, for 

the protection of CLIENT, require from all vendors and 
subcontractors from which CONSULTANT procures 
equipment, materials or services for the project, guarantees 
with respect to such equipment, materials and services. All 
such guarantees shall be made available to CLIENT to the full 
extent of the terms thereof. CONSULTANT's liability with 
respect to such equipment, and materials obtained from 
vendors or services from subcontractors, shall be limited to 
procuring guarantees from such vendors or subcontractors 
and rendering all reasonable assistance to CLIENT for the 
purpose of enforcing the same. 

 
(e) CONSULTANT will be providing estimates of costs to the 

CLIENT covering an extended period of time. CONSULTANT 
does not have control over any such costs, including, but not 
limited to, costs of labor, material, equipment or services 
furnished by others or over competitive bidding, marketing or 
negotiating conditions, or construction contractors’ methods of 
determining their prices. Accordingly, it is acknowledged and 
understood that any estimates, projections or opinions of 
probable project costs provided herein by CONSULTANT are 

176

ITEM  24.



 
 

estimates only, made on the basis of CONSULTANT’s 
experience and represent CONSULTANT’s reasonable 
judgment as a qualified professional. CONSULTANT does not 
guarantee that proposals, bids or actual project costs will not 
vary from the opinions of probable costs prepared by 
CONSULTANT, and the CLIENT waives any and all claims 
that it may have against CONSULTANT as a result of any 
such variance.  

 
 
III. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CLIENT shall at such times as may be required for the successful 

and expeditious completion of the Services: 
 
 (a) Provide all criteria and information as to CLIENT’s 

requirements; obtain all necessary approvals and permits 
required from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction 
over the project; and designate a person with authority to act 
on CLIENT’s behalf on all matters concerning the Services. 

  
 (b) Furnish to CONSULTANT all existing studies, reports and 

other available data pertinent to the Services, and obtain 
additional reports, data and services as may be required for 
the project. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely upon all 
such information, data and the results of such other services 
in performing its Services hereunder. 

 
 
IV. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS FOR THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  

The provisions of the document entitled, "Insurance Requirements 
for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls," dated December 13, 
2011 as revised January 31, 2017 consisting of 11 pages, which 
are attached hereto, marked Exhibit B, are hereby made a part of 
this Agreement as if set out word for word herein. 
  
CONSULTANT shall furnish to CLIENT a certificate or certificates 
of insurance containing all coverages, endorsements and other 
provisions required by the Insurance Requirements set forth in 
Exhibit B. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of 
Exhibit B and the other terms of this Agreement, the provisions of 
Exhibit B shall control. 
 

177

ITEM  24.



 CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain an insurance policy or 
policies that meet the provisions set out in the Insurance 
Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, attached 
hereto and marked Exhibit B. 

 
 
V. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS 

BETWEEN CONTRACTORS WHO PERFORM PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 
 The provisions of the documents entitled “Standard Terms and 

Conditions for Contracts Between Contractors Who Perform 
Professional Services and the City of Cedar Falls,” consisting of 
three pages are incorporated into this Agreement by the Client and 
attached as Exhibit C. 

 
 
VI. COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 

Compensation for the services shall be on an hourly basis in 
accordance with the hourly fees and other direct expenses in effect 
at the time the services are performed. CDBG-related 
Administrative compensation for: environmental review and funding 
expenditure authorization shall not exceed $3,000; single-family 
housing rehabilitation services shall not exceed $5,500/unit; total 
agency allocation shall not exceed $5,000; Labor (Davis-Bacon) 
Compliance for a Sewer Lining Project shall not exceed $7,500, for 
Sidewalk Projects shall not exceed $5,000; and total planning and 
reporting expenses shall not exceed $7,500.  HOME compensation 
for single-family housing rehabilitation services shall not exceed 
$5,500/unit; 

 
CONSULTANT may bill the CLIENT monthly for services 
completed at the time of billing. CLIENT agrees to pay 
CONSULTANT the full amount of such invoice within thirty (30) days 
after receipt thereof. In the event CLIENT disputes any invoice item, 
CLIENT shall give CONSULTANT written notice of such disputed 
item within ten (10) days after receipt of invoice and shall pay to 
CONSULTANT the undisputed portion of the invoice according to the 
provisions hereof. CLIENT agrees to abide by any applicable 
statutory prompt pay provisions currently in effect. 

 
 
  

178

ITEM  24.



 
 

VII. TERMINATION 
 
 CLIENT may, with or without cause, terminate the Services at any 

time upon fourteen (14) days written notice to CONSULTANT. The 
obligation to provide further Services under this Agreement may be 
terminated by either party upon fourteen (14) days' written notice in 
the event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in 
accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating 
party, providing such defaulting party has not cured such failure, or, 
in the event of a non-monetary default, commenced reasonable 
actions to cure such failure. In either case, CONSULTANT will be 
paid for all expenses incurred and Services rendered to the date of 
the termination in accordance with compensation terms of Article VI. 

 
 
VIII. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 

(a) Bid documents, specifications, final project specific 
calculations, plans, reports, and other instruments of service 
which CONSULTANT prepares and delivers to CLIENT 
pursuant to this Agreement shall become the property of 
CLIENT when CONSULTANT has been compensated for 
Services rendered. CLIENT shall have the right to use such 
instruments of service solely for the purpose of the benefiting 
the CDBG Entitlement Program. Any other use or reuse of 
original or altered files shall be at CLIENT’s sole risk without 
liability or legal exposure to CONSULTANT and CLIENT 
agrees to release, defend and hold CONSULTANT harmless 
from and against all claims or suits asserted against 
CONSULTANT in the event such documents are used for a 
purpose different than originally prepared even though such 
claims or suits may be based on allegations of negligence by 
CONSULTANT. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be 
construed as limiting or depriving CONSULTANT of its rights 
to use its basic knowledge and skills to design or carry out 
other projects or work for itself or others, whether or not such 
other projects or work are similar to the work to be performed 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
(b) Any files delivered in electronic medium may not work on 

systems and software different than those with which they 
were originally produced and CONSULTANT makes no 
warranty as to the compatibility of these files with any other 
system or software. Because of the potential degradation of 
electronic medium over time, in the event of a conflict 

179

ITEM  24.



between the original documents and the electronic files, the 
original documents will govern. 

 
 
IX. MEANS AND METHODS 
 

(a) CONSULTANT shall not have control or charge of and shall 
not be responsible for construction means, methods, 
techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety measures 
and programs including enforcement of Federal and State 
safety requirements, in connection with construction work 
performed by CLIENT's construction contractors. Nor shall 
CONSULTANT be responsible for the supervision of 
CLIENT's construction contractors, subcontractors or of any 
of their employees, agents and representatives of such 
contractors; or for inspecting machinery, construction 
equipment and tools used and employed by contractors and 
subcontractors on CLIENT's construction projects and shall 
not have the right to stop or reject work without the thorough 
evaluation and approval of the CLIENT. In no event shall 
CONSULTANT be liable for the acts or omissions of 
CLIENT's construction contractors, subcontractors or any 
persons or entities performing any of the construction work, or 
for the failure of any of them to carry out construction work 
under contracts with CLIENT. 

 
 
X. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 

CONSULTANT shall be an independent contractor with respect to 
the Services to be performed hereunder. Neither CONSULTANT 
nor its subcontractors, nor the employees of either, shall be 
deemed to be the servants, employees, or agents of CLIENT. 

 
 
XI. PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS 

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, CONSULTANT 
shall have no legal responsibility or liability for any and all pre-
existing contamination. "Pre-existing contamination" is any 
hazardous or toxic substance present at the site or sites concerned 
which was not brought onto such site or sites by CONSULTANT. 
CLIENT agrees to release CONSULTANT from and against any 
and all liability to the CLIENT which may in any manner arise in any 
way directly or indirectly caused by such pre-existing contamination 
except if such liability arises from CONSULTANT's sole negligence 
or willful misconduct. 

180

ITEM  24.



 
 

 
 CLIENT shall, at CLIENT’s sole expense and risk, arrange for 

handling, storage, transportation, treatment and delivery for disposal 
of pre-existing contamination. CLIENT shall be solely responsible for 
obtaining a disposal site for such material. CLIENT shall look to the 
disposal facility and/or transporter for any responsibility or liability 
arising from improper disposal or transportation of such waste. 
CONSULTANT shall not have or exert any control over CLIENT in 
CLIENT’s obligations or responsibilities as a generator in the 
storage, transportation, treatment or disposal of any pre-existing 
contamination. CLIENT shall complete and execute any 
governmentally required forms relating to regulated activities 
including, but not limited to generation, storage, handling, treatment, 
transportation, or disposal of pre-existing contamination.  

 
 For CONSULTANT's Services requiring drilling, boring, excavation or 

soils sampling, CLIENT shall approve selection of the contractors to 
perform such services, all site locations, and provide CONSULTANT 
with all necessary information regarding the presence of 
underground hazards, utilities, structures and conditions at the site.  
 
 

XII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
 If a dispute arises out of, or relates to, the breach of this Agreement 

and if the dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, then the 
CONSULTANT and the CLIENT agree to submit the dispute to 
mediation. In the event CONSULTANT or the CLIENT desires to 
mediate any dispute, that party shall notify the other party in writing 
of the dispute desired to be mediated. If the parties are unable to 
resolve their differences within 10 days of the receipt of such notice, 
such dispute shall be submitted for mediation in accordance with the 
procedures and rules of the American Arbitration Association (or any 
successor organization) then in effect. The deadline for submitting 
the dispute to mediation can be changed if the parties mutually agree 
in writing to extend the time between receipt of notice and 
submission to mediation. The expenses of the mediator shall be 
shared 50 percent by CONSULTANT and 50 percent by the 
CLIENT. This requirement to seek mediation shall be a condition 
required before filing an action at law or in equity. However, prior to 
or during the negotiations or the mediation either party may initiate 
litigation that would otherwise be barred by a statute of limitations, 
and CONSULTANT may pursue any property liens or other rights it 
may have to obtain security for the payment of its invoices. 

 

181

ITEM  24.



 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa 
and any action at law or other judicial proceeding arising from this 
Agreement shall be instituted in Black Hawk County District Court, 
Waterloo, Iowa. 

 
 
XIII. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 (a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 

parties hereto and supersedes any oral or written 
representations, understandings, proposals, or 
communications heretofore entered into by or on account of 
the parties and may not be changed, modified, or amended 
except in writing signed by the parties hereto. In the event of 
any conflict between this contract document and any of the 
exhibits hereto, the terms and conditions of Exhibit C shall 
control. In the event of any conflict among the exhibits, Exhibit 
C shall control. 

 
 (b) This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

Iowa. 
 
 (c) CONSULTANT may subcontract any portion of the Services 

to a subcontractor approved by CLIENT. In no case shall 
CLIENT's approval of any subcontract relieve CONSULTANT 
of any of its obligations under this Agreement.  

 
 (d) In the event CLIENT uses a purchase order form to 

administer this Agreement, the use of such form shall be for 
convenience purposes only, and any typed provision in 
conflict with the terms of this Agreement and all preprinted 
terms and conditions contained in or on such forms shall be 
deemed stricken and null and void. 

 
 (e) This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other 

than CLIENT and CONSULTANT and does not create any 
third party beneficiaries to the Agreement. 

 
(f) Except as may be explicitly set forth above, nothing contained 

in this Agreement or its exhibits limits the rights and remedies, 
including remedies related to damages, of either party that are 
available to either party under the law. 

 
  

182

ITEM  24.



 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement 
on the day and year written below. 
 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
By:  

 
By:  

Printed Name: James P. Brown Printed Name:Kevin Blanshan 
Title: Mayor of Cedar Falls Title: INRCOG Executive Director 
 
Date:  

 
Date:  

 

183

ITEM  24.



    

Exhibit A 
 

CDBG Entitlement Funding: Grant Administration and Technical Services for 
Housing and Community Development Projects; HOME Program: Technical 

Services for Housing Projects in Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number BL-000-CD 

 

   
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
CDBG GRANT ADMINISTRATION AND TECHNICAL SERVICES FOR HOUSING 

PROJECTS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 
Overview 
 
The Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) is proposing to 
continue administering the City of Cedar Falls’ (City) Housing Rehabilitation, Housing 
Repair, and Agency Grant programs, all of which are funded through the City’s 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Entitlement allocation. 
 
 
Qualifications 

 

Housing Rehabilitation and CDBG Experience 
 
As a public agency created under Chapter 28E of the Iowa Code, INRCOG serves a six-
county area. The City of Cedar Falls is a member in good standing our staff has built a 
solid relationship with the City’s staff. We are located in close proximity to Cedar Falls 
City Hall and we are very familiar with the community, including its infrastructure, 
services and its elected and appointed officials.   
 
Our agency is proud of the working relationships we have built with numerous federal 
and state departments, as we have administered numerous programs on behalf of our 
local government members. Included amongst those agencies are the US Department of 
Commerce, Economic Development Administration; US Department of Agriculture; 
Federal Highway and Federal Transit Administrations; Federal Emergency Management 
Agency; Iowa Economic Development Authority; Iowa Department of Transportation; 
Iowa Department of Natural Resources; Iowa Homeland Security and Emergency 
Management; and the Iowa Finance Authority. INRCOG also provides staff and 
oversight for several regional bodies including the Black Hawk County Metropolitan 
Transportation Organization; Regional Transportation Authority; Regional Transit 
Commission; Regional Economic Development Commission; and Regional Housing 
Council. Further, our agency has acted as the procurement and fiscal agent for multi-
county emergency management regions. Through our work, our agency has developed 
relationships with several non-profit organizations, including administration of housing-
related grants which involves working directly with several entities such as The Salvation 
Army, Iowa Heartland Habitat for Humanity, Cedar Valley Friends of the Family, 

184

ITEM  24.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

Operation Threshold, Exceptional Persons, Inc., Northeast Iowa Area Agency on Aging; 
Northeast Iowa Community Action Corporation; Community Based Services; and House 
of Hope. 
 
INRCOG has extensive housing rehabilitation and repair experience under the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority’s (IEDA) Housing Rehabilitation and Iowa Finance 
Authority’s (IFA) Local Housing Trust Fund programs.  IEDA’s program is funded 
through the CDBG program, as administered by the US Department of Housing and 
Urban Development, and the IFA program is funded through the State Housing Trust 
Fund. We also have a familiarity with the HOME Investment Partnership Program as 
administered by the US Department of Housing and Development. INRCOG has 
administered housing trust fund grants for the Iowa Northland Regional Housing Council 
since 2003 and since 2014 for the Waterloo Housing Trust Fund. Through the trust 
funds, our staff has developed and administered annual homeowner repair programs 
that serve approximately ten individual households per year. In addition to administering 
the individual home improvement programs, INRCOG has managed numerous housing 
acquisition programs, as funded by the Hazard Mitigation Grant and CDBG Programs, 
following disasters in 1993, 1999, 2000, 2008, and 2016. 
 
Our staff writes the grants for these programs for our member local governments and we 
performs all administrative tasks relative to construction, finance, and professional 
service functions associated with the programs.  We have completed all IEDA basic and 
updated trainings associated with administering CDBG funds, specifically those 
associated with environmental assessments, Davis-Bacon (prevailing wage) compliance, 
historical preservation review and approval, Section 3 (hiring practices) compliance, fair 
housing standards, lead-based paint testing and certification, radon testing, and 
contractor procurement. INRCOG is accustomed to developing the necessary contracts, 
developing file and program management techniques, assisting with city audits, 
successfully preparing for and completing IEDA monitoring reviews, conflict mediation, 
financial management, and closeout processes associated with CDBG projects. 
 

Primary INRCOG Staff Members 
The primary contacts for this proposal and program are 

o Brian Schoon, Director of Development (bschoon@inrcog.org);  
o Cindy Knox, Housing Planner II (cknox@inrcog.org);  
o Rose Phillips, Housing Planner II (rphillips@inrcog.org).   

 
Brian Schoon has been employed by INRCOG since September 1991 and is currently 
serving as the Director of Development. He is a member of the American Institute of 
Certified Planners. His responsibilities include supervision, project administration, budget 
oversight, and planning functions associated with INRCOG’s housing, planning, and 
economic development efforts, including numerous CDBG projects funded by the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority (IEDA).  Schoon also oversees the Iowa Northland 
Regional Housing Council and its local Housing Trust Funds and staffs the Waterloo 
Housing Trust Fund and its financial programs. He is currently providing planning 
services to the City, including updating the Consolidated and Annual Action Plans 
related to its current HUD CDBG Entitlement Program. Schoon has a Bachelors’ degree 
in Landscape Design from South Dakota State University and a Masters’ degree in 
Community and Regional Planning from Iowa State University. 

185

ITEM  24.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

 
Cindy Knox has worked as a housing program specialist for INRCOG for 13 years. 
Knox has administered nearly two dozen CDBG housing rehab programs, as well as 
other housing programs awarded to our member communities from the US Department 
of Agriculture, Federal Home Loan Bank, and Iowa Finance Authority. She has managed 
homebuyer and down-payment assistance programs; housing inspection programs; and 
emergency and rural repair programs for our regional Housing Council. Knox is a 
Certified Lead-Based Paint Sampling Technician and has knowledge of Iowa Minimum 
Housing and Housing Quality Standards. Knox has a Bachelor’s degree in Design and 
the Human Environment from the University of Northern Iowa. 
 
Rose Phillips has been with INRCOG since early 2017 and is responsible for managing 
CDBG housing rehabilitation programs for our member communities. She also develops 
housing needs assessments and manages post-disaster housing acquisition programs 
for our member local governments. Phillips has a Bachelors’ degree in Environmental 
Studies from Mount Holyoke College and a Masters’ degree in Urban and Regional 
Planning from the University of Iowa. 
 
Richard Dewater (INRCOG Subcontractor) will serve as an independent contract 
employee of INRCOG, as he has for over two dozen of our rehabilitation projects.  His 
expenses, which are flat-fee, are included in the Technical Services budget of this 
proposal.  He will perform all initial rehabilitation and lead-based paint inspections, as 
well as draft bid specifications which outlines work to be completed on each selected 
unit.  Dewater will perform all inspections of work by contractor(s), mediate disputes, and 
make himself available for meetings and technical assistance. 
 
 
Description of Technical Services, Grant Administration, and Organizational 
Capacity 
 
INRCOG, through its existing staff, will administer the City’s Fiscal Year 2019 Housing 
Rehabilitation and Housing  
 
Repair Programs and the Agency Grant program, as funded by the US Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). As part of a subsequent contract, INRCOG will 
complete rehabilitation projects and repair homes in the same manner that INRCOG 
currently provides to non-entitlement CDBG communities, and will assist with providing 
agency grants, all under the supervision of City staff. Included in each housing 
rehabilitation project, INRCOG will provide general and technical administrative services, 
which includes income verifications, construction management, vendor procurements, 
lead tests, and oversight of radon testing, as is necessary.  INRCOG will propose per 
unit expenses for each home, including staff time and benefits, travel time and 
expenses, recording, mailing, and other ancillary expenses associated with the program. 
 
INRCOG will be responsible for providing all inspections and for preparing initial project 
descriptions as may be associated with the programs addressed under this proposal. 
INRCOG will prepare procurement and contract documents as is necessary for each 
rehabilitation and/or repair project. We will then manage each home project including 
preparation of a prioritized list of projects, contracts, and implementation of each 

186

ITEM  24.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

contract.  INRCOG will present any necessary approvals or reports to the City’s staff.  
Further, as HUD’s subrecipient, the City will be responsible for obtaining HUD 
reimbursement for all expenses under this proposal with INRCOG assisting with 
obtaining said reimbursements. Likewise, INRCOG will assist the City with any 
necessary HUD or CDBG reports, as requested. 
 
 
Budget 
 
INRCOG is prepared to offer the administrative services for a not-to-exceed price for 
each unit or task completed during the City fiscal year, as outlined below.  Said 
administrative expenses will be billed on an hourly basis, using rates that will be defined 
in the contract between the City and INRCOG. 
 

o General Administration-Environmental Review and Release of Funds 
o INRCOG: $3,000 

o Single-Unit Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program 

 $33,500/Unit (Includes all Tech Services, Construction, and Program 
expenses) 

o INRCOG Technical Services Expense: $5,500/Unit 

o Agency Awards Program (to City-Determined Agencies) 

 Approximately $5,500/Agency to Six (6) Agencies (Includes all Administration 
Procurement, Monitoring, and Award expenses) 

o INRCOG Expense: $5,000 

o Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements: Sewer Lining Project 

 Construction Management and Davis-Bacon Compliance 
o INRCOG Expense: $7,500 

o Neighborhood Access: Sidewalk Replacement Project 

 Construction Management and Davis-Bacon Compliance 
o INRCOG Expense: $5,000 

o Plan and Report Development 

 Annual Action Plan, CAPER, and Reports (i.e. Section 3, MBE/DBE, SF 425) 
o INRCOG Expense: $7,500 

 
o HOME: Single-Unit Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program 

 $33,500/Unit (Includes all Tech Services, Construction, and Program 
expenses) 
o INRCOG Technical Services Expense: $5,500/Unit 

 
If accepted by the City, INRCOG is willing to negotiate a contract utilizing the City’s 
standard agreement.  INRCOG currently meets the City’s insurance requirements and 
has attached a certificate as evidence.   
 
As with prior contracts, INRCOG will provide monthly invoices to the City for services 
provided by our staff.  Services covered by the agreement will be assigned an individual, 

187

ITEM  24.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

unique program number through which expenses will be tracked and monitored within 
INRCOG’s monthly financial reports and annual independent audit.  INRCOG shall make 
all financial records available to the City upon request. 

 

Time of Performance 
Work under this proposal would begin upon execution of an agreement and completion 
would be no later than June 30th, 2020.  INRCOG may propose an extension to the 
negotiated agreement, in the event it is unable to complete the services defined above.  
Accordingly, the completion date may be extended for a period of up to six (6) months 
upon written request of INRCOG documenting a good faith effort to complete 
performance in a timely manner. 

 

Project Review 
At least annually, but not later than May 1st, 2020 during the contract timeframe, the City 
and INRCOG will meet to review INRCOG’s performance with regard to the services 
provided to the City.  Extending the existing agreement for future years(s) may also be 
discussed at that time. 
 

188

ITEM  24.



    

Exhibit B 
 

CDBG Entitlement Funding: Grant Administration and Technical Services for 
Housing and Community Development Projects; HOME Program: Technical 

Services for Housing Projects in Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number BL-000-CD 

 
  Original12/13/11 

Revision 01/31/2017 
 
    INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR  

CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who 
perform work for the City of Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this 
document shall be defined as the general contractor, artisan contractor, or design 
contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under contract. 
 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer 
authorized by law to do business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be 
companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the 
current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the 
Cancellation & Material Change Endorsement.  A copy of this endorsement is 
attached in Exhibit 1. 
 
3.  Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Exhibit 1.  Such Certificates shall 
include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 

Exhibit 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1 

 
Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly licensed to transact business at the location 
of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment.    
 
Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subcontractors and sub-sub-contractors who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 

189

ITEM  24.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of 
these requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the 
required insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall 
constitute a default under this Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to 
terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor’s 
expense. 
 
7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum 
coverage/limits or greater, if required by law or other legal agreement; as per 
Exhibit 1: 
 

 This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. 
All deviations or exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general 
liability form CG 001 shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the City.  

 
 Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years 

following substantial completion of the Work to cover liability arising from 
the products-completed operations hazard and liability assumed under an 
insured contract.    

 
 Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form 

attached. 
 

 Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 
The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or 
authorities and their board members, employees and volunteers shall be 
named as an additional insured on General Liability Policies for all classes 
of contractors. 
 
Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an 
additional insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage 
equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 
 

*  ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Scheduled Person or Organization” 

  
 ** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 

Contractors – Completed Operations”  
 

190

ITEM  24.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

 
8. Errors & Omissions:  If the contract’s scope of services includes design 
work or other professional services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance 
coverage for errors, omissions and other wrongful acts or omissions (except for 
intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services performed 
by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions 
coverage for a period commencing no later than the date of the contract, and 
continuing for a period of no less than 2 years from the date of completion of all 
work completed or services performed under the contract.  The limit of liability 
shall not be less than $1,000,000. 
 
9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not 
contain the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially 
similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 
 
10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not 
represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this Contract.  The 
City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that 
otherwise specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums 
payable shall be added to the bid price. 
 
11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision:  To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, the Contractor agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold 
harmless the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including 
any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages which 
may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and 
volunteers working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not 
limited to, damages arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or 
death, and property damages, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising 
out of the errors, omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, 
employees, subcontractors or others working on behalf of the Contractor.  It is 
the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on 
behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall not be liable or in any way 
responsible for the injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by the 
Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the 
Contractor due to accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in 
person or property resulting from the work and/or services performed by the 

191

ITEM  24.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

Contractor pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to the extent 
caused by the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   
 
The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries 
which may result to any person or property by reason of or in connection with the 
work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions or 
negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others 
working on behalf of the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa for all damages caused to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting 
from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out 
of such errors, omissions or negligent acts. 
 
The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this 
contract will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified 
personnel, and the Contractor will observe, and cause its officers, employees, 
subcontractors and others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 
 
12. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, agents and volunteers working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the 
Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of 
subrogation or otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or 
any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor’s 
employees. This provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with 
respect to loss or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out 
of the work performed under this contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance 
shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that such release shall not 
adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the right of the Contractor to 
recover thereunder. 
 
 
Completion Checklist 
 

 Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
 Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
 Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
 Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

 
 
 
 

192

ITEM  24.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 
 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 
  

 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000                            
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned 
and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if 
the Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same 
endorsements as required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 
 

 
  

193

ITEM  24.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all 
its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and 
their board members, employees, and volunteers, are included as Additional 
Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and 
completed operations CG 2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing 
with any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, 
whether other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly 
agrees and states that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of 
governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of 
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be 
responsible for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so 
at any time and shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance 
carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from 
asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage 
under this policy and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and 
benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of 
governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction has 
ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall 
not otherwise change or alter the coverage available under the policy. 

194

ITEM  24.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

 
CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 

 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, 
Reduction in coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-
payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar 
Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement 
supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of Insurance to 
which this endorsement is attached.  Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 
days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage 
and/or limits, and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of premium. 
 
 
  

195

ITEM  24.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

 

$1,000,000 

196

ITEM  24.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

  

197

ITEM  24.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

 

198

ITEM  24.



 

  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

 

199

ITEM  24.



    

Exhibit C 
 

CDBG Entitlement Funding: Grant Administration and Technical Services for 
Housing and Community Development Projects; HOME Program: Technical 

Services for Housing Projects in Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number BL-000-CD 

 
 

  2/9/12 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN 
CONTRACTORS WHO PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS 
 

 This document outlines the Standard Terms and Conditions for all Contractors 
who perform work or services for the City of Cedar Falls under a contract.  The term, 
“Contractor,” as used in this document, includes an engineer, an architect, and any other 
design professional providing professional services to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
under a contract (but excludes construction contractors). 
 
 1. This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed 
by an authorized representative of the City of Cedar Falls and of the Contractor. 
 
 2. Time is of the essence of this Contract. 
 
 3. Contractor shall be an independent contractor with respect to the services 
to be performed under this Contract.  Neither Contractor nor its subcontractors, agents, 
or employees, shall be deemed to be employees or agents of the City. 
 
 4. Contractor shall perform all duties in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations. 
 
 5. If Contractor breaches this Contract, the City shall have all remedies 
available to it at law or in equity. 
 
 6. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is declared invalid, illegal, or 
incapable of being enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining 
provisions of this Contract shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and no 
provision shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed 
herein. 
 
 7. Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Contract or any of its rights 
or obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent 
may be withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the City. 
 
 8. Survival of Obligations.  All obligations and duties which by their nature 
extend beyond the term of this Contract shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Contract. 

200

ITEM  24.



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

 

 
 9. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue and Trial.  This Contract shall be 
construed in accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the laws 
of the State of Iowa, excluding its conflicts of law rules.  The parties hereto agree that 
the exclusive jurisdiction and venue shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk 
County, and in no other jurisdiction or location, and shall not be removed to federal 
court.  The parties hereby agree to waive the right to trial by jury and agree to submit all 
disputes to a trial by judge alone.  The parties agree that no disputes under this Contract 
shall be submitted to binding arbitration, but may be submitted to mediation by mutual 
consent of both parties. 
 
 10. Any failure of Contractor to comply with the Insurance Requirements for 
Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls set forth on Attachment B, shall constitute a 
default under this Contract. 
 
 11. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of litigation, the City shall under no 
circumstances be obligated for payment of any attorneys’ fees of Contractor or any other 
party, arising out of such litigation. 
 
 12. Payment.  Payment of Contractor’s invoices shall be due no sooner than 
thirty (30) days from the date of invoice.  In the event any invoices are not paid within 
thirty (30) days, the City shall pay interest thereon at the rate provided for by 
Section 668.13(3), Code of Iowa, computed monthly. 
 
 13. The City shall not be obligated to maintain confidentiality of Contractor 
documents or records that are furnished to the City if such documents are public records 
under the Iowa Open Records Law, Chapter 22, Code of Iowa, and the City shall have 
no responsibility to Contractor for disclosure of such records. 
 
 14. Under no circumstances shall the City waive any damages against the 
Contractor or any other party arising out of any breach of this Contract, whether 
consequential, indirect, special, or punitive damages. 
 
 15. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor’s liability to the City be 
limited to any specific amount or sum, whether that amount is the compensation paid by 
the City to the Contractor under this Contract, or the dollar amount of coverage provided 
for in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, Attachment 
A. 
 
 16. No waiver of the City’s subrogation rights against the Contractor or any 
other party shall conflict with the provisions of the City Insurance Requirements, 
Attachment A. 
 
 17. Limitations Period.  There shall be no limitation, except as provided for by 
Iowa law, on the period of time within which the City may make any claim against the 
Contractor or other party under the provisions of this Contract. 
 

201

ITEM  24.



 
  CDBG Entitlement Housing Services 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. BL-000-CD 
 

 

 18. This Contract shall not be binding on the City unless and until approved 
by the City Council of the City at a duly constituted meeting, and signed by the Mayor 
and City Clerk of the City. 
 
 19. Warranties.  Contractor represents and warrants that all services 
furnished to the City under this Contract shall be furnished in a skilled and workmanlike 
manner, in accordance with the degree of skill and care that is required by current, good 
and sound practices applicable to the Contractor’s industry or profession, and as 
otherwise required by applicable law. 
 
 20. Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Contract shall be liable to the other 
party for delays in performing the services, or for the direct or indirect cost resulting from 
such delays, that may result from acts of God, acts of governmental authorities, 
extraordinary weather conditions or other natural catastrophes, or any other cause 
beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party.  Each party will take 
reasonable steps to mitigate the impact of any force majeure. 
 

202

ITEM  24.



Source: IOWA 2018 CDBG MANAGEMENT GUIDE – APPENDIX 2 PAGE: 64  

 

ATTACHMENT D: REQUIRED FEDERAL CONTRACT LANGUAGE 

All project contracts shall contain at a minimum the following provisions, as appropriate. 

 
ALL CONTRACTS 

1. Access and Maintenance of Records 

The contractor must maintain all required records for five years after final payments are made and 
all other pending matters are closed. 

At any time during normal business hours and as frequently as is deemed necessary, the contractor 
shall make available to the Iowa Economic Development Authority, the State Auditor, the General 
Accounting Office, and the Department of Housing and Urban Development, for their examination, 
all of its records pertaining to all matters covered by this contract and permit these agencies to 
audit, examine, make excerpts or transcripts from such records, contract, invoices, payrolls, 
personnel records, conditions of employment, and all other matters covered by this contract. 

2. Civil Rights 

The Contractor must comply with the following laws and regulations: 

 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352). 

States that no person may be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or 
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial 
assistance on the basis of race, color, or national origin. 

 

 Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Fair Housing Act), as amended. 
 

 Federal Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259 
Equal Opportunity Housing 

 

 Iowa Civil Rights Act of 1965. 
This Act mirrors the Federal Civil Rights Act. 

 

 Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (42 
U.S.C. 5309). 

Provides that no person shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or 
subjected to discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or handicap 
under any program or activity funded in part or in whole under Title I of the Act. 

 

 The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 1601 et seq.) 

Provides that no person on the basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the 
benefits of or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal 
financial assistance. 

 

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-112, 29 U.S.C. 794). 
Provides that no otherwise qualified individual shall solely by reason of his/her handicap be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be discriminated against under 
any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 

 

 Americans with Disabilities Act (P.L. 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) 
Provides comprehensive civil rights to individuals with disabilities in the areas of 
employment, public accommodations, state and local government services, and 
telecommunications. 203

ITEM  24.



Source: IOWA 2018 CDBG MANAGEMENT GUIDE – APPENDIX 2 PAGE: 65  

 Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended (12 U.S.C. 1701u). 
 

The purpose of section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 ( 12 U.S.C. 
1701u) (section 3) is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities 
generated by certain HUD financial assistance shall, to the greatest extent feasible, and 
consistent with existing Federal, State and local laws and regulations, be directed to low- 
and very low-income persons, particularly those who are recipients of government 
assistance for housing, and to business concerns which provide economic opportunities to 
low- and very low-income persons. 

 
3. Termination Clause 

All contracts utilizing CDBG funds must contain a termination clause that specifies the following: 

 Under what conditions the clause may be imposed. 

 The form the termination notice must take (e.g., certified letter). 

 The time frame required between the notice of termination and its effective date. 

 The method used to compute the final payment(s) to the contractor. 
 

4. Certification regarding government-wide restriction on lobbying. 

All contracts utilizing CDBG funds must contain the following certification concerning restriction of 
lobbying: 

"The Recipient certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 
i. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 

Recipient, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 
a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making 
of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

ii. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee, or an employee of a Member of congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Recipient 
shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Federal 
Lobbying" in accordance with its instruction. 

iii. The Recipient shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts 
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and 
disclose accordingly. 

 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making 
or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails 
to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not 
more than $100,000 for each such failure." 

 

 
5. Lead-Safe Housing Regulations (As applicable) 

24 CFR Part 35 et. al. 

204

ITEM  24.



Source: IOWA 2018 CDBG MANAGEMENT GUIDE – APPENDIX 2 PAGE: 66  

Requirements for Notification, Evaluation and Reduction of Lead-Based Paint Hazards in Federally 
Owned Residential Properties and Housing Receiving Federal Assistance, Final Rule 

 

 
6. Recycled Materials 

The contractor agrees to comply with all the requirements of Code of Iowa chapter 8A.315-317 and 
Iowa Administrative Code chapter 11-117.6(5) — Recycled Product and Content. 

 

 
ALL CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $10,000 

Federal Executive Orders 11246 and 11375: 
Provides that no one be discriminated in employment. 

 
"During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 
(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 

because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative 
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action 
shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or 
transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other 
forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor 
agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

(2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

(3) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a 
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be provided 
by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the 
contractor's commitments under Section 202 of the Executive Order No. 11246 of September 
24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees 
and applicants for employment. 

(4) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 
24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 

(5) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order No. 11246 
of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, 
or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the 
contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain 
compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

(6) In the event of the contractor's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination clause of this 
contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, 
terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for 
further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 
No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies 
invoked as provided in Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, 
regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

(7) The contractor will include the provisions of Paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract 
or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor 
issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, so 
that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.  The contractor will 

205

ITEM  24.



Source: IOWA 2018 CDBG MANAGEMENT GUIDE – APPENDIX 2 PAGE: 67  

take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the contracting 
agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for 
noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event the contractor becomes involved in, or 
is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by 
the contracting agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

 
 

ALL CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $100,000 
 

Clean Air and Water Acts: 
 

 Section 306 of the Clean Air Acts (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)). 

 Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368). 

 Executive Order 11738. Providing administration of the Clean Air and Water Acts 
 

Clean Air and Water Acts - required clauses: 
This clause is required in all third party contracts involving projects subject to the Clean Air Act (42 
U.S.C. 1857 et seq.), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.), and the 
regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency with respect to 40 CFR Part 15, as amended. It 
should also be mentioned in the bid document. 

During the performance of this contract, the CONTRACTOR agrees as follows: 
(1) The CONTRACTOR will certify that any facility to be utilized in the performance of any 

nonexempt contract or subcontract is not listed on the Excluded Party Listing System 
pursuant to 40 CFR 32. 

(2) The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all the requirements of Section 114 of the Clean 
Air Act, as amended, (42 U.S.C. 1857c-8) and Section 308 of the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1318) relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, reports, 
and information, as well as all other requirements specified in said Section 114 and Section 
308, and all regulations and guidelines issued thereunder. 

(3) The CONTRACTOR agrees that as a condition for the award of the contract, prompt notice 
will be given of any notification received from the Director, Office of Federal Activities, 
Environmental Protection Agency, indicating that a facility utilized or to be utilized for the 
contract is under consideration to be listed on the Excluded Party Listing System. 

(4) The CONTRACTOR agrees that it will include or cause to be included the criteria and 
requirements in Paragraph (1) through (4) of this section in every nonexempt subcontract 
and require every subcontractor to take such action as the Government may direct as a 
means of enforcing such provisions. 

 

ALL CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF $2,000 

Federal Labor Standards 

In addition to the preceding provisions, all construction contracts in excess of $2,000 must include 
the Federal Labor Standards Provisions (verbatim) found in Appendix 2 under Required Contract 
Provisions. (Housing rehabilitation contracts of less than 8 units are excluded from this 
requirement.) 

Federal Labor Standards Provisions (verbatim) found in Appendix 2, including: 

 Davis-Bacon and Related Acts 

 Contract Work Hours and Safety Standard Act 

 Copeland Anti-kickback Act 

206

ITEM  24.



The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

CANCELLATION

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

LOCJECT
PRO-POLICY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
EACH OCCURRENCE $

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$RETENTIONDED

CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

$

AGGREGATE $

EACH OCCURRENCE $UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

PER
STATUTE

OTH-
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

$

$

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

(Mandatory in NH)
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED

HIRED AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS AUTOS

AUTOS

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE $

$

$

$

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSD
ADDL

WVD
SUBR

N / A

$

$

(Ea accident)

(Per accident)

OTHER:

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed.  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

INSURED

PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext):

PRODUCER

ADDRESS:
E-MAIL

FAX
(A/C, No):

CONTACT
NAME:

NAIC #

INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

7/3/2019

PDCM Insurance
P.O. Box 2597
Waterloo IA 50704

Janet Dufel, CPCU, CIC, CRM, CPIW
319-234-8888 319-234-7702

jdufel@pdcm.com

Philadelphia Ins. Companies
IOWANOR-02 IMWCA

Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments
229 E. Park Avenue
Waterloo IA 50703

XL Insurance

584332175

A X 1,000,000
X 1,000,000

20,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

X

Y Y PHPK2005532 7/1/2019 7/1/2020

2,000,000

A 1,000,000
X

XX

Y Y PHPK2005532 7/1/2019 7/1/2020

A X X 4,000,000

10,000

Y PHUB683959

X
4,000,000

7/1/2019 7/1/2020

B

N

0640 7/1/2019 7/1/2020 X
5,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000
A
C

Professional Liability
Public Officials E&O/EPL

PHPK2005532
POL0950362

7/1/2019
7/1/2019

7/1/2020
7/1/2020

Ea Incident/Aggregate
Ea Claim/Aggregate

1000000/2000000
3000000/3000000

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its employees and volunteers, all its boards, commissions and/or authorities and
their board members, employees and volunteers are an Additional insured on the general liability policy on a primary and non-contributory basis (CG2010 &
CG2037). Governmental Immunities Endorsement and 30 Day Notice of Cancellation Endorsement are included. Waiver of Subrogation applies under General
Liability.

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls IA 50613

207

ITEM  24.



� � � � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � �

�  � � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � ! � � � � � " � � � # " $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � #

% � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � &' ( ) ) * + ' , - . / * 0 * + - . . , - 1 , . , 2 3 ' ( 4 * + - / * 5 - + 26 ' 7 * 8 9 . ** : : ; < = > ? ; 8 @ = ; A0 @ B ; C : 5 ; D E C F C D ( D G @ F > H @ = > C F I - J J > = > C F @ K , F E L D ; J M A

6 * ' 2 , ( 0 , , N O 7 ( , 6 - 0 , 0 6 9 + * 8 � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  �  �  � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � �  � � P  � � � � � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � " Q � � � � � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  Q � � � � � � � � R Q � � � � � � � S � � � " TR � � � � � � � � �  �  � � T � � R � � � � � �  �  � �  �  � � � � � � � � � � S � � � T  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � �  � � � � � R � � � � $ � � U T � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � P  � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  � �� � � $ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � #% � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � Q � � � � � $ � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � �  � � �  � � � � Q � � � � � � � � � � � �� � �  � � P  � � � � � V � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � " � W � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � �� � �  � � P  � � � � #% � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � �   � � �  � � � � � � � � � � Q � � � � � � �  � � � � �    � �  Q � � � � � � � V � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � �� � �  � � � � � � T � � � � � � � � � � T $ � � �  � � � � � � � � � V � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � #% � � V � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � X � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � � � "  � � � � � � � Q � � � �6 * ' 2 , ( 0 , , , N . , ) , 2 6 ( Y , 0 6 9 + - 0 ' * #V � � � � � � � � � � � � " � � � � � � � � � � "  � � � W � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �  � � � � �  Q � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  � �� � �  � � � � � �  � � � � #

Z [ \ ] ^ _ Z ` a b c d b e e fg g h Z e b ] i \Z ` a b c d b e e f j k l m h n o p
q r s t u s t q r v

w w
208

ITEM  24.



� � � � � � � � � 	 
 � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

 � � � � � � � � � � �  ! " # $  % & ' & # ( ) % & ! � * * ) % & + �  % , + - . / - 0 1 2 3 � 4 5 �

6 7 ) ! &  8 9 # ! & : &  ; : 9 8 ) * ) & ! )  ! " # $  % & < # 9 ( ) 8 & 8 "  8 & # ; 7 & * 9 = = 9 > )  ? �� � � � 
 � � � @ � A 
 � 
 � @ � � � @ 	 � � � 6 � � � B 
 � @ A 
 � @ � 6C  D � E F � �� 1 G 3 � 5 � H H I J I 4 K 1 L � K M N O 3 H 0 3 O M 4 K P M Q� O � O 2 1 K I R 1 J I 4 K P M Q � 4 S 1 J I 4 K P M Q � 5  4 T 3 O 3 H � U 3 O 1 J I 4 K M
�  * 9 # : $ ; ) 9  # & V " ) # & 8 ; 9 % 9 : < = & ; & ; 7 ) ! ' % 7 & 8 " = & + ) *  9 ; ! 7 9 >  $ W 9 ( & + > ) = = W & ! 7 9 >  )  ; 7 & X & % = $ # $ ; ) 9  ! ,� Y C 3 S J I 4 K � � Z [ \ 4 � M � K � K M N O 3 H ) ! $ : &  8 & 8 ; 9)  % = " 8 & $ ! $  $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ; 7 & < & # ! 9  ] ! ^ 9 #9 # ? $  ) _ $ ; ) 9  ] ! ^ ! 7 9 >  )  ; 7 & ' % 7 & 8 " = & + W " ; 9  = `> ) ; 7 # & ! < & % ; ; 9 = ) $ W ) = ) ; ` * 9 # a W 9 8 ) = ` )  b " # ` a + a < # 9 < & # ; `8 $ : $ ? & a 9 # a < & # ! 9  $ = $  8 $ 8 ( & # ; ) ! )  ? )  b " # ` a% $ " ! & 8 + )  > 7 9 = & 9 # )  < $ # ; + W ` �� Y � 9 " # $ % ; ! 9 # 9 : ) ! ! ) 9  ! c 9 #� Y 6 7 & $ % ; ! 9 # 9 : ) ! ! ) 9  ! 9 * ; 7 9 ! & $ % ; )  ? 9  ` 9 " #W & 7 $ = * c)  ; 7 & < & # * 9 # : $  % & 9 * ` 9 " # 9  ? 9 )  ? 9 < & # $ ; ) 9  ! * 9 #; 7 & $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ] ! ^ $ ; ; 7 & = 9 % $ ; ) 9  ] ! ^8 & ! ) ?  $ ; & 8 $ W 9 ( & ,d 9 > & ( & # �� Y 6 7 & )  ! " # $  % & $ * * 9 # 8 & 8 ; 9 ! " % 7 $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ =)  ! " # & 8 9  = ` $ < < = ) & ! ; 9 ; 7 & & e ; &  ; < & # : ) ; ; & 8 W `= $ > c $  8� Y � * % 9 ( & # $ ? & < # 9 ( ) 8 & 8 ; 9 ; 7 & $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ) !# & V " ) # & 8 W ` $ % 9  ; # $ % ; 9 # $ ? # & & : &  ; + ; 7 &)  ! " # $  % & $ * * 9 # 8 & 8 ; 9 ! " % 7 $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8> ) = =  9 ; W & W # 9 $ 8 & # ; 7 $  ; 7 $ ; > 7 ) % 7 ` 9 " $ # &# & V " ) # & 8 W ` ; 7 & % 9  ; # $ % ; 9 # $ ? # & & : &  ; ; 9< # 9 ( ) 8 & * 9 # ! " % 7 $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ,

� Y f ) ; 7 # & ! < & % ; ; 9 ; 7 & )  ! " # $  % & $ * * 9 # 8 & 8 ; 9 ; 7 & ! &$ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ! + ; 7 & * 9 = = 9 > )  ? $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ =& e % = " ! ) 9  ! $ < < = ` �6 7 ) ! )  ! " # $  % & 8 9 & !  9 ; $ < < = ` ; 9 a W 9 8 ) = ` )  b " # ` a 9 #a < # 9 < & # ; ` 8 $ : $ ? & a 9 % % " # # )  ? $ * ; & # �� Y @ = = > 9 # g + )  % = " 8 )  ? : $ ; & # ) $ = ! + < $ # ; ! 9 #& V " ) < : &  ; * " #  ) ! 7 & 8 )  % 9   & % ; ) 9  > ) ; 7 ! " % 7> 9 # g + 9  ; 7 & < # 9 b & % ; ] 9 ; 7 & # ; 7 $  ! & # ( ) % & +: $ )  ; &  $  % & 9 # # & < $ ) # ! ^ ; 9 W & < & # * 9 # : & 8 W ` 9 #9  W & 7 $ = * 9 * ; 7 & $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ] ! ^ $ ; ; 7 &= 9 % $ ; ) 9  9 * ; 7 & % 9 ( & # & 8 9 < & # $ ; ) 9  ! 7 $ ! W & &  % 9 : < = & ; & 8 c 9 #� Y 6 7 $ ; < 9 # ; ) 9  9 * a ` 9 " # > 9 # g a 9 " ; 9 * > 7 ) % 7 ; 7 &)  b " # ` 9 # 8 $ : $ ? & $ # ) ! & ! 7 $ ! W & &  < " ; ; 9 ) ; !)  ; &  8 & 8 " ! & W ` $  ` < & # ! 9  9 # 9 # ? $  ) _ $ ; ) 9  9 ; 7 & # ; 7 $  $  9 ; 7 & # % 9  ; # $ % ; 9 # 9 # ! " W % 9  ; # $ % ; 9 #&  ? $ ? & 8 )  < & # * 9 # : )  ? 9 < & # $ ; ) 9  ! * 9 # $< # )  % ) < $ = $ ! $ < $ # ; 9 * ; 7 & ! $ : & < # 9 b & % ; ,

h i h j k l m n o p k

q r s t u v q w x y z { y | | }

209

ITEM  24.



0 1 2 3 � 4 5 � � �  ! " # $  % & ' & # ( ) % & ! � * * ) % & + �  % , + - . / -  � � � � � � � � �

 Y f ) ; 7 # & ! < & % ; ; 9 ; 7 & )  ! " # $  % & $ * * 9 # 8 & 8 ; 9 ; 7 & ! &$ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ! + ; 7 & * 9 = = 9 > )  ? ) ! $ 8 8 & 8 ; 9C 3 S J I 4 K � � � Z � I G I J M � 5 � K M N O 1 K S 3 ~� * % 9 ( & # $ ? & < # 9 ( ) 8 & 8 ; 9 ; 7 & $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ) !# & V " ) # & 8 W ` $ % 9  ; # $ % ; 9 # $ ? # & & : &  ; + ; 7 & : 9 ! ; > &> ) = = < $ ` 9  W & 7 $ = * 9 * ; 7 & $ 8 8 ) ; ) 9  $ = )  ! " # & 8 ) ! ; 7 &$ : 9 "  ; 9 * )  ! " # $  % & �� Y � & V " ) # & 8 W ` ; 7 & % 9  ; # $ % ; 9 # $ ? # & & : &  ; c 9 #
� Y @ ( $ ) = $ W = & "  8 & # ; 7 & $ < < = ) % $ W = & � ) : ) ; ! 9 *�  ! " # $  % & ! 7 9 >  )  ; 7 & X & % = $ # $ ; ) 9  ! c> 7 ) % 7 & ( & # ) ! = & ! ! ,6 7 ) ! &  8 9 # ! & : &  ; ! 7 $ = =  9 ; )  % # & $ ! & ; 7 &$ < < = ) % $ W = & � ) : ) ; ! 9 * �  ! " # $  % & ! 7 9 >  )  ; 7 &X & % = $ # $ ; ) 9  ! ,

210

ITEM  24.



� � � � � � � � � 	 
 � �  � � � � �  � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �

 � � � � � � � � �  � ! " # $ % ! & ' ( ' $ ) * & ' " � + + * & ' , � ! & - , . / 0 .

1 2 * " ' ! 3 4 $ " ' 5 ' ! 6 5 4 3 * + * ' " * ! " # $ % ! & ' 7 $ 4 ) * 3 ' 3 # ! 3 ' $ 6 2 ' + 4 8 8 4 9 * ! : �� � � � 
 � � � ; � < 
 � 
 � ; � � � ; 	 � � � 1 � � � = 
 � ; < 
 � ; � 1� � � > � � 1 ( ? � � � � � 
 1 
 > � � 
 � ; 1 � � � ( � � ; 	 � � � 1 � � � = 
 � ; < 
 � ; � 1@  A � B C � �� D E F � G � H H I J I K L D M � L N O P F H Q F P N K L R N S� P � P T D L I U D J I K L R N S � K V D J I K L � L H B F N V P I W J I K L � G  K E W M F J F H � W F P D J I K L N

� ! + 4 $ 5 % 6 * 4 ! $ ' X # * $ ' 3 6 4 & 4 5 7 8 ' 6 ' 6 2 * " ( & 2 ' 3 # 8 ' , * + ! 4 6 " 2 4 9 ! % Y 4 ) ' , 9 * 8 8 Y ' " 2 4 9 ! * ! 6 2 ' > ' & 8 % $ % 6 * 4 ! " -� Z @ F V J I K L � � [ \ ] K � N � L � L N O P F H * " % 5 ' ! 3 ' 3 6 4* ! & 8 # 3 ' % " % ! % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 3 6 2 ' 7 ' $ " 4 ! ^ " _ 4 $4 $ : % ! * ` % 6 * 4 ! ^ " _ " 2 4 9 ! * ! 6 2 ' ( & 2 ' 3 # 8 ' , Y # 6 4 ! 8 a9 * 6 2 $ ' " 7 ' & 6 6 4 8 * % Y * 8 * 6 a + 4 $ b Y 4 3 * 8 a * ! c # $ a b 4 $b 7 $ 4 7 ' $ 6 a 3 % 5 % : ' b & % # " ' 3 , * ! 9 2 4 8 ' 4 $ * ! 7 % $ 6 , Y ab a 4 # $ 9 4 $ d b % 6 6 2 ' 8 4 & % 6 * 4 ! 3 ' " * : ! % 6 ' 3 % ! 33 ' " & $ * Y ' 3 * ! 6 2 ' ( & 2 ' 3 # 8 ' 4 + 6 2 * " ' ! 3 4 $ " ' 5 ' ! 67 ' $ + 4 $ 5 ' 3 + 4 $ 6 2 % 6 % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 3 % ! 3* ! & 8 # 3 ' 3 * ! 6 2 ' b 7 $ 4 3 # & 6 " e & 4 5 7 8 ' 6 ' 3 4 7 ' $ % 6 * 4 ! "2 % ` % $ 3 b -f 4 9 ' ) ' $ �� Z 1 2 ' * ! " # $ % ! & ' % + + 4 $ 3 ' 3 6 4 " # & 2 % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8* ! " # $ ' 3 4 ! 8 a % 7 7 8 * ' " 6 4 6 2 ' ' g 6 ' ! 6 7 ' $ 5 * 6 6 ' 3Y a 8 % 9 h % ! 3� Z � + & 4 ) ' $ % : ' 7 $ 4 ) * 3 ' 3 6 4 6 2 ' % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 3* " $ ' X # * $ ' 3 Y a % & 4 ! 6 $ % & 6 4 $ % : $ ' ' 5 ' ! 6 , 6 2 '* ! " # $ % ! & ' % + + 4 $ 3 ' 3 6 4 " # & 2 % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 39 * 8 8 ! 4 6 Y ' Y $ 4 % 3 ' $ 6 2 % ! 6 2 % 6 9 2 * & 2 a 4 # % $ '$ ' X # * $ ' 3 Y a 6 2 ' & 4 ! 6 $ % & 6 4 $ % : $ ' ' 5 ' ! 6 6 47 $ 4 ) * 3 ' + 4 $ " # & 2 % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 3 -

� Z i * 6 2 $ ' " 7 ' & 6 6 4 6 2 ' * ! " # $ % ! & ' % + + 4 $ 3 ' 3 6 4 6 2 ' " '% 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 3 " , 6 2 ' + 4 8 8 4 9 * ! : * " % 3 3 ' 3 6 4@ F V J I K L � � � [ � I E I J N � G � L N O P D L V F j� + & 4 ) ' $ % : ' 7 $ 4 ) * 3 ' 3 6 4 6 2 ' % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 3 * "$ ' X # * $ ' 3 Y a % & 4 ! 6 $ % & 6 4 $ % : $ ' ' 5 ' ! 6 , 6 2 ' 5 4 " 6 9 '9 * 8 8 7 % a 4 ! Y ' 2 % 8 + 4 + 6 2 ' % 3 3 * 6 * 4 ! % 8 * ! " # $ ' 3 * " 6 2 '% 5 4 # ! 6 4 + * ! " # $ % ! & ' �� Z � ' X # * $ ' 3 Y a 6 2 ' & 4 ! 6 $ % & 6 4 $ % : $ ' ' 5 ' ! 6 h 4 $� Z ; ) % * 8 % Y 8 ' # ! 3 ' $ 6 2 ' % 7 7 8 * & % Y 8 ' � * 5 * 6 " 4 +� ! " # $ % ! & ' " 2 4 9 ! * ! 6 2 ' > ' & 8 % $ % 6 * 4 ! " h9 2 * & 2 ' ) ' $ * " 8 ' " " -1 2 * " ' ! 3 4 $ " ' 5 ' ! 6 " 2 % 8 8 ! 4 6 * ! & $ ' % " ' 6 2 ' % 7 7 8 * & % Y 8 '� * 5 * 6 " 4 + � ! " # $ % ! & ' " 2 4 9 ! * ! 6 2 ' > ' & 8 % $ % 6 * 4 ! " -

k l k m n o p q r s n

t u v w x y t z { | } ~ | � � �

n n 211

ITEM  24.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: July 5, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Contract Amendment:  Parkade Brick Replacement Project 
  Project Number:  RC-000-3180 

 
The City approved design services for the Parkade Brick Replacement Project in December 
2018.  As outlined in the contract, conceptual options were developed and reviewed at 
several meetings.  The consultant is now developing construction plans for 2 blocks of the 
Parkade.  We continue to anticipate bidding this in February 2020. 
 
As we moved toward a recommendation for the Parkade and streetscape expansion, 
several additional opportunities were discussed.  Staff and the consultant began 
working with RiverPlace to incorporate the brick design with the new sidewalk along 
MU2 on E 2nd St.  RiverPlace was also looking to complete a sidewalk connection from 
E 2nd to State St.  A brick pattern was provided for that area.  A second opportunity is 
incorporating streetscape elements into Peter Melendy Park.  Conceptual drawings are 
under review and the goal is to bid and complete this by the end of 2019.  Third, Council 
asked that East 2nd Street sidewalk be completed.  This amendment adds that area to 
the project, completing the entire E 2nd Street sidewalk from Main to State and through 
the Plaza (by the RiverPlace developer) in 2020.  This will be complemented by the 100 
block alley reconstruction, Parkade brick replacement in the 100 and 200 blocks, and 
further west with the reconstruction of W. 2nd St. (Main to Washington) in 2020.  Fourth, 
questions were raised about the W 1st St. crosswalk.  Recently the crosswalk was 
painted with alternating dark and light rectangular stripes.  However, this amendment 
would help the City consider a crossing that incorporates elements from the Parkade 
design, strengthening the connection between the core downtown, the River, and 
nearby parks.  Fifth, staff is working with the Arabella development to consider sidewalk 
elements into their W 1st Street frontage, similar to the work with RiverPlace.  Finally, 
the proposed amendment includes the potential to work with the Oster Regent Theatre.  
Their architect recently approached the City to discuss the W 1st St sidewalk and their 
interest to improve that area.  With the Parkade project underway, Staff felt this could be 

212

ITEM  25.



an opportunity to partner and further the streetscape plans in this area.  This section of 
the contract would only be triggered if further discussions occur with the Theatre on a 
cost share and if we agree to move forward adding construction of that area to the City’s 
contract. 
 
The original contract included up to $93,800 in design services.  The additional items 
described are estimated at $69,350.  Of that, $14,600 would only be utilized if agreement is 
reached to move forward on the Theatre sidewalk area. 
 
This project is identified in the CIP, under #91: Downtown Brick Replacement. Funding 
will be certified as TIF debt for this project.  The City has secured a Gaming grant for a 
portion of the costs as well. 
 
This project meets Organizational Goal #4 of the City Council goals for fiscal year 2019, 
utilizing TIF to make landscaping, alley, and other streetscape improvements in the 
Downtown and College Hill. 
 
The Department of Community Development requests your consideration and approval 
of this Supplemental Agreement No. 1A with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for the Parkade 
Brick Replacement Project.  
 
Please contact me with any questions.  Thank you. 
 
Attachment: Supplemental Agreement #1A: Parkade Brick Replacement Project 

 
xc:  Ron Gaines, PE, City Administrator 

Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

213

ITEM  25.



214

ITEM  25.



215

ITEM  25.



216

ITEM  25.



217

ITEM  25.



218

ITEM  25.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: July 11, 2019 
 
 SUBJECT: 2019 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 2 
  SW-000-3164 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2019 Sidewalk Assessment Project. 
 
I would recommend setting Monday, August 5th, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time 
for the public hearing on this project and Tuesday, August 13th, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. as the 
date and time for receiving and opening bids. I would also request that the Notice to 
Bidders be published by July 19, 2019. It is anticipated that the Plans and Specifications 
will be ready for distribution to contractors on July 19, 2019 allowing more than two (2) 
weeks of review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the repair of deficient sidewalk adjacent to various property 
owners. The project will repair the deficient sidewalk for the adjacent property owner 
and assess the cost of repair to the property owner. Once the repair has been 
completed, the Engineering Division will submit a bill to the City Clerk. The City Clerk 
will then send notice to the adjacent property owner. The adjacent property owner will 
have 30 days to pay the bill without interest or penalty. If the adjacent property owner 
doesn’t pay the bill in 30 days, the cost of repair will be applied to the property owners’ 
property taxes and spread over 5 years with an interest rate set by City Council.  
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $107,051.73. 
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your 
review at the City Clerk's office or at the Engineering Division of the Department of 
Community Development. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works  
 Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

219

ITEM  26.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: July 10, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Western Home Communities Pedestrian Trail Access Easement Vacation 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to vacate a 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access easement vacation 
Case #VAC19-002 
 

PETITIONER: Western Home Communities, Claassen Engineering 
 

LOCATION: 
 

15-foot wide pedestrian trail access easement along the south boundary of 
the Western Home Campus on S. Main Street 
 

 

PROPOSAL 
This request includes the vacation of a 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access easement along the 
southern edge of the Western Home property on S. Main Street. 
 
BACKGROUND 
A 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access 
easement lies across the southern 
boundary of the Western Home Campus 
from S. Main Street to Prairie Parkway. 
This easement is identified in the 
Western Home Communities 4th 
Addition, 7th Addition and 8th Addition.  
 
During the planning for the Highway 58 
intersection at Viking Road, the 
easement was established to route 
pedestrians and cyclists around the 
interchange by travelling along the 
backside of the Blains and Wal-Mart 
retail stores to Prairie Parkway. The 
actual easement sits within a sloped 
area with overhead utilities. Grading this easement for a trail will be difficult to achieve with the 
existing features on the site. Since the completion of the aforementioned study, the trail 
alignment changed, to route the pedestrians and cyclists to Brandilynn Boulevard and Viking 

 

15’ wide pedestrian easement 

220

ITEM  27.



Road. This section of trail has been completed as part of the Highway 58 and Viking Road 
interchange project. There is no need for a pedestrian easement along the south property 
boundary of the Western Home Campus.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical review staff does not have any concerns with the vacation of the 15-foot wide 
pedestrian and trail easement along the south side of the Western Home S. Main Street 
Campus. The other utility and drainage easements in this area will remain.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
6/26/2019 

The Planning and Zoning Commission considered a pedestrian easement vacation 
request in conjunction with the final plat for the Western Home Communities Ninth 
Addition. Chair Holst stated he had a conflict of interest and would need to abstain 
from the matter. Acting Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided 
background information. He explained the final plat and the vacation of a 15-foot 
wide pedestrian and trail easement along the south boundary of the Western Home 
S. Main Street campus. Said pedestrian easement is no longer needed since the 
trail was relocated to Brandilynn Boulevard and Viking Road. Staff recommends 
approval to vacate the 15-foot wide pedestrian and access easement. All other 
utility easements will remain in place. 
 
There were no public comments and the Commission recommended approval of the 
easement vacation. 

  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends that on July 15, 2019, the City Council 
schedule a Public Hearing on August 5, 2019 for said pedestrian trail and access easement 
vacation. 
 
 

221

ITEM  27.



Existing (Relocated) Recreational Trail

Viking Rd

Prairi
e View Rd

P
ra

ir
ie

 P
k

w
y

H
w

y
 5

8

Hyacinth Dr

S
. 

M
a

in
 S

t

15' wide pedestrian trail and access easement (request to vacate)

Western Home Communities
Pedestrain Trail Access Easement Vacation

Location Map

222

ITEM  27.



223

ITEM  27.



224

ITEM  27.



225

ITEM  27.



226

ITEM  27.



 

RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 

RESOLUTION FIXING DATE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED VACATION OF 

PEDESTRIAN TRAIL ACCESS EASEMENT ON TRACT E WESTERN HOME 

COMMUNITIES SEVENTH ADDITION, LOT 1 WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES 

EIGHTH ADDITION, PARCEL G WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES LOT SEVENTEEN 

MINOR PLAT AND LOT 2 WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES FOURTH ADDITION, 

CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF 

NOTICE OF SAID PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 

 WHEREAS, a request was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to vacate a 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access easement within Tract E Western 

Home Communities Seventh Addition, Lot 1 Western Home Communities Eighth Addition,  

Parcel G Western Home Communities Lot Seventeen Minor Plat and Lot 2 Western Home 

Communities Fourth Addition, in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa and 

 

 WHEREAS, said Commission has recommended approval of said request, and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is desired to submit the same for consideration to the City Council to have 

a public hearing on the same as provided by law; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that there shall be a public hearing on a proposal to vacate the 

15-foot pedestrian trail access easement over, under and upon the property described as: 

 

THE SOUTH FIFTEEN (15) FEET OF TRACT E, WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES 

SEVENTH ADDITION, 

 

AND 

 

THE SOUTH FIFTEEN (15) FEET OF LOT 1, WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES EIGHTH 

ADDITION, 

 

AND 

 

THE SOUTH FIFTEEN (15) FEET OF PARCEL G, WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES LOT 

17 MINOR PLAT, 

 

AND 

 

THE SOUTH FIFTEEN (15) FEET OF LOT 2 WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES FOURTH 

ADDITION. 

  

 

227

ITEM  27.



And that said public hearing shall be held on the 5
th

 day of August, 2019, at 7:00 o’clock P.M., 

in the Council Chambers in the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The City Clerk is 

hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said hearing the Waterloo-Cedar Falls 

Courier, said notice to be published at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing date. 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this   day of    , 2019. 

 

 

  _________________________ 

                                                                                           James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

228

ITEM  27.



 

 

 

NOTICE OF HEARING ON PROPOSED VACATION OF PEDESTRIAN TRAIL 

ACCESS EASEMENT ON TRACT E WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES SEVENTH 

ADDITION, LOT 1 WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES EIGHTH ADDITION, 

PARCEL G WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES LOT SEVENTEEN MINOR PLAT 

AND LOT 2 WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES FOURTH ADDITION, CEDAR 

FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Planning and Zoning Commission has 

recommended to the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to vacate the following 15-foot wide 

pedestrian trail access easement. Said property being situated in the City of Cedar Falls, Black 

Hawk County, Iowa, and legally described as: 

 

THE SOUTH FIFTEEN (15) FEET OF TRACT E, WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES 

SEVENTH ADDITION, 

 

AND 

 

THE SOUTH FIFTEEN (15) FEET OF LOT 1, WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES EIGHTH 

ADDITION, 

 

AND 

 

THE SOUTH FIFTEEN (15) FEET OF PARCEL G, WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES LOT 

17 MINOR PLAT, 

 

AND 

 

THE SOUTH FIFTEEN (15) FEET OF LOT 2 WESTERN HOME COMMUNITIES FOURTH 

ADDITION. 

 

A hearing will be held in the Council Chambers of the City Hall in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 p.m. on the 5th day of August, 2019, on the proposal to vacate said 15-foot 

wide pedestrian trail access easement, at which hearing all interested parties for and against such 

pedestrian trail access easement vacation may be heard, and written objections thereto may be 

filed on or before the time set for the hearing. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

                 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

229

ITEM  27.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: July 11, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Partial Property Tax Exemption for ACOH, LLC 
  6601 Development Drive in the Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
The Department of Community Development would like to request that City Council set 
a date of public hearing for the above referenced project that was approved by a 
Development Agreement in March 2018.  The requested date of public hearing will be 
August 5, 2019.  Additional information regarding the partial property tax exemption and 
project construction status will be provided to City Council prior to the public hearing. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Sean Abbas, ACOH, LLC 
 
 
 

230

ITEM  28.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

(319) 273-8600 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING PUBLIC HEARING AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE GRANTING A 

PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO ACOH, LLC, FOR A NEW 

INDUSTRIAL USE MANUFACTURING AND OFFICE FACILITY TO BE 

CONSTRUCTED AT 6601 DEVELOPMENT DRIVE, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

 WHEREAS, a request was submitted by ACOH, LLC, to the City Council of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to adopt an Ordinance granting a partial property tax 

exemption to ACOH, LLC, in connection with an industrial use manufacturing and office 

facility to be constructed at  6601 Development Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that a public hearing should be 

scheduled on said request, and notice of said public hearing should be published as 

required by law. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the request of ACOH, LLC, to pass an Ordinance granting a partial property 

tax exemption to ACOH, LLC, in connection with an approximate 30,000 square 

foot industrial use manufacturing and office facility to be constructed on property 

located at 6601 Development Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally described as set 

forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto, is hereby scheduled for public hearing to be 

held on the 5
th

 day of August 2019, at 7:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers in the 

City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 

 

2. That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said 

public hearing in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier once, not less than four (4) nor 

more than twenty (20) days before the date of said hearing. 

231

ITEM  28.



 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this
 
15

th
 day of July 2019. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

232

ITEM  28.



EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Legal Description 

 

 

Lots 14, 15 and 16, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III, City of Cedar 
Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.94 acres more or less). 
  

233

ITEM  28.



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of 

Resolution Number _______ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on 

the ________ day of ______________, 2019. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the 

official seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this _______ day of _____________, 2019. 

 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

 

 

 

234

ITEM  28.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

(319) 273-8600 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE 

GRANTING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO ACOH, LLC, 

FOR A NEW INDUSTRIAL USE MANUFACTURING AND OFFICE 

FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 6601 

DEVELOPMENT DRIVE, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 

 

Notice is hereby given that on the 5
th

 day of August, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 

Chambers of the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Public Hearing will be 

held by the City Council of said City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on the proposal to adopt an 

Ordinance granting a partial exemption from property taxation as provided in Article II, 

Tax Exemptions of Chapter 21, Taxation of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, based on the application submitted by 

ACOH, LLC, for the actual value added to real estate by the construction of an 

approximate 30,000 square foot industrial use manufacturing and office facility to be 

constructed on property located at 6601 Development Drive, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally 

described as set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 

Copies of the application submitted and the proposed Ordinance are now on file in the 

office of the City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Written objections to the 

adoption of said Ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption may be filed with 

the City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on or before the date of hearing, and all objections 

will be heard at the time of said hearing. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

235

ITEM  28.



EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Legal Description 

 

 

Lots 14, 15 and 16, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III, City of Cedar 
Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.94 acres more or less). 
 

236

ITEM  28.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: July 11, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Partial Property Tax Exemption for Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. 
  2900 Capital Way in the Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
The Department of Community Development would like to request that City Council set 
a date of public hearing for the above referenced project that was approved by a 
Development Agreement in August 2017.  The requested date of public hearing will be 
August 5, 2019.  Additional information regarding the partial property tax exemption and 
project construction status will be provided to City Council prior to the public hearing. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Matt Highland, Division President 
 
 
 

237

ITEM  29.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

(319) 273-8600 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING PUBLIC HEARING AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE GRANTING A 

PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO BUCKEYE CORRUGATED, INC., 

FOR A NEW INDUSTRIAL USE WAREHOUSE AND PRODUCTION FACILITY TO 

BE CONSTRUCTED AT 2900 CAPITAL WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

 WHEREAS, a request was submitted by Buckeye Corrugated, Inc., to the City 

Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to adopt an Ordinance granting a partial 

property tax exemption to Buckeye Corrugated, Inc., in connection with an industrial use 

warehouse and production facility to be constructed at  2900 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that a public hearing should be 

scheduled on said request, and notice of said public hearing should be published as 

required by law. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the request of Buckeye Corrugated, Inc., to pass an Ordinance granting a 

partial property tax exemption to Buckeye Corrugated, Inc., in connection with an 

approximate 175,850 square foot industrial use warehouse and production facility 

to be constructed on property located at 2900 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

legally described as set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto, is hereby scheduled 

for public hearing to be held on the 5
th

 day of August 2019, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

Council Chambers in the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 

 

238

ITEM  29.



2. That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said 

public hearing in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier once, not less than four (4) nor 

more than twenty (20) days before the date of said hearing. 

 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this
 
15

th
 day of July 2019. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

239

ITEM  29.



EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Legal Description 

 

 

 

 

All of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even 

width of Lot 6 in West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III and all of Lot 7, all 

of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 10 in 

West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV, all in the East one-half (1/2) of 

Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine North (T89N), Range Fourteen 

West (R14W) in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Contains 

16.16 acres, more or less. 

  

240

ITEM  29.



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of 

Resolution Number _______ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on 

the ________ day of ______________, 2019. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the 

official seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this _______ day of _____________, 2019. 

 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

 

 

 

241

ITEM  29.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

(319) 273-8600 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE 

GRANTING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO BUCKEYE 

CORRUGATED, INC., FOR A NEW INDUSTRIAL USE WAREHOUSE AND 

PRODUCTION FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 2900 CAPITAL WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 

 

Notice is hereby given that on the 5
th

 day of August, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 

Chambers of the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Public Hearing will be 

held by the City Council of said City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on the proposal to adopt an 

Ordinance granting a partial exemption from property taxation as provided in Article II, 

Tax Exemptions of Chapter 21, Taxation of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, based on the application submitted by 

Buckeye Corrugated, Inc., for the actual value added to real estate by the construction of 

an approximate 175,850 square foot industrial use warehouse and production facility to 

be constructed on property located at 2900 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally 

described as set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 

Copies of the application submitted and the proposed Ordinance are now on file in the 

office of the City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Written objections to the 

adoption of said Ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption may be filed with 

the City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on or before the date of hearing, and all objections 

will be heard at the time of said hearing. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

242

ITEM  29.



EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Legal Description 

 

 

 

 

All of Lot 7, all of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even 

width of Lot 6 in West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase III and all of Lot 7, all 

of Lot 8, all of Lot 9 and the West eighty (80.00) feet in even width of Lot 10 in 

West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV, all in the East one-half (1/2) of 

Section Thirty-four (34), Township Eighty-nine North (T89N), Range Fourteen 

West (R14W) in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Contains 

16.16 acres, more or less. 

 

243

ITEM  29.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: July 11, 2019 

 SUBJECT: Partial Property Tax Exemption for FN Investors, LLC 
  3019 Venture Way in the Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
The Department of Community Development would like to request that City Council set 
a date of public hearing for the above referenced project that was approved by a 
Development Agreement in May 2018.  The requested date of public hearing will be 
August 5, 2019.  Additional information regarding the partial property tax exemption and 
project construction status will be provided to City Council prior to the public hearing. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc:  Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
       Fred Rose, FN Investors, LLC 
 
 
 

244

ITEM  30.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

(319) 273-8600 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING PUBLIC HEARING AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE GRANTING A 

PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO FN INVERSTORS, LLC, FOR A NEW 

INDUSTRIAL USE LAB AND OFFICE FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED AT 3019 

VENTURE WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

 WHEREAS, a request was submitted by FN Investors, LLC, to the City Council 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to adopt an Ordinance granting a partial property tax 

exemption to FN Investors, LLC, in connection with an industrial use lab and office 

facility to be constructed at  3019 Venture Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that a public hearing should be 

scheduled on said request, and notice of said public hearing should be published as 

required by law. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the request of FN Investors, LLC, to pass an Ordinance granting a partial 

property tax exemption to FN Investors, LLC, in connection with an approximate 

20,600 square foot industrial use lab and office facility to be constructed on 

property located at 3019 Venture Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally described as set 

forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto, is hereby scheduled for public hearing to be 

held on the 5
th

 day of August 2019, at 7:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers in the 

City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 

 

2. That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said 

public hearing in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier once, not less than four (4) nor 

more than twenty (20) days before the date of said hearing. 

245

ITEM  30.



 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this
 
15

th
 day of July 2019. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       James P. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

246

ITEM  30.



EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Legal Description 

 

 

Lot 12, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, and Lot 7, West Viking Road 
Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 
4.6 acres more or less). 
  

247

ITEM  30.



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of 

Resolution Number _______ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on 

the ________ day of ______________, 2019. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the 

official seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this _______ day of _____________, 2019. 

 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

 

 

 

248

ITEM  30.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

(319) 273-8600 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE 

GRANTING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO FN 

INVESTORS, LLC, FOR A NEW INDUSTRIAL USE LAB AND OFFICE 

FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3019 

VENTURE WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 

 

Notice is hereby given that on the 5
th

 day of August, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 

Chambers of the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Public Hearing will be 

held by the City Council of said City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on the proposal to adopt an 

Ordinance granting a partial exemption from property taxation as provided in Article II, 

Tax Exemptions of Chapter 21, Taxation of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, based on the application submitted by FN 

Investors, LLC, for the actual value added to real estate by the construction of an 

approximate 20,600 square foot industrial use lab and office facility to be constructed on 

property located at 3019 Venture Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, legally described as set forth 

on Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 

Copies of the application submitted and the proposed Ordinance are now on file in the 

office of the City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Written objections to the 

adoption of said Ordinance granting a partial property tax exemption may be filed with 

the City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on or before the date of hearing, and all objections 

will be heard at the time of said hearing. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

249

ITEM  30.



EXHIBIT “A” 

 

Legal Description 

 

 

 

Lot 12, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, and Lot 7, West Viking Road 
Industrial Park Phase II, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 
4.6 acres more or less). 
 

250

ITEM  30.


	Top
	1. Minutes of July 1, 2019
	190701MINUTES

	2. Public Hearing for 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project
	1. 2019 Bridge Maintenance PH Memo
	2. 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project Estimate

	3. Res for Public Hearing - 2019 Bridge Maintenance Project
	4. Ord. 2947-Rezone 2600 Grove Street
	2947-Rezoning 2600 Grove

	5. Ord. 2949-Public Events
	2949-Public Events

	6. Resignation of Deb Giarusso from P&Z
	PZ Resignation - Deb Giarusso

	7. Special Events for 7/15 Council
	0-Special Event Request Council Memo
	a-Street Closures-Live to 9
	b-Street Closure-Hiawatha
	c-Street Closure-Bluebell
	d-Street Closures-ARTapalooza

	8. Liquor Licenses 7/15/19
	Liquor Beer 7-10-19

	9. Appointment of Director of Public Works
	Schrage appointment resolution

	10. Memorandum of Understanding with Teamsters Union, Local No. 238  -compensatory time.
	MOU memo
	Cedar Falls MOU RE FTO comp time bank.updated through 6.30.2020 (0160995.._

	11. Agreement for Custodial Services
	Custodial Contract FY20 CC memo and contents

	12. Dump Truck Purchase
	Purchase request for FY20 Dump Truck

	13. Memorandum of Agreement with CFU - Use of Dump Truck
	MOU truck usage CC

	14. West 1st Street Claims for Relocation Reimbursement
	1.council memo on w 1st street
	2.0535_001

	15. Low Bid - South Main Street Parking Lot Project
	1. South Main Street Parking Lot
	2. Bid Tab

	16. Contract for Completion - Sands Edition
	1. Contract for Completion Memo - Sands Edition
	2. Contract for Completion
	3. Exhibit A - Legal Description and Final Plat
	4. Exhibit B - Estimate
	5. Exhibit C - Performance and Payment Bond
	6. Exhibit D - Maintenance Bond

	17. Reopen the Housing Choice Voucher Waiting List
	Memo to Council to reopen the Waiting List  on August 6 2019_final
	Res-Sec-8 Waiting List Reopen-REVISED

	18. CBD Design Review - projecting sign
	1.CC Staff report-Hurling Hatchet-Revised
	2. application and supp materials
	3. sign location

	19. Cherrywood Acres Minor Plat
	1 Staff report for Cherrywood Acres Minor Plat 7-10-19
	2-Cherrywood Zoning Map
	3 Cherrywood Acres Minor Plat 7-12-19
	5 Signed Owners Statement DOD
	6 Cherrywood Acres
	7 high street
	8 email on 6-24-19
	9 letter on 6-24-19

	20. Chrisbro Subdivision Preliminary Plat
	1 CC staff report for Chrisbro  Preliminary Plat on 7-10-19
	2-Chisbro Zoning Map
	3 Chrisbro PP 6-10-19

	21. Resolution approving the Sands Addition Final Plat
	1 CC memo for Sands Addition Final Plat on 7-11-19
	2 ZoningLocationMap
	3 FINAL PLAT (Revised 7-1-2019) 11x17
	4 Deed of Dedication and Declaration of Covenants Restrictions and Easements Revised 7-1-19

	22. Resolution approving The Terraces at West Glen Preliminary Plat
	1_CC staff report terraces at west glen PP 7-11-19
	2-The Terraces at West Glen Zoning Map
	3 Request Letter
	4 Preliminary Plat
	5 West Glen Development Concept Phasing 5-22-19

	23. HOME Investment Partnership Program Consortium Cooperation Agreement
	1. Council memo HOME Agreement FFY19-21 7-5-19
	HOME CONSORTIUM AGR 2020-2022 7-5-19 V2

	24. Community Development Block Grant & HOME Programs Grant Administration and Technical Services
	1. Council memo 7-5-19
	2. City-INRCOG.StandardProfesionalServiceAgreement 14-8-27 V2
	3. CIty-INRCOG.Attachment A-Scope of Services V2
	4. City-INRCOG.Attachment B-FINAL-Insurance Requirements V2
	5. City-INRCOG.Attachment C-Standard Terms &amp; Conditions V2
	6. 2019 CDBG required contract provisions V2
	7. City-of-Cedar-Falls_Iowa-Northland-_19-20-GL-AUTO-W_7-3-2019_584332175_1
	8. GLPNC
	9. INRCOGCG2010
	10. INRCOGCG2037

	25. Supplemental Agreement Amendment 1A, Parkade contract
	1-Council memo-supplemental contract 7-15-19
	2. Supplemental_Agreement 1A_2019-7-3

	26. Set Public Hearing - PS&E - 2019 Sidewalk Assessment
	1. PSE - 2019 Sidwalk Assessment

	27. Set Public Hearing on the vacation of a 15-foot wide pedestrian trail access easement for Western Home Communities
	1 CC staff report for Western Home easement vacation on 7-10-19
	2 Pedestrian Trail Access Easement Vac Map
	3 Pedestrian Trail Access Easement Vac. Plat Rev1
	CC Easement Vacation Resolution Setting Public Hearing - Western Home 7-10-19
	CC Easement Vacation Notice - Western Home

	28. Set Public Hearing - ACOH, LLC Tax Abatement Ordinance
	1_Memo to Council Setting PH on PPTE Ordinance 07-15-19
	2_Resolution Setting Public Hearing - ACOH, LLC
	Notice of Public Hearing - ACOH, LLC

	29. Set Public Hearing - Buckeye Corrugated, Inc. Tax Abatement Ordinance
	1_Memo to Council Setting PH on PPTE Ordinance 07-15-19
	2_Resolution Setting Public Hearing - BCI, Inc.
	Notice of Public Hearing - BCI, Inc.

	30. Set Public Hearing - FN Investors, LLC Tax Abatement Ordinance
	1_Memo to Council Setting PH on PPTE Ordinance 07-15-19
	2_Resolution Setting Public Hearing - FN Investors, LLC
	Notice of Public Hearing - FN Investors, LLC

	31. Allow Bills and Payroll of July 15, 2019
	Bottom

